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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271*9544 1-800-S52-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271*4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.sov

August 23, 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Retroactive amendments with the Contractors listed In bold below to continue

providing Rapid Response crisis intervention senrices, mental health and substarice use disorder
treatment, an^,other relat^ recovery supports for youth and adults who are under or uninsured
and are impacted by COVID-19. as well as healthcare professionals, by exercising contract
renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $562,080 from $3,764,580 to $4,326,660
and extending the completion dates from August 19, 2021 to May 31, 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

Northern

Human

Services

177222
Conway,
Region 1

$454,235 $0 $454,236

0 (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

West

Central

Behavioral

Health

Foundation

177654
Lebanon,
Region 2

\

$454,235 $0 $454,235
1

0 (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

TJie Deparlmenio/ Health and Human Seruicet'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Lakes

Region
Mental

Health

Center,

Inc.

154480
Laconia,
Region 3

$346,390

1

$0 $346,390

0 (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1

08/18/2021

(Item #34)

Riverbend

Community
Mental

Health, Inc.

177192
Concord,
Region 4' $454,235 $0 $454,235

O (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

Monadnock

Family
Services

177510
Keene,
Region 5

$346,390 $0 $346,390

0 (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

Greater

Nashua

Mental

Health

154112
Nashua,
Region 6

$173,195 $281,040 $454,235

0(G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)

7/15/2020

(Info Item «T)

The Mental

Health

Center of

Greater

Manchest

er, Inc.

177184
Manchester,
Region 7

$173,195 $281,040 $454,235

0(G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)

7/15/2020

(Info Item #T)

Seacoast

Mental

Health

Center,

Inc.

174089
Portsmouth,
Region 8

$454,235 $0 $454,235

0(G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

Community
Partners of

Strafford

County
Foundation

177278
Dover,

Region 9
$454,235 $0 $454,235

0(G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

ltem'#T)

Al 08/18/2021
(Item #34)
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The Mental

Health

Center for

Southern

New

Hampshire

174116
Deny

Region 10
$454,235 $0 $454,235

0 (G/A)
6/23/2020 (EC)
7/15/2020 (Info

Item #T)

A1 08/18/2021

(Item #34)

Total; $3,764,580 $562,080 $4,326,660

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the fully executed contract documents were not
received In time for Governor and Executive Council approval to prevent the current contracts
from expiring. The Contractors were unable to obtain signatures on time for the contract
documents due to changes In and unanticipated absences of key personnel.

This request represents two (2) of the ten (10) agreements being amended. Eight (8) of
the ten (10) were amended as approved by the Governor and Executive on August 18, 2021
(Item #34).

The purpose of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing crisis intervention
services, mental health and substance use disorder treatment, and other related recovery
supports to youth and adults who are under or uninsured and are impacted by COVID-19, as well
as healthcare professionals.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, people with serious mental illness, youth with serious
emotional disturbance, general citizens, and health care professionals continue to experience
new behavioral health challenges or exacerbations of current symptoms, including increases in
depression, anxiety, trauma and grief. The Contractors provide crisis stabilization services to
individuals, including those who are under or uninsured and otherwise may not have access to
affordable care.

The Contractors have increased the capacity of the New Hampshire community mental
health system to respond to individuals experiencing behavioral health crises who have been
impacted by the C0VID^19 pandemic, using evidence-based practices. New and existing staff
have received, and will continue to receive, training on COVID-19-related treatment adaptations,
including safety and telemedicine; guideline-based crisis intervention; and trauma-informed care.
The Contractors will refer individuals in need of longer-term sen/ices to other evidence-based
practices.

The Department continues to mlonitor contracted services by:

•  Actively and regularly collaborating with the vendors to. improve results and adjust
program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

•  Requesting key data and metrics that include demographic, performance and service
data.
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•  Participating in monthly meetings with Project Directors to determine If the grant Is
progressing within the timeline provided in the New Hampshire Rapid Response Grant
project narrative.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Subsection 1.2 of
the attached contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties, and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising Its option to
renew services for approximately eight-and-a-half (8.5) months of the two (2) years available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request. Individuals who are
experiencing mental health crises due to COVID-19 may not have access to necessary
stabilization services and will be at an increased risk for utilization of more costly services in

emergency departments, psychiatric hospitals and long-term care facilities.

Areas served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.665 FAIN #H79FG000210

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



Fiscal Details for Rapid Response Contracts

05-e5-®2-e22010-190« HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DIV, BUREAU
OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES.SAMHSA GRANT (100% F«d*r«l Funds)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 92201009 10.825.00 10,825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92201909 129.896.00 129,896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for oroaram services 92201909 32,474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for ouOlic assistance 92201911 281.040.00 281.040.00

Subfofaf 454.235.00
-

454.235.00

West Central Services, Inc (Vendor Code 177654»B001)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 10.825.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 129.696.00 129.896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public assistance 92201911 281.040.00 281.040.00

Subfofa/ 454,235.00
■

454.235,00

Qk>n Mental Health C

Rscal Year Class/Account '  Class TKIe Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 10,825.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92201909 129.896.00 129,896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants (or public assistance 92201911 173.195.00 173.195,00

SubtotMl 346.390.00
-

346.390.00

Riverbend Communitv Mental HeaIth. Inc. (Vendor Code 177192-R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 10,825.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 129,896.00 129.896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 32,474.00 32,474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public asslstartce 92201911 281,040.00 261.040.00

Subtotal 454.235.00 -
454.235.00

Fiscal Year
□

Class / Account Class Title' Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified
Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 10.825.00 10,825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 129.896.00 129.896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92201909 32,474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public assistance 92201911 173,195.00 173.195.00

Subfofa/ 346.390.00
■

346.390.00

juncil of Nashua, Nh (Vendor Coda 154112-B001)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tble Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified
Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 10,825.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 129.896.00 129.896.00

2022 102-500731 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public assistance 92201911 281,040.00 281.040.00

Subfota/ 173.195.00 281.040.00 454.235.00

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title ' Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified
Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 10.625.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram services 92201909 129,896,00 129,696,00

2022 102-500731 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public assistance 92201911 281,040.00 281.040.00

Fiscal Details
Page 1 of 2
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I  SuOrott/l 173.195.001 281.040.00 1 4S4.23S.001

Fiscal Yaar Class 1 Account Class TItIs Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for proaram servicas 92201908 10.625.00 10,825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for proaram servicss 92201909 129.696.00 129,696.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 92201909 32.474.00 32,474,00

2022 074-500565 Grants for public assistance 92201911 261.040.00 261.040.00

SubtotMl 454,235.00
-

454,235.00

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Current Modified

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 92201909 10.825.00 10,625.00

2021 •  102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 129,696.00 129,696.00

2022 102-500731 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500565 Grants for public assistance 92201911 261.040.00 281,040.00

Subfetsf 454.235.00
-

454.235.00

hem New Hampshire (Vendor Code 174116-R001)

Fiscal Year Class / Account ClassTltle Job Number
Current Modified'

Budget
Increase/ Decrease

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 10.625.00 10.825.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92201909 129.696.00 129.896.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for program sen/Ices 92201909 32.474.00 32.474.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for public assistance 92201911 261.040.00 261.040.00

Subfotaf 454.235.00 •
454.235.00

Total 3.764.580.00 562.080.00 4.326.660.00

Fiscal Oetails

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Rapid Response contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and The Community Council of
Nashua, N.H. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor on June 23, 2020 and
presented to the Executive Council on July 15, 2020 (Informational Item T), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration
of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Section 1, Revisions
to Form P-37, General Provisions. Subsection 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify payment terms to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

May 31, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$454,235.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 3, by modifying the introductory paragraph and
replacing the budget table in its entirety, to read as follows with no changes to Subsection 3.1
through Paragraph 3.1.3:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for authorized expenses incurred in the
fulfillment of Exhibit B, Scope of Services in accordance with the approved budget tables
below:

Original Budget

Line Item Amount

Staffing $113,500

Fringe Benefits $34,050

Personal Protective Eguipment, Supplies. Technology and Training $5,400

Data Collection $4,500

Indirect Costs on Clinical Services $ 15,295

Indirect Costs on Data Collection $450

Total $173,195

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-06-A01

A-S-1.0

The Community Council of Nashua, N.H.

Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
8/30/2021
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Supplemental Budget

Line Item '  Amount

Staffing $185,265

Fringe Benefits $55,579

Persona) Protective Equipment, Supplies, Technology and Training $7,990

Data Collection $6,658

Indirect Costs on Clinical Services $24,883

Indirect Costs on Data Collection $665

Total $281,040

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, to read:

4. ' The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form provided by the Department by the fifteenth
(15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall:

4.1 Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment.

4.2 Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include, but is not
limited to, time sheets and/or time cards, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and
proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.3 Ensure timesheets and/or time cards support employee hours worked and charged
under this contract, pursuant to 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1).

4.3. Ensure amounts in specified line items of the Original Budget are invoiced and
exhausted prior to invoicing for expenses identified in the corresponding line items in
the Supplemental Budget.

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-06-A01

A-S-1.0

The Community Council of Nashua, N.H.

Page 2 of 4

-DS

(m
Contractor Initials

Date
8/30/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Coritract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be retroactively effective to August 19. 2021, subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

8/30/2021

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—DoeuSlgn«d by;

—eD6D0SB(XCe3442 ..

Name:'^^^3a fox

Title: Di rector

8/30/2021

Date

The Community Council of Nashua, N.H.
—OocuSlgnad by;

—jB4333Af
U

333AS

 I D^oJkjr
D3DB451

Name:Cynthia u whitaker

Title, pfes-jjjgn^ and CEO

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-06-A01

A-S-1.0

The Community Council of Nashua, N.H.

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

—DocuSionsd by:

8/30/2021
.D5CA0?02E3?C4AE

Date Name:Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-06-A01 The Community Council of Nashua. N.H.

A-S-1.0 . Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar)' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL

OF NASHUA. N.H. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on December

24, 1923. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oITice have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned; and the attached is a true copy of the list of documents on file in this office-

Business ID: 63050

Certificate Number: 0005369257

as

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of MavA.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

«,w

A/

<5
QPBE

Business Name : THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, N.H.

Business ID : 63050

Filing Histor)'

Filing^ Filing Date Effective Date Filing Type Nonprofit Report Year

0005059370 12/21/2020 12/21/2020 Nonprofit Report 2020

0004773908 01/16/2020 01/16/2020 Annual Report Reminder N/A

0003186377 11/09/2015 11/09/2015 Annual Report 2015

0000661057 04/14/2011 04/14/2011 Reinsiatctncnt 2010

0000661056 02/15/2011 / 02/15/2011 Admin Dissolution/Suspension N/A

0000661055 lO/H/2010 10/11/2010 Reminder Letter N/A

0000661054 12/22/2005 12/22/2005 Annual Report ■ 2005

0000661053 04/20/2001 04/20/200! Reinstatement 2000

0000661052 02/01/2001 02/01/2001 Admin Dissolution/Suspension N/A

0000661051 11/20/1995 11/20/1995 Annual Report 1995

0000661050 ■ 02/12/1990 02/12/1990 Annual Report 1990

0000661049 01/02/1976 01/02/1976 Annual Report N/A

0000661048 06/01/1956 06/01/1956 Annual Report N/A

0000661047 12/24/1923 12/24/1923 Business Formation N/A

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID Business Status

^  1

Center for Psychiatric Advancement 542804 Expired

THE BARGAIN HUNTER 138779 Expired

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council 604020 Active

INTEGREAT HEALTH 793678 Active

GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH 807172 Active!

Name Histor)'

Name Name Type

No Name Changes found for this business.

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Department of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
Physical Location - State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Room 317, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH

Phone: (603)271-3246 | Fax: (603)271-3247 | Email: corporatc@sos-nh,gov | Website: sos.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State
a; A

A?

Principal Information

Name' Title

Bcttcjcan Ncveux Chief Financial OfTicer

Pamela Burns Chairman of the Board of Directors

Diane Vicnneau Vice President

Karen Lascelle Treasurer

Jone LaBombard Secretary

Robert Dorf Director

Robyn Moses-l larney Director

Christine rumian Director

Lisa Yaies

<

Director

Robert Amrein Director

Cynthia Whitaker Chief Executive Officer

Slailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Department oTState, 107 North Main Street. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
Physical Location - State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Room 317, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH

Phone: (603)271-3246 | Fax: (603)271-3247 | Email: corporatc(3sos.nh.gov | Website: sos.nh.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Pamela A/Bums. Board Chair .. hereby certify lhat:
(Name of the elected Officer of the CorporatiorVLLC: cannot be contract signatory)

"1. 1 ̂ 'a duly elected ClerWSecretary/dflicer of Community Council of Nashua. NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health
(Corporation/LLC Nome)

2^The follovj^js a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the'Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and. held oh
u  .2021. at which a quorum of the Olrectors/sharefidlders were present and voting.

Q(Date)

VOTED: That Cynthia I. Whitaker. PsvD. MLAOC. Presidonl & Chief Executive Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is.duly authorized on'behalf of Communitv'Councll of Nashua. NH d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health to enter Into
contracte or agreements with the State (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its'agendes or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her
judgment be dedrable or necessao' to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the date of
the contract/contract amendment to ̂ ch this certificate Is attached. This aulhorlly remains valid for thirty (30) days
from the dal.e of this Certificate of Authority.rl further certify that it Is understood that the Siate of New Hampshire will
rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posllion(s) Indicated and that,,
they have fun authority to birwJ the corporation. To the extent that there ore any limits oh the authonty of any listed
individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the Slate of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly staled
herein.

Dated:^Um^|
Signature of Elected Officer
Name:- Pamela A. Bums

TItfe: Board Chair
Greater Nashua Mental Heallh

Rev. 03/24/20
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/xaoRCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

1/26/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER,'AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, LLC
11 Concord St
Nashua NH 03064

Cathy Beaureqard

F..V 603-882-2766 noH 603-886^230

AmRPsv mberube(8leatonbeRjbe.com

INSURER(S) affording COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A: Scottsdale Insurance Co

INSURED C0MC03
The Community Council of Nashua NH Inc
100 West Pearl St
Nashua NH 03060

INSURER B: Concord Grouo Ins ' 14376

INSURER c: The Lawson Group

INSURER D:

INSURERE:

INSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 657334577 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VyHlCH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
ITR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
IN8D

SUbft
Y*YO POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYY1

POLICY EXP
/MM/D0/YYYY1 LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

E  OCCUR

OPS1585686 11/12/2020 11/12/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
UAMAGb 1U KbNIbU
PREMISES (Ea occurraneal $300,000

MED EXP (Any ona parson) $ 5.000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $2,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

POLICY 1 |5ect I I LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2.oooTooo
$

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 20038992. 11/12/2020 11/12/2021
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S 1.000.000

ANY AUTO

HEOULED
rros
)N-OWNED
TOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X SC
Al

BODILY INJURY (Par acddani) $

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE s

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

/

UMS0028329 11/12/2020 11/12/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000

AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000

DEO * RETEfmONS 10 non $

C WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, „
ANVPROPRIETOFVPARTNER/EXECUTIVE rrri
OFFICERIMEM8EREXCLUDEO? ^
(Mandatory In NH) " '
If yas. dos^l)a ur>der
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS tielow

N/A

HCHS20210000446 1/15/2021 1/15/2022

1

1 PER 1 OTH-
1 STATUTE 1 ER

E.L. EACH ACCIOEHT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

e.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

■•A Profeatlonal Liability
Claims Mada
Ratro Oaia: 11/12/1988

OPS1585686 11/12/2020 11/12/2021 Each Claim
Asgregaia

$5,000,000
$5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarfct Schadula. may ba attachad If mora apaca la ratiuirad)
Workers Compensation coverage: NH; no excluded officers.

NH DHHS is listed as additional insured per written contract.

1

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHDHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
accordIance with the policy provisions.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
©1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors;

The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Community Council of Nashua, NH,
Inc. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health (the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional revenues and expenses, and cash flows for the;year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal, control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness'of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc.
d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health

' Page 2.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets and Its
cash flo\A/s for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2019 financial statements and we expressed an
■ unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 23, 2019. In
our opinion, the summarized comparative information, presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2019 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial'statements from which it
has been derived.

Other Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note l .to the financial statements, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standard Update No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope of the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, during the year ended June 30, 2020.
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

L.LX-.

Manchester, New Hampshire
October 28, 2020
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA, NH, INC.
D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2019)

2020 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowanc^e for doubtful accounts and

contractuals of $376,294 in 2020 and $868,900 in 2019

investments-

Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

$ 6,340,977 $ 2,450,691

2,553,814

1,817,385

136,015

2.926.418

1,327,181

1,853,735
215,098

3.051,239

$13.774.589 $ 8.897.944

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related activities
Estimated third-party liability
Accrued vacation

Deferred revenue-

Notes payable, net of unamortized deferred issuance costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Undesignated

Board designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

$  162,440 $ 575,082
1,340,406 914,303

18,681

460,543

4,952

3.436.488

5,988,607
2.086.877

8,075,484

275.595

372,238

8,930
1.460.491

5.423.510 3.331.044

3,195,674

2.096.407

5,292,081

274.819

Total liabilities and net assets

8.351.079 5.566.900

$13.774.589 $ 8.897.944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE COMMUNITY COUNCIL OF NASHUA. NH, INC.

D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Total

2019

Revenues and support
Program service fees, net
New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral

^  Health
Federal grants
Rental income

Contributions and support
Other

Net assets released from restrictions

$  14,376,614

2,766,795
1,600,936

6,206
129,139
770,571

3.962

$  . $

(3.9621

14,376,614 $

2,766,795
1,600,936

6,206

129,139
770,571

12,100,018

2,708,454

305,915
8,886

153,665

462,233

Total revenues and support 19.654.223 (3.9621 19.650.261 15.739.171

Expenses
Program services
Children's and adolescents' ,
services

Adult services

Elderly services
Deaf services

Substance abuse disorders

Medical services

Other programs

1,840,661
4,736,607
471,292

360,585
725,636

1,530,051
1.942.359

-

1,840,661
4,736,607

471,292
360,585
725,636

1,530,051
i.942.359

1,880,533
3,952,548
513,666

391,655
610,322

1,572,645
1.648.908

Total program services 11,607,191 • 11,607,191 10,570,277

General and administrative

Development
5,252,649

37.602

- 5,252,649
37.602

4,370,159
40.834

Total expenses 16.897.442 16.897.442 14.981.270

Income from operations 2.756.781 (3.9621 2.752.819 757.901

Other income

Investment return, annual appropriation
Investment return, net of fees and

annual appropriation
Realized and unrealized (losses) gains
on investments

41,055

■  (12,158)

(2.275t

3,962

1,074

(2981

45,017

(11,084)

(2.5731

40,000

(9,341)

77.271

Total other income 26.622 4.738 31.360 107.930

• Excess of revenues and support
and other income over

expenses and change in net
assets 2,783,403 776 2,784,179 865,831

Net assets, beginning of year 5.292.081 274.819 5.566.900 4.701.069

Net assets, end of year $  8.075.484 $ 275.595 $ 8.351.079 $ 5.566.900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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I nc uunniviurti i i uuunuiL OF NASHUA, NH, INC. D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Children's —

and Substance _
Adolescents' Adult Elderly Deaf Abuse Medical Other Total General and Total
Services Services Sendees Services Disorders Senrices Programs Programs Administrative Development Oroanization

Revenues and support and other income
Program service fees, net % 3,S4S.208 $ 7,476,020 6 1,023,266 S 334,929 $ 267,886 S 982,265 S 706,634 S 14,335,197 9 .41,417 $ • 6 14,376,614
New Hampshire Bureau of Behaviorai

Health 147,498 704,766 306,344 21,960 • 720,806 1,901,373 666,422 • 2,766,796
Federal grant • 672,166 • 63,196 • 866,586 1,600,936 • • 1,600,936
Rental IrKome . . . . . . . 6,206 • 6,206
Contributions and support - . . . - . . . . . 129,139 1 29,139
Other 3.294 61.892 10.238 : 467.721 18.884 624 662.663 ' 249.278 ; 801.931

Total revenues and support and
other income $ 3.696.000 6 8.904.833 6 1.033.603 6 641.273 $ 820.762 $ 1.001.139 3 2.292.649 $ 18.390.169 S 1.162.323 . t 129.139 6 19.681.621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1059DC7A-19EF-4763-A91A-1A5168F9CBF9 , a aai-ai-pai iif-AiTu
I nc v.wivifvnjiNi I I ^uunuiL OF NASHUA, NH, INC. D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Functional Revenues and Expenses (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Children's

and Substance

Adolescents' Adult Elderly Deaf Abuse Medical Other ToUl General and Total

Services Services Services Services Disorders Services- Proa rams Proarams Administrative Develooment Oraanlzation

Total revenues and support and
other Income

S 3.696.000 i 8.904.833 6 1.033.503 S  641.273 S  820.762 S 1.001.139 i 2.292.649 5  18.390.159 5  1.162.323 % 129.139 5  19.681.621

Expenses

Salaries and wages 1,360,806 3,072,873 355,953 240,404 535,382 1,080,542 1,269,618 7,905,578 2,878,346 16,360 10,800,284

Employee benefits 265,731 557,602 47,550 48,416 62,126 ^ 129,493 226,045 1,336,963 390,632 3,133 1,730,728

Payroll taxes 100,450 231,316 27,103 17,549 40,055 76,771 88,783 681,027 205,986 1,247 788,260

Substitute staff . . . . . . . 8,280 . 8,280

Accounting and administrative fees - - . • 130 130 111,310 25 111,465

Legal fees 176 8,526 3,740 . . . 1,205 13,646 15,221 28,867

Other professional fees 8,303 3,243 1,893 13,921 423 222,569 47,871 298,213 126,429 7,060 431,692

Journals and publications . • - . . . 988 - 988

Conferences- . - 76 6,508 • 2,328 7,911 3,336 - 11,247

Other staff development 409 1,666 265 480 - 15,794 18,604 4,736 - 23,340

Mortgage interest - - - • - - 77,465 • 77,465

' Heating costs • • • • - • • 19,643 - 19,643

Other utilities • - - - • - - 97,001 - 97,001

Maintenance and repairs - . • . • - 198,090 - 198,090

Other occupancy costs - • - • • / • 97,378 - 97,378

Office 6,179 9,589 151 3,298 10,787 7,996 64,344 102,344 376,344 3,562 482,240

Building and household •  72 . . . 31 57 160 40,795 . 40,955

Food 110 997 . 174 - 333 1,614 3,132 593 5,339

Advertising - - 75 ■ - 1,061 1,136 4,337 353 5.826

Printing 953 2,874 216 - 221 193 883 5,340 4,575 2,132 12,047

Communication 8,126 34,160 4,558 3,388 2,528 583 9,170 62,513 166,613 . 229,126
Postage 128 239 . - 36 - 65 468 11,545 - 12,013

Staff 36,320 117,859 15,932 22,951 4,305 48 14,885 212,300 10,393 64 222,757

Client services 25,639 626,407 405 148 3,404 . 3,530 659,533 1,000 . 660,533

Malpractice insurance • 1,125 . . . - • 1,125 163,369 - 164,494

Vehide insurance - • - - - - - • 2,258 - 2,258

Property and liabiity insurance - 375 • . . - • 375 66,852 - 67,227

Other interest - • - • • - - • 4,832 • 4,832
Depreciation 36,756 62,084 13,791 10,105 26,214 12,835 44,894 206,679 62,169 3,043 271,891

Equipment rental • • • - - - ■ • 51,210 • 51,210

Equipment maintenance - - - . - - - 4,786 - 4,786

Membership dues 504 • • - - - 3,653 4,157 37,358 60 41,566
Other . 6.672 . - 33.993 • 147.710 187.375 6.250 - 193.625

Total expenses before allocation 1,840,661 4,736,607 471,292 360,585 725,636 1,530,051 1,942,359 11,607,191 6,262,649 37,602 16,897,442

General and administrative allocation 1.074.411 2.616.756 316.842 146.976 294.272 1528.9121 268.876 4.089.221 14.089.8511 630

Total expenses 2^915.072 7.253.363 788.134 507.561 1.019.908 1.001.139 2,211,235 15.696.412 -  1.162.798 38.232 16.897.442

Change in net assets i  780.928 5 1.651.470 S  245.369 S  133.712 5  1199.1461 % $  81.414 5  2.693.747 $  (4761 6 90.907 S  2.784.179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2019)

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities

$ 2,784,179 $ 865,831

Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains on investments
Provision for bad debt

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses and vacation
Estimated third-party liability
Deferred revenue

272,738

2,573

804,899

(2,031,535)
' 79,083

(370,079)
514,408
18,881
(3.9781

265,718

(77.271)
1,763,837

(1,261,563)
(37,899)
407,847

592,249
(950,075)

8.930

Net cash provided by operating activities 2.070.969 1.577.604

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from the sale of investments

Purchase, of property and equipment

(1,037,808)
1,071.408
(189.8311

(561,223)
' 547,987
(486.7241

Net cash used by investing activities (155.8331 (499.9601

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on notes payable
Bprrowings under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)

(77,134)
2.052.284

(91,087)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 1.975.150 (91.0871

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,890,288 986,557

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2.450.891 1.464.134

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 8.340.977 $ 2.450.691

Supplemental disclosures of noncash flow activities
Acquisition of property and equipment included In

accounts payable and accrued expenses $ $  42.563

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
{With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2019)

Organization

The Community Council of Nashua, NH, Inc. d/b/a Greater Nashua Mental Health (the Organization) is
a comprehensiye community health center located in Nashua, New Hampshire. The Organization's
mission is to work with the community to meet the mental health needs of its residents by offering
evaluation, treatment, resource development, education and research. The Organization is dedicated to
clinical excellence and advocacy with its Child and Adolescent, Adult Outpatient Services, Elderly
Services, Deaf Services, Substance Abuse, Medical Services, and other programs.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In July 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2018-08; Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made, to clarify and improve the accounting guidance for contributions
received and contributions made. The amendments in this ASU assist entities in (1) evaluating
whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within
the scope of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-for-profit Entities, or
as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other accounting guidance, and (2) distinguishing
between conditional contributions and unconditional contributions. This ASU was adopted by the
Organization during the year ended June 30, 2020 and is reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. Adoption of the ASU did not have a material impact on the Organization's financial
reporting. ^

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
which require the Organization to report information regarding to its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

-8-
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D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 >
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2019)

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met
by actions of the Organization or by the passage of tirhe. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.
Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net
assets.

All contributions are considered to be available for operational use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as donor restricted support that increases that net asset class.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, donor restricted net. assets are reclassified to net assets without donor

restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a^ donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as donor restricted support and
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired and placed in
service.

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total,
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's June 30, 2019 financial statements, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding investments.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

-9-
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D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totais for June 30, 2019)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In evaluating the collectability of
accounts receivable, the Organization monitors the amount of actual cash collected during each
month against the Organization's outstanding patient accounts receivable balances, as well as the
aging of balances. The Organization analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its
major payer sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts
and provision for bad debts. Management, as well as the Finance Committee of the Organization,
regularly reviews the aging and collection rate of major payer sources. Balances that are still
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to the trade accounts receivable. /

Investments

Investments in marketable securities and debt, instruments with readily determined market values
are carried at fair value. Fair values are based on quoted market prices, if available, or estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Dividends, interest, and net realized and unrealized gains (losses) arising from Investments are
reported as follows;

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift require •

that they be maintained with the corpus of a donor restricted endowment fund;

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift or state

law imposes restrictions on the use of the allocated investment income (loss); and

•  Increases (decreases) in net assets without donor restrictions in all other cases.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, if purchased, or at estimated fair value at date of
donation in the case of gifts, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's policy is to
capitalize assets greater than $5,000, while minor maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the following
estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Buildings and improvements 15-50 years
Computer equipment and software 3-10 years
Vehicles ' 5 years

Functional Allocatlon of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of functional revenues and expenses. Accordingly, certain costs
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Expenses are
allocated based on client service revenue related to services by department.
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D/B/A GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2019)

Estimated Third'Partv Liabilitv

The Organization's estimated third-party liability consists of estimated amounts due to Medicaid
under capitation contract agreements. During 2020, minimum threshold levels were waived by the
Managed Care Organizations (MCO's) and therefore, managemeht has not recognized a potential
repayment for services provided during 2020.

I

During 2020, management was notified by the MCO's that the Organization did not meet the
minimum threshold levels for services provided in 2019 and as a result owe the MCO's a total of
$18,681.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, there was no unrelated business income tax incurred by the Organization for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions
and concluded the Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any
significant unrelated business income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to, or disclosure within, the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP,
management has considered transactions or events occurring through October 28, 2020, which is
the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Avallabllltv and Llauldltv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize its available funds. The Organization has
various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents, investments and a
line of credit.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing operating activities as
well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those operating activities.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources or, where appropriate, borrowings. Refer
to the statements of cash flows, which identifies the sources and uses of the Organization's cash
and cash equivalents.
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I

The following financial assets are expected to be available within one year of the statement of
financial position date to meet general expenditures as of June 30:

^  2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents available for operations $ 5,795,870 $ 1,933,201
Accounts receivable, net 2.553.814 1.327.181

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
within one year $ 8.349.684 $ 3.260.382

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position includes amounts that are part of
the endowment and board-designated funds reserved for future capital expenditures, and thus are
excluded from the above table. ^
The Organization's Board of Directors has designated a portion of its resources without donor-
imposed restrictions to act as endowment funds. These funds are invested for long-term
appreciation and current income but remain available and may be spent at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

The Organization has an available line of credit of $1,000,000 which was fully available at June 30,
2020. See Note 8.

3. Program Service Fees and Concentrations of Credit Risk

Program service fees are charged at established rates and recognized as services are rendered.
Discounts, allowances and other arrangements for services provided at other than established
rates are recorded as an offset to program service fees. The State of New Hampshire has
implemented payment reform in which certain patients covered under Medicaid were transitjoned
to coverage urider a managed care system. Net revenues from managed care represented
approximately 80% and 86% of the Organization's net program service fees for 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Net revenues from the Medicaid program accounted for approximately 9% of the
Organization's net program service fees for 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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An estimated breakdown of program service fees, net of the provision for bad debt, capitation
adjustments and contractual allowances, from those major sources is as follows:

2020 2019

Private pay $ 2,209,648 $ 2,126,075

Medicaid 1,385,623 1,884,686

Medicare 1,907,288 1,084,336

Other payers 1,186,399 809,579

Managed care 21.265.156 18.831.992

27.954.114 24.736.668

Less: Contractual adjustments (5,048,686) (4,306,382)

Capitation adjustments (7,723,915) (6,566,431)

Provision for bad debt (804.899) (1.763.837)

(13.577.500) (12.636.650)

Program service fees, net $ 14.376.614 $ 12.100.018

The decrease in bad debt expense in 2020 as compared to 2019 is primarily due to improved
collection efforts as a result of the Organization concentrating on reducing Lapsed Medicaid
exposure.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under
third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of gross accounts receivable by funding
source as of June 30:

2020 2019

Government grants 58 % 30 %

Private pay 10 24

Medicaid 11 21

Medicare 8 4 '
Other . 6 7

Managed care 7 14

100 % 100 %
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4. Investments

Investments, which are reported at fair value, consist of the following at June 30:

2020 2019

Common stocks

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

$  744,873 $
215,908

503,538
244.045
109.001

738,894

258,423

487,623
255,204

113_J91

$  1.817.365 $ 1.853.735

The Organization's investments are subject to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and
overall market volatility, which may substantially impact the values of investments at, any given
time.

5. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value.

The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be
utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
I  assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30:

Common stocks

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

Common stocks

Equity mutual funds
U.S. Treasury bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bond mutual funds

Level 1

$  744,873 $
215,908

503,538

109.001

2020

Level 2

244,045

Total

744,873

215,908

503,538
244,045

109.001

$ 1.573.320 $ 244.045 $ t.817.365

Level 1

$  738,894 $
258,423
487,823

113.591

2019

Level 2

255,204

Total

738,894

258,423
487,623

255,204
113.591

$ 1.598.531 $ 255.204 S 1.853.735

The fair value for Level 2 assets is primarily based on market prices of comparable or underlying
securities, interest rates, and credit risk, using the market approach for the Organization's
investments.

6. Property and Equipment '

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2020 2019

Land, buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Software

Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$ 5,659,096 $ 5,539,240
338,588 318,374

285,083
706,407
33.191

278,083
706,407

33.191

7,022,365 6,875,295
■ (4.095.9471 f3.824.0561

$ 2.926.418 $ 3.051.239
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7. Endowment

The Organization's endowment primarily consists of funds established for certain programs
provided by the Organization. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and
funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required by U.S. GAAP,
net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Directors
to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization has interpreted the State of New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (the Act) as allowing the Organization to spend or accumulate the amount of
an endowment fund that the Organization determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes
and duration for which the endowment fund is established, subject to the intent of the donor as
expressed in the gift agreement. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization has included in
net assets with perpetual donor restrictions (1) the original value of gifts donated to be maintained
in perpetuity, (2) the original value of subsequent gifts to be maintained in perpetuity, and (3) the
accumulation to the gifts to be maintained in perpetuity made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. If the donor-
restricted endowment assets earn investment returns beyond the amount necessary to maintain
the endowment assets' contributed value, that excess is included in net assets with donor
restrictions until appropriated by the Board of Directors and, if applicable, expended in accordance
with the donors' restrictions. The Organization has interpreted the Act to permit spending from
funds with deficiencies in accordance with the prudent measures required under the Act. Funds
designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments are classified as net assets
without donor restrictions.

In accordance with the Act, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the Organization and the dohor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions;
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Organization; and
(7) The investment policies of the Organization.

Spending Pollcv

Effective for the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization implemented a total return spending
rate policy which limits the amount of investment income used to support current operations. The
long-term target is to limit the use of the endowment to 4% of the moving average of the market
value of the investments over the previous twelve quarters ending June 30 of the prior fiscal year.
In 2019, the Board of Directors elected to forego the newly adopted spending policy until 2020. In
2020 and 2019, the Board of Directors approved an appropriation of $45,017 and $40,000,
respectively, to support current operations.
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Return Oblectives and Risk Parameters

;

The Organization has adopted investment policies,, approved by the Board of Directors, for
endowment assets that attempt to maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over
the long term. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of
return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual
distribution with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets are invested in a well-diversified
asset mix. which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to result in a consistent
inflation-protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual distribution of
accumulated interest and dividend income to be reinvested or used as needed, while growing the
funds if possible. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. Investment risk is
measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset
classes and strategies are managed to reduce the exposure of the fund to unacceptable levels of
risk.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or the Act requires the Organization to retain as a
fund of perpetual duration. Deficiencies result from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred
shortly after the investment of new contributions with donor-imposed restrictions to be maintained
in perpetuity and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by the
Board of Directors. The Organization has a policy that permits spending from underwater
endowment funds, unless specifically prohibited by the donor or relevant laws and regulations. Any
deficiencies are reported in net assets with donor-imposed restrictions. There were no deficiencies
of this nature as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Endowment Composition and Changes in Endowment

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - $ 275,595 $ 275,595

Board-designated endowment funds 1.586.877 : 1.586.877

$  1.586.877 $ 275.595 $ 1.862.472
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The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows;

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

Endowment net assets, June 30,. 2019

Investment return

Amount appropriated for expenditure
Appropriated funds not drawn from investments

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2020

26,622
(41,055)
4.904

4,738
(3,962)

The endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Donor-restricted endowment funds

Board-designated endowment funds

. Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  - $ 274,819 $

1.596.406 :

Total

$  1,596,406 $ 274,819 $ 1,871,225

31,360
(45,017)
4.904

$  1.586.877 $ 275.595 $ 1.862.472

Total

274,819

1.596.406

$  1.596.406 $ 274.819 $ 1.871.225

The changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2018

Investment return

Amount appropriated for expenditure

Endowment net assets," June 30, 2019

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

$  1,544,023 $ 259,272 $

92,383 15,547
(40.0001 :

Total

1,803,295

107,930

(40.0001

$  1.596.406 • $ 274.819 $ 1.871.225
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8. Debt Obligations

Line of Credit

The Organization maintains a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit with TD Bank, collateralized by a
mortgage on real property and substantially all business assets, carrying a variable interest rate of
TD base rate plus 0.00%. Interest is payable monthly. The line of credit had no outstanding
balance at June 30, 2020 or 2019. The line of credit agreement has a maturity date of February 28,
2021.

Notes Payable

The Organization had the following notes payable:

2020 2019

Note payable to TD Bank. Under the terms of the note payable,
monthly principal and interest payments of $8,114 are due
through February 2024, at which time a balloon payment for
the remaining principal is due. Interest rate is fixed at 5.33%;
collateralized by mortgaged property. Subsequent to year
end, the Board of Directors approved repayment in full on the
remaining balance on the note payable to TD Bank. $ 783,536 $ 836,858

Note payable to TD Bank. Under the terms of the note payable,
monthly principal and interest payments of $4,768 are due
through February 2024, at which time a balloon payment for
the remaining principal is due. Interest rate is fixed at 5.35%;
collateralized by mortgaged property. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority. Subsequent to year end, the Board of 601,005 624,817
Directors approved repayment in full on the remaining
balance on the note payable to TD Bank.

PPP loan to TD Bank borrowed in April 2020 obtained under
a provision of the Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act). A portion or all of the PPP loan
will be forgiven if the Organization meets certain
requirements. Any amount not forgiven is to be repaid over
two years at a fixed interest rate of 1%. On October 23,
2020, management submitted its application for
forgiveness and has yet to receive approval. This loan is
unsecured.

Less: unamortized deferred issuance costs

Total notes payable, net of unamortized deferred
issuance costs

3,436,825 1,461,675
(3371 (1.184)

; 3.436.488 $ 1.460.491
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The scheduled maturities on notes payable are as follows:

2021 $ 917,917
2022 , 1,302,222
2023 90,972
2024 1,125,714

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense.

TD Bank requires that the Organization meet certain financial covenants. The Organization was in
compliance with covenants as of June 30, 2020. ,

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Insurance

The Organization insures its medical malpractice risks on a claims-made basis. At June 30, 2020,
there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be
settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or
incidents known to management which require loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

10. Tax Deferred Annuitv Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) employer-sponsored retirement plan. Employees are eligible
to participate as of the date of hire. Effective July 1, 2017, Organization established a matching
contribution of 100% of employee deferrals up to 3% of eligible compensation. Effective July 1,
2019. the Organization increased the matching contribution to 100% of employee deferrals up to
5% of eligible compensation. In order to be eligible for the match, an employee must work or earn
a year of service, which is defined as at least 1,000 hours during the 12-month period immediately
following date of hire. In addition the Organization may elect to provide a discretionary contribution.
There was no discretionary contribution made for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
Expenses associated with this plan were $282,823 and $141,033 for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. ^

11. Uncertaintv

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a
global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of COVID-19 by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group gatherings. Most sectors are
experiencing disruption to business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed
government reimbursement. The Coronavirus Preparedness and Response Supplemental
Appropriations Act of 2020 provides several relief measures to allow flexibility to providers to
deliver critical care. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic,
its potential economic ramifications, and additional government actions to mitigate them.
Accordingly, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the related
financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.
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The U.S. government has responded with three phases of relief legislation, as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Recent legislation was enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the
CARES Act, a statute to address the economic impact of the COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act,
among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to distressed businesses by establishing, and
providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans, 2) provides additional funding for grants and
technical assistance, and 3) delays due dates for employer payroll taxes and estimated tax
payments for organizations. Management has evaluated the impact of the CARES Act on the
Organization, including its potential benefits and limitations that may result from additional funding
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BETTEJEAN NEVEUX
FINANCIAL & MANAGERIAL STRATEGIST

L

SKILLS

Budgeting & Forecasting

Analysis & Reporting

Ethics & Compliance

Strategic Planning

Team Leadership

Project Management

Accountability

Improving Efficiency

Business Systems

Risk & Resource Management

Presentations

Active Listening

EDUCATION

MASTER'S DEGREE

Business Administration

Southern New Hampshire

University
2009-2011

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE
Accounting

Franklin Pierce College
1998 - 2000

UCENSES &

CERTIFICATIONS

CERTIFIED MANAGEMENT

ACCOUNTANT

License #51807

CANDIDATE

Certified Public Accountant

Anticipated; 05/2018

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

A financial professional with over ten years of managerial and administrative experience
in a diverse set of industries and with a proven record of innovation and leadership. With
a focus on continuous improvement and a holistic approach. I am able to reach strategic
goals through the use of collaboration, technology and grit. Leading by example. I have
successful restored confidence and respect in financial departments while focusing on
customer service and a commitment to the corporate mission.

EXPERIENCE

BUSINESS AFFAIRS OFFICER/CFO

Manchester Community College/March 2014 - October 2015

As a member of the President's Cabinet and Leadership Team, developed policies and
procedures to allow the College to meet its mission and strategic focus. Successfully
managed an overall budget of $22 million by working with department managers over
60different departments. PirecIed'an'Thst'iIuIiQriai ope'rations Including accounting &
finance, facilities, campus safety, capital projects as well as risk management. Mentored
eight (8) direct reports and a total of 29 total employees in the areas of finance,
maintenance, safety, reception and stockroom. Participated in system-wide CFO
meetings as well as Finance Committee meetings on behalf of the College.

•  Developed a more collaborative and positive annual budget process during a
period of revenue decline. Presented audience appropriate updates and pro
forma statements throughout year to campus leadership. BOD, staff & faculty
and advisory committees.

•  Greatly increased accuracy of financial reporting and adherence to GAAP
through the realignment of cost departments, and improvements to the data
structure within Banner Finance.

•  Created financial models and tools that allowed management and department
leaders to project financial impacts of various enrollment scenarios.

•  Increased fee revenue by 10% following thorough financial analysis. «»-
•  Overhauled campus safetv systems and procedures to better ensure the safety

of students, staff, faculty and visitors. Improvements included; a remote door
locking system, camera and surveillance upgrades, rekeyingof the entire
campus and the installation of security software.

•  Implemented software that enabled the facilities department to capture and
analyze workforce data that would allow management to identify and capitalize
on potential personnel efficiencies and better plan for deferred maintenance.

•  Introduced the concept of long-term forecasts for the benefit of strategic
budgeting.

•  Re-engineered adjunct contract process, improving accuracy by 75%.
• - implemented P-Card program to over 50 users.
•  Verified donor and grant funding spent in accordance with donor intent or grant

guidelines.
Provided ongoing feedback to subordinates and created development plans
that encouraged growth and satisfaction for each employee.
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H

FINANCIAL & MANAGERIAL STRATEGIST

TECHNI GAL

SKILLS

Microsoft Office Suite

Advanced Excel

Banner,

Salesforce

Conga Reporting

Blackbaud

Dashboards

SageMIP.MAS90

QuickBooks

Graphical representations

School Dude

t .

MEMBERSHIPS &

AFFILIATIONS

Notary Public

Institute of Management
'  Accountants

Delta Mu Delta

VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE

Rape and Domestic Crisis
Center/Treasurer

1992-1994

EXPERIENCE continued

VICE PRESIDENT FORFINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

New Hampshire Association for the Blind/September 2011 - May 2014

Collaborated with other members of management to review, select and monitor
organizational opportunities. Managed all financial and administrative matters
Including, HR, IT, and facility functions.

•  Managed $2.5 million annual budget process and provided monthly financials
and respective analysis to Board of Directors and Management Team.

•  Improved the financial story through the creation of visual dashboards
supplementing the monthly financial package.

•  Ensured proper application of investment and spending policies to the
organization's $7 million endowment and Charitable Gift Annuities.

• • Reduced Life and LTD costs by 60% and other contractual expenses by 50%
through re-negotiations with vendorsr^

•  Prepared all year-end audit schedules, maintained all supporting
documentation for 990 filing, and completed monthly and annual
reconciliations.

•  Calculated annual compensation from endowment fund and other donor
restricted funds.

•  Mapped and managed data conversion of ciient data from legacy system to
Salesforce.com and designed an automatic invoicing system resulting in
personnel;savings through work efficiencies.

•  Enhanced data integrity and improved financial reporting through .
improvements zo the GL structure and updated financial software.

1

ACCOUNTANT

New Hampshire Association for the Blind/November 2005 - September 2011

Performed all accounting duties for the organization including payroll. A/R, A/P as well
as providing IT and HR support. As part of a succession plan and expected assumption
of VPFA position, progressive responsibilities included completion of the monthly
close process, preparation of year end schedules for annual audit and 990 preparation.

DEPARTMENT SECRETARY/ADMISSIONS COORDINATOR

Catholic Medical Center/August 1996 - October 2004

While performing all duties relative to being a stay at home Mom, I worked in the
healthcare industry to take advantage of the weekend and evening hours. In this role,
I performed all administrative duties within the admissions, emergency and maternity
departments for catholic medical center. Utilized customer service, listening and time
management skills to ensure excellent patient care.

CONSUMER LOAN RECOVERY MANAGER

First New Hampshire Bank/September 1990 - May 1996

Managed all collection efforts for the recovery of charged off funds related to the
consumer loan portfolio. Directed a staff of six (6) and assigned outside legal counsel
and collection agencies ensuring greatest recovery of funds.
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Christopher Purington

Honors

NH State Rehabilitation Council Chair 2020-Present, Member 2016-Present

NH Small Business Development Center Advisory Board Member 2011-2016
US Small Business Administration (SBA) 2011.NH Business Champion

Business Development

Marketing
Program Development

Resource Development

Skills

Leadership

Entrepreneurshlp

Organizational Change

Strategic Planning

Operations

Budget Management
Nonprofit Administration

Project Management

Experience

GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING fGSIL^ - Concord. NH

Statewide nonprofit that provides community services

Senior Vice President of Programs

Vice President of Community Economic Development

Director of Business Development

2020 - Present

2015 - 2020

2011 - 2015

Lead a $17 million statewide community services department that serves 1,800 people, and Is
comprised of 75 corporate staff, 600 direct support staff, and diverse programs, grants & contracts
including personal care, nursing facility transition, employment, education, benefits counseling,
transportation, home access modification, peer support, advocacy, and service coordination.

Secured and successfully implemented a $2.2 million Dept. of Education contract, including
partnerships with the Community College System of NH and 50+ statewide school districts, to
provide work-based learning services for 1,000+ at-risk high school students throughout NH.

Manage the department budget and develop new financial strategies, which resulted in a $500,000
deficit improving to a $100,000 surplus and program revenue increasing'by more than $1 million.

Develop significant funding resources necessary to increase community impact and respond to
unmet community need through the following sources: foundations, school districts. Social Security
Admin., US & NH Dept. of Education, US & NH Dept. of Health and Human Services, OS & NH Dept.
of Transportation, Medicaid,Managed Care, US Dept. of Veterans Affairs, and community giving.

Strategize and partner with key stakeholders, state and federal agencies, state and US legislature,
the Governor's office, and other elected officials to accomplish key strategic plan priorities.

Oversee staff development efforts and coaching for continual improvement of performance.

Implement policies and procedures necessary for program quality and integrity that ensure
compliance with federal and. state funding sources and regulations.

Directed agency wide marketing efforts. This includes a new outreach campaign that increased
annual employment services revenue by $200,000, and a new care attendant recruitment digital
campaign that delivered more than 10% of all new hires, supporting $1.5M in Medicaid revenue.

HEALTHY BODY HEALTHY UFE - Auburn. NH 2009 - Present

Nutrition, fitness & health coaching and employee wellness consulting

Project Manager

> Manage digital marketing and strategic planning projects for healthvbodvhealthvlife.com.
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GATEWAYS COMMUNITY SERVICES - Nashua. NH 2009 - 2011

Regional nonprofit that provides disability and senior services

Project Manager/Web Marketing Manager

> Managed Medicaid Infrastructure Grant efforts to evolve statewide employment programs, benefits
counseling, and vocational training models, h

>  Facilitated the workforce development coalition, which was a collaboration of regional service
providers, stakeholders and related government agencies for professional development and the
advancement of employment service delivery.

> Directed small business and economic development program creation and replication,
business relationships, contracts, and budgets.

> Developed a customer portal for clients to access statements, submit electronic forms,
communicate with customer agents, and Increase customer service productivity and
efficiency in a secure online environment.

> Managed company wide digital marketing including email marketing and social media. This
included developing and administering an online community membership site for the Autism
Center to connect families and promote therapy services.

GEARBOX RACOUETBALL- San Dieoo. CA 2007 - 2013

International athletic equipment manufacturer

Sponsored Athlete & Marketing Representative

> Volunteered to coach junior, racquetball athletes.

> Marketed company's product line by running demos and competing on the professional tour.

> Ranked on the International Racquetball Tour for the '05—'06 season.

COMMUNITY BRIDGES - Concord. NH 2007 - 2008

Regional nonprofit that provides disability and senior services

Career Development Specialist

> Created and managed the Vocational Department, which included administering funding
1 relationships, directing service provision, supervising staff, and leading trainings.

> Coached job seekers, including clients with forensic backgrounds, and consulted with staff,
management, and partner agencies in the areas of employment law> staffing, training, and
benefits to support client career goals.

> Developed relationships with businesses and staffing agencies to make supportive and
sustainable job placements.

Education

Leadership Greater Manchester- Manchester Chamber of Commerce
In progress

Certificate in Community Rehabilitation Education - VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH UNIV.
Focus on mental health

Lean Green Belt Certification - MORE EFFECTIVE CONSULTING

Focus on continual business process improvement

B.A. in Psychology - UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Purington 2
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Cyntbia L. Whitaker, Psy.P»

Education:'

^  - Antioch New England Graduate School, Keene, NH
Psy.D. in Clinical Psychology, 2006

^  , I *.

UniversiCy of New Hampshire.at Manchester, Manchester, NH ■
Certificate in Sign Language Interpretation, 2004

Rhode Island College, Providence, RI '
B.A: in Psychology and Communications with Honors, 1995
Communications emphasis in Speech and Hearing Sciences

C  - '■ ^
-  - Clinical Experience: ; \ ,

^ t RiYerbend Community Mental Health Henniker, NH 8/05'pr^cnt
Child and Family Therapist ■ i -

•  Presently engaged in worldng with a multidisciplin^'team that provides
.mental health services to children and dieir faimlies. Positipn includes
provision of individual therapy, family therapy, case mtogement, and . '-

. advocacy. Coordination with other providers and schools is also involved in
" ' the position.'Psychology post-doctorate supervision received from 4/06 - •
•  ̂ throii^present.; ■' . ' r . '

S T i ^ ' 1 > ^ . • 1 •

, Moore Center Services ' Manchester, NH 12/02-6/05
MIMS Worker/Supervisor

Provided Mental Illness Management Services (MIMS) to children and
•  . ' ^ adults diagnosed vnth both a mentalillness, and a developmental disability.

^  , Responsibilities included supervising part-time staff, managing staff
"  . schedules^ other administrative duties, and direct support of consumers •

.  involving teaching symptom management strategies and social skills as
directed by consumers'treatment plans.

■ Univemty at Albany Counseling Center Albany, NY 7/01-7/02
^  Ellis Hospital Mental Health Clinic Schenectady, NY

Pre^octoral Intern in Psychology
'  APPIC accredite;d internship with focused training in two distinct settings, a

t  university counseling center and a commiinity mental health c^tcr. Core *
'  activities included in^e assessment and referral, individual and group

psychotherapy, crisis intervention in role as "psychologist of the .day," « ,
individual superyision of second year doctoral studelit, group supe^ision of
undergraduate peer trainers, and psychological assessment. Also received ■ '

■  advanced training on the Rorschachlnkblot Procedure. Training at commuDity
mental health center, focused on assessment and therapy with adiilts diagnosed
with major mental illness and/or personality disorders in an ou^atient setting.
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'  C. Whitaker 2

Monadnock Developmental Services Keene, NH 8/99-6/01
Group Facilitator • -

Responsible for co-facilitating a monthly.group for children who have a
,  sibling with some type of physical or developmental disability, such as

.autism, leukemia, or cerebral palsy. The group included both exj^essive and
■  , process components and dealt with topics such as roles within a'family and

. - shame. ' .. • / ,

Wediko.Children's Services. ^ Windsor, NH ' 9/00-^/01
Assistant Teacher (AmeriCorps Position)

,  Intensive diagnostic and tr^tment program that utilizes assessment, ̂
education, and behayioral inteivention with males ranging in age from' 8 to 18

'  who have emphonal and/or behavioral challenges. Responsibilities included
assis^g'lead teacher wiA academic material presented in classroom, teaching

,  elective classes, implementahg Individualized Education Pl^s (lEPs), and ^
^  carrying out other duties necessary to maintain the therapeutic milieu of the"

A  residehlial school. . - ^ . ,

*■ Psychological Services Center Keene, NH 8/99-5/01 -
Administrative Assistant

Assisted with'the administration of a psychology training clinic, including
'  mana^g billing clients and insurance agencies and coordinating referrals for '

iseri^ce; Also involved in the instruction of first year, students with the usage;
;  ru * of scoring templates for the MMPI-2 and other testing materials owned by the

"clinic. • . ' , . " ' '

.  ̂ Antioch Ni^ En^and Graduate School. Keene, NH -- . Fall 2000'
.Teaching Assistant for Fundamental Clinical Skills I and IL .

,  Provided instruction;to first year doctorallevel students on Utilizing
confrontatiort in therapy^d on giving mental status ex^ihations/Facilitated-

,  small groups of students practicing and leaming about bepnnihg counseling.
' ' < and assessment techniques; i^so responsible for reading papers and providing

r" . feedback to studehts about their developing skills. '
*  ' ' ~s . » !''• . ^ •

Psychological Services Center Keene, NH 7/99-6/00
PSC'Clihician , ■ . - v, ~ ,

^ Pre-doctpral practicum experience involving working with adults, families,"
', . ' and children in ah outpatient setting. Received specialized training in cardiac

'  - rehabilitation, coimseling parents, conducting learning disability assessments,
arid wprMhg with p^ple with eating disorders. .

New Hampshire Hospital Concord, NH 9/98-5/99 .
psychology Extern ^

' Pre-doctbral training in assessment and therapy with adults diagnosed wi^
- major mental illness and/orpersonaJity disorders in an inpatiem setting.
"Monthly seininars attended included NeuropsycholOgy, Case Presentation,
and Assessment (Rorschach). Also attended bi-weekly Grand Rounds. -
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C. Whitaker 3

Arbour-Fufler Hospital S. Attleboro, MA 10/95-2/^
Activity Therapist /Behavior Therapy Specialist

• Attended te^ meetings, determin^ rehabilitation goals for treatment plans, •
' supervised activity therapy intake screenings, and conducted daily

rehabilitaMon groups on a locked, acute unit for adolescCTts. Responsibilities
also included implementing behavior plans, collecting data, and conducting
different types of group therapy, on a locked, acute unit for adults with
developmental disabilities.

Leadership Experience:

B^'uty4Ashes
Member,'Board of Directors 2004-pre9ent

New Hampshire Registry of Interpreters for-the Deaf
Member at Large of Executive Board ' , 2004-2005

-• Student Representative to Executive Board 2002-2004
^  ̂ I 'i

ASL 'Club at the University of New Hampshire at Manchester ̂
' President , . 2002-2003

Antioch New-England Graduate School
.  ' Member, Admission Team Spring 2000& 2001

'  'Reviewed written applications of prospective students. Also conducted team
/  and individual interviews and collaborated in final selections of students.

- Research Experience: . , ;
^Antioch New England Graduate School' Keene, NH'^ 2.000-2006,.
Dbsertation Research . , '

Coraploipidi^seinatioTicntitXcdThe Third Party: Psychologists'Attitudes
.Regarding the Use of Interpreters in Therapy.

O
Antioch New England Graduate School Keene, NH 9/99-8/00
Student Member of Internal Rmew Board (IRB) . '

* Attended monthly-IRB meetings, read research proposals, and.collaborated
• with other team members to provide recommendations to researchers.

Butler Hospital, Providence, RI 12/94-9/97
Volunt^r Research Coordinator & Assistant

; Under the supervision of Caron Zlotnick, Ph.D., responsible for coordinating a
research project on Adolescent Suicide Atteinpters and Jdeators, which ••
involved a clinical assessment and report of each adolescent.rAlso scored,

■  entered, and analyzed data on patients in the Women's Treatment Program at
^  the hospital. Position required extensive knowledge of the SAS system.
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;  - X. Whitaker 4

Papers and Presentations:
The Third Party: What are Psychologists'. Opinions of Interpreters in Therapy.

^ Presented at the Region I Conference of the Registry of fhterpreters for the Deaf.
Providence, RI. July 2006

^  Anxiety and Stress Management the Natural Way. Presented .workshop at the Spihal
Corrective Center in Amherst, NH. May 2006 ' . .

•1. , • '

Mental 'Illness Management Services. Presented workshop at Riverbend Mental
Health Center for staff training purposes. May 2006

'  / Transitions for Parents. Developed program designed to explore parental roles in
freshman transitions ai.the University at Albany. June 2002

•  tv

ay Developed document providing information about college •
studenb' use of alcohol and other drugs and parental roles in moderating that was
.placcdonawebsiteforparentsat'theUniversityatAlbany. June2002

■  • s . . ' _ - _
Depression and fKdmew.'Presented workshop to a sorority at the University at
Albany . April 2002 . ■' * - '

•i ^

Stress Management. Presented a workshop to a ̂ up of Residential Assistants on the
University'at Albany campus. April 2002

'  ̂ ( 4 • • • -
Handbook ofInterpreting in Mental Health Settings: Unpublished Manuscript,

-'University of New Hampshire, at Manchester. May 2000 • * I
'  i- I ' # ' • ' I

Family Functioning and Loneliness in Adolescent Suicide Ideators and A ttempters. -
Presented paper at 32nd Annual Conference of the American Association of
, Suicidology. April 1999

'Gender arid Memory. Presented at the Foiirth Annual Undergraduate Research
Conference at Rhode Island College. Spring 1995

* •' , Professional Affiliations:
• < " American Psychological Association • .

APA Division 12, Clinical Psychology .
APA Division 22, Rehabilitation Psychology

Special lnterest Section on Deafness
I  New Hampsliire Association of the Deaf

New Hampshire Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team (DBHRT)
Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf » ' "

New H^pshire Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf
Weare Citizens Emergency Response Team (CERT)

Languages of Fluency:
■  ' American Sign Language (ASL)
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DONNA B. LENNON, MA

EDUCATION; M.A. Counseling & Psychotherapy, RIvier University, 1984.
B.S. Behavioral Sciences, cumlaude, Hawthorne College,1982.

EMPLOYMENT: Donna Lennon Counseling Services, LLC
Concord and Bedford, New Hampshire
Feb 1992 - July 2010 and March 2017 to present
Director of Group practice - Outpatient Services

Psychotherapy and consulting practice for Mental Health &
Substance Use Disorders. Provide comprehensive evaluations for
EAP's, schools and legal system. Required extensive collaboration
\with 8 colleagues, MCO's, employers, healthcare providers and
insurers.

Easter Seals Farnum Center - August 2015 - August 2017
I  Clinical Director-Inpatlent and Outpatient Services

As member of Sr. Leadership Team, responsible for management
of daily clinical operations including clinical supervision of inpatient
and outpatient staff. Manage lOP, Continuing Care and therapy
groups, execute treatment strategies, facilitate weekly Clinical
supervision group. Provide clinical direction for Program
Coordinators on detox, residential and outpatient units. Hire, train
and develop staff in accordance with best practices.

Gosnold on Cape Cod - Falmouth, MA - July 2010 - July 2015
Program Clinical Director
Leadership of dally operations of clinical & case management staff,
resolve challenges, develop process and performance improvement
strategies, review clinical documentation, hire, train & supervise
clinical staff conduct performance appraisals; monitor budget with
CFO, ensuring compliance with NAADAG, NBCC, HIPAA & The Joint
Commission standards, ethics and best practices for 50 bed detox..
Write clinical programs for patients while providing extensive
collaboration with Nursing, Admissions, Utilization Review and other
Clinical Program staff at various Gosnold work sites (inpatient rehab
and outpatient).

Resource Management Consultants - Salem, NH Jul '90-Jul '91
EAP services and account management to client business &
industry, hospital & educational systems employees and their
families. Delivered supervisory training to management staff,
assessment and referral, develop Lunch n'Learn sessions for staff.
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Bedford Counseling Associates - Bedford, NH 2/90-9/91
Developed, marketed and delivered training programs for local
community regarding addiction, family recovery, intervention &
treatment. Provided outpatient therapy for individuals, families &
groups affected by trauma & addiction.

Manchester High School West - Manchester, NH 8/87 -10/89
Implemented the first formal Student Assistance Program for a
student body and faculty of 1850. Established and facilitated
comprehensive support groups, program budget, developed and
chaired SAP Advisory Board and marketed program to ensure
viability and expansion of program via Mayor and Aldermahic
Committee to ALL High School AND Junior High Schools in the
city of Manchester. Initiated state-wide NH-SAP Providers Group,
trained "Core Team" of faculty, delivered parent education program
re: addiction and recovery. Developed all brochures & marketing
materials for program. ***NOMINATED*** for US Dept of Ed's
"Drug Free Schools & Communities Program Award for top ten
programs in the U.S.

COMPCARE/Lake Shore Hospital - Manchester, NH 12/85-5/87
Clinical Leader of Multi-disciplinary Tx Team. Facilitated delivery of
quality treatment services for patients and families, supervised Tx
Team, provided substance use & mental health evaluations.
Developed community education programs for families affected by

'' addiction and trauma.

Digital Equipment Corporation - Nashua, NH & Concord, MA
March 1878 - December 1985

MR Department Personnel Services Administrator and promoted to
Personnel Specialist with Corporate HR, EE Benefits
Administration, Organizational Development and EE Relations.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
National Association of Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors
NH Mental Health Counselors Association

Former staff member of NH Teen Institute

Former: Manchester Aldermanic Committee on Substance Abuse

LICENSING:

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor-NH

Master Licensed Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselor-NH
Certified Advanced Alcohol & Drug Abuse Couns-MA- CADCII

PROFESSIONAL

REFERENCES: Will be furnished upon request.
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Ellen Constant

WORK EXPERIENCE

Human Resources Manager
WIndham Group • Manchester. NH - January 2003 to September 2015

Responsibilities

•Hired to develop the Human Resources Department for Windham Group with locations throughout New

England and down the east coast to Fl.

'Reported to the President of the company and was part of (he Senior Leadership team to oversee the Human

Resources and areas of the administration ftjnction.

•Accountable for maintaining compliance with Federal law and state laws for NH, ME, VT, MA. CT, R). VA,

PA. MD and FL.

•Responsible for all employee relation issues. Focused on training of the management team to avoid

issues. Trainirtg included counseling for Improved performance, appropriate documentation and reward and

recognition.

•Responsible for developing, Implementing and administrating all HR policies and procedures which included:

recruiting, new hire orientation, performance management, compensation, termination, wortcers comp issues,

safety committee, and backup for payroll

•Recruited for all positions In New England and country wide for Ergonomists and Nurses. Used various

recruiting methods to get staff in all 50 states.

•Negoteted and managed medical, dental, vision, life and disability plans for employees. Held open enrollment

meetings.

•Responsible for the 401 k plan and year end reporting.

•Implemented new benefits which included: flexible spending accounts, paid time off plan, anniversary

recognition benefit, employee newsletter, lunch & learns and monthly spotlights.

•Rolled out companywide performance management program with quarterly reviews.

•Training and development for all managers and supervisors on various topics that included: Employee

Recognition. FMLA, Federal Discrimination Laws, Documenting Disciplinary Actions, FLSA and Sexual

Harassment

•Oversaw Internship program - worked with local colleges and universities for successful placement and

experience.

•Assisted in the management of profit centers by training department heads on budgets, profrt statements,

redirecting workloads and sharing "of information between each other.in order to maintain profitability and

appropriate gross margin.

Accomplishments

Helped to grow the company and retain excellent employees. Employee retention was 5% or below annually

Implemented:

Performance management program to tie objectives to corporate goals.

Ernployee Engagement to connect employees to company and each other

New and better benefits to keep up with the competition

Training and development of new Supervisors and Managers
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Skills Used

Listening. Approachability, Training, Communication,Interpersonal skills

Technical skills as it relates to HR fundamentals end law

Human Resources Manager
Royal & Sun Aillance • Boston. MA • September1986 to September 2002

Responsibilities

•Partnered with 15-20 Managers and Supervisors to provide Human Resource consultation and leadership in
the New England and Boston locations.

•Assisted with all employee relation issues, recruiting, benefit plans, compensation management, training &
development and retirement ber>eflts for up to 200 employees.

•Rolled out a competency based performance management system and trained supervisors. mar>agers and

employees In both plan content and tying objectives to busir>ess strategy

•Actively participated with department heads in writing performance objectives and monitoring quality
performance benchmarks.

' *Led HR function during acquisition of Orion Capital in Massachusetts, New Hampshire. Vermont and Maine
including change (acliitation. plan mergers, staffing, downsizing and office closures.

•Successfully managed the local benefits plan administration including medical/dental, 401K, employee stock

purchase plans, and coordination of annual open enrollments/new benefit presentations and rollouts.

•Trained supervisors and managers on employee relations, sexual harassment, performance management

and diversity.

•Oversaw all nonrexempt and exempt staff in the processing units. Staffs ranged from 10-16 employees.
•Managed the hiring, cross training and performance management for the processing units.

•Exceeded goals within the unit annually

Accomplishments

Consistently helped both offices meet the combined ratio goals for the year /

Over^w over 200 employees HR needs as the HR Generalist for both offices

Assisted with the acquisition of Orion Capital

Skills Used

lnterpersor>al skills, Change management. Performance management. Listening skills. Solid knowledge of HR

EDUCATION ^

Bachelors of Science In Management
Southern NH University • Manchester, NH

SKILLS

Employee relations (10+ years). Benefits (10+ years). Recruiting (10+ years). Compensation (9 years),
Training (10+ years), strategic partner (10+ years), talent acquisition (10+ years), leadership (10+ years), on
boarding (10+ years), change agent (10+ years)

CERTIFICATIONS

SPHR

January 2018
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8HRM

SHRM-3CP

January 2015 to January 2013
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CURRICULUM VITAE

Marilou B. PataMnJug Tyner, M.D., FAPA

L.

Employment

2003-2010

I

2003-2008

2008-2009

2007 - 2009

2010-2011 '

2010-2013

2007-2013

2008-2013

2013-Current

2013-Current

Certification / LIcensure

1987-1995

2002 - 2003

2002 - 2004

2003 - Current

2003 - Current

2005 - Current

2013-2023

2015-2025

Outpatient Psychiatry, HBHS dba Process Strategies
376 Kenmore Drive, Danville, WV 25053

Outpatient Psychiatry, H6HS dba Process Strategies
163 Main Street, Clay, WV 25043

Tele-psychiatry for Prestera Center, Clay County based at
Prestera Center, 511 Morris Street, Charleston, Wy 25301

Tele-psychiatry for PsyCare, Inc. for the
Potomac Highland Regional Jail and Central Regional Jail, WV

Tele-psychiatry for Prestera Center, Boone County
based at Process Strategies office

Medical Director, Assessment Unit (TPC Program), Highland Hospital
300 56*^ Street, Charleston, WV 25304

Psychiatry Consult for Cabin Creek Health Centers in Dawes, WV,
Clendenin, WV and SIssonville, WV; Tele-psychiatry for all three sites
since March 2010, teased at Process Strategies office

Outpatient Psychiatry, Process Strategies
1418A MacCorkle Avenue, Charleston. WV 25303

Chief Medical Officer, Highlarid-Clarksburg Hospital
3 Hospital Plaza, Clarksburg, WV 26301

Forensic Psychiatry Unit, Highland-Clarksburg Hospital'
3 Hospital Raza, Clarksburg. WV 26301

Physician LIcensure, Philippines
Physician LIcensure, State of Connecticut
Physician Limited Permit, New/ York
Physician Licensure, West Virginia
Diplomate in Psychiatry,
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc.
Certification in Forensic Psychiatry
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc.
Maintenance of Certification in Psychiatry,
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc.
Maintenance of Certification in Forensic Psychiatry
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology. Inc.
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Education

1983 B.S.

1987 M.D.

Postd octoral Train Ing

1987-1988

1989-1991

1991 -1992

1998 - 2002

2001 - 2002

2002 - 2003

Other Professional Positions

1993

1993-1994

1994-1998

Awards and Honors

1983

1983

1983

1992

2002

Psychology, University of the Philippines College of Arts and Sciences
Quezon City. Philippines
University of the Philippines CoDege of Medicine
Manila, Philippines

Postgraduate Internship, Philippine General Hospital
Manila, Philippines
Residency Training, Psychiatry
Philippine General Hospital, Manila, Philippines
Chief Resident, Psychiatry
Philippine General Hospital, Manila, Phtiippines
Residency Training, Psychiatry
NYU School of Medicine, New York, NY 10016
Chief Resident, Psychiatry
Outpatient Division Chief Resident (Juiy-Decemt>er 2001)
Administrative Chief Resident (January-June 2002)
NYU School of Medicine, New York, NY 10016
Fellowship Training, Forensic Psychiatry
NYU School of Medicine, New York. NY 10016

Research Associate, Intercare Research Foundation, Inc.
Metro Manila, Philippines
Research Assistant, Research Foundation for Mental Hygiene
Research based at Kirby Forensic Psychiatric Center
Wards' Island, NY 10035
Research Scientist, Nathan S. KJine Institute
Research based at Kirby Forensic Psychiatric Center
Wards'Island, NY 10035

Cum Laude, BS Psychology, University of the Philippines
Phi Kappa Phi Honor Society, University of the Philippines,
PI Gamma Mu Honor Society, University of the Philippines
Ciba-Geigy Fellowship Grant In Administrative Psychiatry
Aventis Women Leaders Fellowship,
American Psychiatric Association Annual Meeting. Philadelphia

Membership in Professional Societies

2000 - 2010 Member, Amen'can Psychiatric Association
2010 - Current Fellow, American Psychiatric Association
2002 - Current Member, American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law
2002 - Current Member, NYU-Bellevue Psychiatric Society
2008 - Current Member, American Medical Association
2008 - Current Member, West Virginia State Medical Association
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Teaching Experience

1990-1992

1992-1993

1994-1998

2001 - 2003

2004 - current

2015-current

Training of Trainers in Critical Incident Stress Debriefing
Natior^al Program for Mental Health. Philippines
Lectures In Psychiatry for Physical Therapy Students.
University of the Philippines College of Manila. Philippines
Instmctor, Management of Crisis Situations for Forensics
Klfby Forensic Psychiatric Center. Wards Island, New York
Cllnrcal Instructor, New York University School of Medicine
Clinical Assistant Professor, West Virginia University, CAMC
Department of Behavioral Medicine and Psychiatry, Charleston, WV
Clinical Assistant Professor, West Virginia University School of Medicine,
Morgantown, WV

Research

1. Patalinjug, M.S. and Harmon R.B, (2003) Characteristics of Defendants Charged with Stalking: Preliminary
Look at Referrals to the Forensics Psychiatry Clinic Three Years After the Passage of NY State Stalking
Laws, Presented at the 56*^ Annual Meeting of the American Association of Forensic Sciences, .February
20,2004. Dallas, TX.

2. Convit, A., Wolf, O.T., de Leon. M.J., Patalinjug, M.B., Kandil, E.. Caraos, C., Scherer, A.. Saint Louis, L.,
Cancfo, R. (2001). Volumetric Analysis of the Prefrontal regions: Findings in aging and schizophrenia.
Psychiatry Research: Nei^maging Section. 107:61-73.

3. Hoptman, M.J.. Yates, K.F.. Patalinjug, M.B., Wack, R.C.. and Convit, A (1999). Clinical Prediction of
Assaultive Behavior Among Male Ps^latrtc Patients at a Msudmum-Securtty Forensic Facility. Psychiatric
Services, 50:1461-1466.

4. Patalinjug, M.B.. Convit, A., Hoptman, MJ., Yates. K.F., Dunn, D., Otis, D. (1997) Staff Assaulters vs. Patient
Assaulters in a Forensic Ps^iatrlc Fadllty: is there a Difference? Poster Presentation: Tenth Annual NY State
Office of Mental Health Research Conference. Albany, NY.

5. Convit, A., McHugh, P., de Leon. M., Hoptman. M.. Patalinjug, M. (1997) MRI Volume of the Amygdala: A f^Jew
Reliable Method. Poster Presentation: Tenth Annual NY State Office of Mental Health Research Conference,
AltJany, l*JY. ,

6. Hoptrnan, M., Convft, A; Yates, K.F., Patalinjug. M.B. (1997) Violence and Slowing of the Anterior EEG:
Relation^ips to Impulslvlty. Poster Presentation: Tenth Annual NY State Office of Mental Health Research
Conference, Albany, NY.

7. Bengzon, A.R.A.. Jimenez AL., Bengzon MA. Esquejo D.P.. Tones M.R., Sison-AguUar MA., Salazar M.C.,
Patalinjug M.B. (1994). Programs, Process, Politics, People: The Story of the Department of Health Under the
Aquino Admlnlstratjon. 1986-1992. Submitted to the World Health Organization, Geneva. Switzerland.

8. Jimenez A.L., Torres M.R., Marte B.G.. Patalinjug M.B., Guillergan M.L. (1992) The Estabfishment of a Mental
Health Information System at the Philippine General Hospital Department of Psychiatry, Patient Services
Section: A Preliminary Study. Paper read at the IB*" Annual Convention of fte Philippine Psychiatric-
Association, Manila. Philippines.
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Maureen Ryan

Qualifications Summary:

•  Mission driven, results oriented leader with a strong track record of achieving goal oriented, cost
effective quality outcomes

•  20 years progressive management experience in both the private and public sector
.«.A«.Successful.experience in project management, program design and implementation, strategic

planning, and grant writing

•  Excellent written and verbal communication skills and experienced in public speaking, delivering
presentations and facilitating diverse groups

Professional Experience

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 12/05 • present

Senior Director, Office of Human Services 6/16-present
•  Responsible for providing strategic leadership, direction and administrative oversight for the

Divisions of Family Assistance, Children, Youth, & Families, and Child Support Services; the
Bureaus of Elderly & Adult Services, Homeless & Housing Services; and Community Based
Military Programs; and the Office of Health Equity

•  Oversees the administration and implementation of programs to ensure compliance with state and
federal laws, regulations, and policies; programmatic efficiency and effectiveness; financial
integrity and sustainability; and effective personnel and resource allocation

•  Prbactively identifies critical issues, actions, or decision-points impaaing program administration
and service delivery, such as policy change, legislative mandate, or resource need, and engages
stafTto fully assess the issues and impacts, proactively develop a well-supported strategic plan or
response, and communicate and implement decisions timely

•  Actively mentors and engages OHS senior management in supporting high quality, effective .
management practices by supporting skill development in motivating and leading staff, managing
change, strategic planning, developing innovative solutions, elective program implementation,
data-driven evaluation, and modeling and supporting a professional, accountable workforce

Administrator, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services 8/07 - 6/16
•. Direct the coordination and administration of federal and state funding of statewide homeless

service contracts

•  Direct all bureau activities including contract monitoring, technical assistance, strategic planning,
training and regional problem-solving activities '

•  Coordinate planning efforts for the development of community services and new initiatives
•  Serve as agency representative relative to state homeless service programs, to local, state and
'  federal agencies

Administrator, Bureau of Improvement and Integrity 3/06-8/07
•  Responsible for the overall management of the Continuous Improvement unit of the Bureau of

Improvement and Integrity
•  Direct all aspects of DHHS wide program Quality Assurance reviews including routine program

evaluations, special investigations, work process analysis, and root cause analysis of specific
programmatic issues

•  Develop and direct projects related to Quality Improvement including facilitating intoagency
collaboration, system changes involving multiple divisions, organizational development issues and
team building



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1059DC7A-19EF-4763-A91A-1A5168F9CBF9

Program Planning and Review Specialist, Bureau of Improvement and Integrity 12/05-3/06
•  Overall management and administration of a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)

Real Choice Systems Change Grant
•  Coordinated the start up of the department wide implementation of a comprehensive Quality

Improvement effort

•  Established and facilitated an ongoing, state wide stakeholder ̂ ality Council, the goal of which
is to improve communication between the state and community heal^ service providers and elicit
feedback cm quality improvement initiatives

Consultant/Independent Contractor ^ 2009-2014
NH region for Anthem BAP and Work Place Options, Raleigh, North Carolina

'• Facilitate workshops and professional development seminars on various topics including
employee relations, management, leadership development, and work life balance.

Employee Assistance Consultant, Resource Management Consultants 8/05 -11/05
One Pillsbury St., Suite 300, Concord, NH 03301
•  Provided telephone consultation, risk assessment, therapeutic intervention and facilitated referrals

to various resources for individuals needing assistance with work/life issues

Director of Outreach, HEARTH . 9/01-8/05
1640 Washington St., Boston, MA 02118

•  Directed and supervised Outreach Department program staff in the coordination of case
management, housing search, and housing stabilization services

•  Developed and managed the agency's representative payee program, ensuring compliance with
federal regulations and ensuring quality of service in managing clients' finances

•  Developed and maintained collaborative relationships within the community including local
businesses, healthcare providers, local and state government entities, and human service agencies

•  Provided weekly clinical and administrative supervision to case managers, representative payee
staff, and program interns

•  . Developed and coordinated the agency's Critical Incident Debriefing Team

Program Director, The Lynn Emergency Shelter 12/00- 8/01
Lynn Shelter Association, 100 Willow St., Lynn, MA 01901
•  Responsible for the overall management of a homeless shelter, serving up to 80 homeless adults

nightly, ensuring quality and consistency of service delivery
• Managed the shelter's operating budget and performed analysis/strategic planning
•  Developed and implemented a structured day program, the goal of which was to offer tools to

expand skills arid enhance the .capabilities of shelter guests
*. Developed and implemented a comprehensive case management program and provided training

and clinical supervision to case managers

Program Coordinator, Common Ground Women's Transitional Housing Program 2/97 - 12/00
Shelter Inc., 109 School St, Cambridge, MA 02139
•  Responsible for the overall management of a HUD funded transitional housing program, and

providing counseling and case management to program residents

'• Developed and facilitated various workshops and groups for program residents
•  Developed and facilitated training programs for shelter staff and interns

Education

Lesley University, Cambridge, MA Master of Arts in Psychology 1997

St. Bonaventure University, New York Bachelor of Arts 1992
Major: Psychology Minor: Mass Communications
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PATOICK M. ULMEN

October 10.1997

Objective:

Industrious and dependable Mastos graduate, mth educational and experioitial focus princip^ in research,
psychology, case managemeat and business administration, seeking management related growth opportunities with
marketing crseardi focus. In both educational and work experience, has demonstrated skills to work well with others,
apply knowledge, make innovative contributioiis, manage complex proWcms and situatioos. and perform at a level
exceieding expectations end demands.

Work Experience:

8/1992-current

CLM Behavioml Health Sysleois, Windbam Inn
P.O. Box 1027, Windhani, N JI. 03087 (603) 434-9937

Psvchtabic Mimwger Dutles include advoca^, development of rebabilitation goals, coordination
oftreatment, identification and acquisition ofKsoixrces,oounse!tng and ongoing support. Skflls growth and
accomplishments resulted in assignment of and success widi exceptionally con^lex cases. Proposed,
inhieted, and continued development of alternative treatment plannirig and traci^ mechanism ongoing
since instBted December 1995.
infonnation Anttlyu Employing computer and research skills to identify, collect, analyze and review.
infonnatioD relevam to planning, delivery, and moohoring of consumer support services and associated
client outcomes to management staff and Regional noimlng Committee.
Mana^wment Inforniarion SvsUam AssistanL Assisting in design, developrocnt, integration, refinement,
maintenance, and expansion of autorosted community support services networking system.

1/1992-I/I995

I-tesser College
3 Sundial Ave, Manchester, Nil 03103 (603)668-6660

Instructor Courses taught: Intit)duction to Psychology, Individual and Group Counseling Techniques, and
CoDtonporeiy Social Problems. Based on es^lished teaching ddlls and reputation, actively sou^ by
students seeing challenge and scholarship:

7/1991 • 8/1992 & 6/1986-6/1989

Chick Beaulieu Inc.

5 & 1/2 Gaffoey St, Nashua N.R 03060 (603) 883-5822

OfDce Manager. On-site Supervisor and Copstniction Worker. Duties included maintaining company
journals, inanagin5 all business financial transactions, customer and employee relations, job costing, and
reorganization of infbnnation flow, operations and records, driivery and coordination of service on site.

3/1991 -6/1991

ECPI ofTidewater VA Inc.

5555 Greeowich, Suite 100, Virginia Beach, VA. 23462-6513 (804) 671-7171

Instnictor. Taught Applied Psychology.

Rcccot Presentatioas:

8/8/1997 Development and Imriementation of an Integrated Clinical Infoimation Management System Within
Community Support Seivices. Institute on Mental Heahb Management Inlormaticn. Albany, NY.

6/16/1997 PracriMl Application of MHSIP Outcome Meanires whhtn Community Smmorl Services, New
Hampshire Communi^ Mental Health Services Conference. Manchester, NH.

Educstioa:

6/1989-7/1991 Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA. Master of Sdeoce, Psychology.

1982 - 1987 Keene State College, Keene, NH. B.S. Butiness Management, B.A. Psychology.
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS PROJECT MANAGER

INFORMATION ANALYST

PSYCHIATRIC CASE MANAGER

CAREER Educational and experiential focus In development and integration of information
SUMMARY systems, research, psychology, case management, education and business

administration. Established reputation for working well with others, applying
knowledge, making Innovative contributions, managing complex problems and
situations while performing at a level exceeding expectations and demands.

PRESENT Development and management of web based information system between two
POSITION regional community mental health centers. Management of local network,

hardware and software system at a state funded regional Mental Health Center.
Monitoring staff needs, recommending, and when Indicated implementing
appropriate changes. Educating staff towards more efficient and effective use of
existing systems. Development and/or implementation of reporting tools.
Analysis of existing data to generate information which meets the needs of staff,
the agency, community and state representatives. Presentations at State and
Northeastern conferences on developing and employing an information
management system to Improve psychiatric care. Collaborative work with a
software development firm specializing in employing leading edge technology to
develop state of the art, web based, Information management systems.
Case management duties include advocacy, development of rehabilitation goals,

I  coordination of treatment, identification and acquisition of resources, counseling
and ongoing support for approximately 25 consumers of mental health services.

RECENT

PRESENTATIONS

L

March, 1998 .AO-lntegrated Ciinical Information Manaoement Svstem.

Annual Conference for The Association of Community Living. Albany, NY.
August, 1997 Development and Implementation of an IntpgratpH niinlnal
Information Management System Within CnrnmnnilY finppnrf
Institute on Mental Health Management Information. Albany, NY.
June, 1997 PracticaLADPilcation of MHSIP Outcome Measures Within
Community Support Services. New Hampshire Community Mental Health
Service Conference. Manchester, NH.

EARLIER

EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

College instructor of psychology, counseling and social science for 5 years. Based
on established teaching skills and reputation actively sought by students seeking
challenge and scholarship.

Office manager at a home improvement company. Duties included maintaining
company journals, job costing, managing business financial transactions,
customer and employee relations, and reorganizing information flow, office
operations and records.

Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA. Master of Science, Psychology.

Keene State College, Keene, NH. 88 Business Management, BA Psychology
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Melissa L. Allen, MS,

LCPCC, MHRT-C

Objective To obtain a position as a clinician/counselor at Greater Nashua Mental Health, wherein I can utilize my
experience and make a valuable contribution working with youth and families.

Experience Oxford County Mental Health Services (OCMHS) Rumford. Maine

I/20I8- Present: Home and Community based Treatment (HCT) Clinician |
Provides clinical direct care in home, school, and communiiysettings to work on individualized Treatment
Plans, Diagnosis and Assessment of needs, facilitates family meetings, individual sessions, works with
treatment team to coordinate care.

7/2016- 1/2018: Outpatient Therapist/Clinical Back-up Supervisor
Psychotherapy/ School based Counselor at Regional School District 10, Children and Families
Facilitate group exercises for enhancing social skills and self esteem
Performs psychosocial assessments, diagnostic formulation, and Individualized Treatment Plans (ITP)

7/2012- 7/20] S: Case Manager
Assist individuals in the community to access resources including domains in legal, financial, housing,
health care, psychiatry/psychology, life skills, social/recreational, and other various domains,
APS and health care billing, made appropriate referrals as needed to address individual needs

11/2012- 11/2012: Team Lender Beacon House Peer Center (Part Time)
Organization and revitalization of Peer Center Project, activities coordinator, recruit volunteers, attend
Maine Alliance of Peer Support and Recovery Centers (MAPSARC) meetings, provided supervision to
Bachelor level interns, staff, and peers, engaged in strategic planning process
•  Hired as team leader after completion of 300 hour masters level internship

•  Public Advocacy Project: Organized Hindraiser at Rumford Eagles

4/2011- 7/2012: Crisis Response Counselor
Assess clients for appropriate level of care in hospital, office, school, and/or community settings
Assess youth, families, and adults with acute mental illness; diagnose using DSM-V criteria
Cross trained in Adult Crisis Stabilization Unit, completed admissions, discharges and case management
duties

Providence Service CorDoration of Maine Auburn. Maine

7/2015- 7/2016: Home and Community Based Treatment (HCT) Clinician
Worked as team with Behavioral Health Professional (BHP) in home and community settings
Documentation: Intake to Discharge, Referral, Assessment and Formulation, Treatment Planning
Trainings include: Foundations of Home Based Treatment (2015)
Clinical Theory of Applied Behavioral Analysis (2015) Foundations of Supervision (2015)

Turner Family Support Center (Rumford Grout? Homes! Turner. Maine

06/2010-4/2011: Youth Worker .

Crisis Stabilization Unit for psychiatric patients; Residential facility for youth ages 5-17
Admissions/ intakes, completed referrals, conducted psychosocial assessments, ran therapeutic groups and
activities, Certified Residential Medication Administrator (CRMA), First Aid/CPR trained

Page 2
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Education Somhern New Hampshire University fSNI-iUk Brunswick, Maine
12/2011-6/20/5: Received Degree: Masters of Science (MS) in Community Mental Health Counseling
Specialization: Children and Families

Internship as School-Based Counselor: Rumford, Maine

9/2014-5/2015: Completed 300 hour Internship at Pennacook Learning Center; RSU#iO
Social skills development in Kindergarten Room, Tlierapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI), clinical

supervision weekly, completed State of Maine Criminal Back Ground Check/Finger Prints and
received Certification to work in Schools K-12 s

Graduate Certificate in Mental Health:

12/201 1-5/2013: Received Certificate: Integrated Community Mental Health and Substance Abuse
Services and Children

Master's project: Juvenile Delinquency and Parenting with Love and Limits (PLL)

Internship as School-Based Counselor: Turner. Maine

I /2013-5/2013: Completed 300 hour Internship at Leavitt Area High School
Worked with case load of adolescents under supervision of LCSW and Guidance Office; Tasks

include utilization of DBT workbook, CBT skills, evidenced-based practice and promising

practices network, motivational interviewing, used strength based model

University ofMaine at Farmineton (UMF): Farmington, Maine
9/2006- 5/2010: Received Degree: Bachelor of Science (BS) Rehabilitation Sen<ices with a concentration in
Fsvchosocial Rehabilitation

Licensure 10/28/15: Licensure: Conditionally Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor (LCPC-c) Issued in ME:
Passed National Counselors Examination (NCE). License Number: XL4580 Supervisor: Stephanie
Leblanc, LCSW

Ccrtlflcfltlons - Behavioral Health Professional (BMP) (2015)
- Graduate Certificate: Integrated Community MH and SA Services and Children (2013)
- Mental Health Rehabilitation Technician- Crisis Service Provider (MHRT-CSP) (2011)
• Mental Health Rehabilitation Technician- Community (MHRT-C) (2010)

Page 3
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Jayma Brissett
Business Office Professional

Enthusiastic Office Professional with a demonstrated history of working in the third party medical

accounts receivable management/customer service industry as well as MAT/medical front office.
Skilled in Negotiation, Operations Management, Coaching, Leadership, and Customer Relationship

Management (CRM). Strong customer service professional with great telephone and face to face

presence. Secondary experience with Peachtree payroll, book keeping, clerical duties, regulatory

compliance, and catering/restaurant service industry. Extremely passionate, detail and results-

oriented, in search of the next exciting, challenging career and growth opportunity, within a

collaborative and innovative environment filled with strong communication and integrity.

AuthoriHed to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Collections Representative
LAMONT HANLEY & ASSOCIATES - Manchester, NH

July 2020 to December 2020

• Compliant communication with responsible parties for unpaid medical and insurance bills.

• Accurate documentation of files.

• Negotiating payment of unpaid medical and insurance bills.

• Maintainipg compliance with FDCPA, HIPAA, FCRA, & TCPA.

• Meet monthly quota and metrics.

Administrative Assistant

PMC Medical Group - Merrimack, NH

August 2019 to July 2020

• Greet and direct patients and visitors upon arrival

• Assist patients and visitors (in person or over the phone) with various issues including but not limited

to directions, paperwork and questions '

• Verify and update patient demographics and insurance information

• Collect patient payments and insurance co-payments

• Answer incoming and transferred telephone calls; place telephone calls on hold as needed

• Relay phone messages to appropriate medical staff member

• Schedule patient appointments in person or over the phone

• Balance patient payments and insurance co-payments on a daily basis

• Follow office open/close protocol

• Distribute prescriptions to patients following office protocol

• Assist in transmission of medical records to patient and/or other entities as necessary

• Distribute medical records received via mail and/or fax to appropriate staff member according to office

protocol

• Collect urine samples for drug testing as needed
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Compliance Manager
Balanced Healthcare Receivables

August 2018 to January 2019

• Day to day management of collection agency compliance.

• Ensure that all departments are maintaining compliance with FDCPA, HIPAA, FCRA, TCPA, and all other

state and federal regulations.

• Development and maintenance of Compliance Management System and Professional Practices

Management System.

• Maintain a positive work environment and encourage the same of the employees throughout the

company.

• Investigate and analyze root cause of non-conformances.

• Strong ability to adapt to a changing environment and adaptability to changing priorities.

• Scheduling and tracking employee training.

•  Investigating and responding to client issues, consumer complaints, and regulatory complaints such

as BBS, CFPB. FTC. and Attorney General.

Collections Manager
Balanced Healthcare Receivables - Nashua, NH

April 2017 to August 2018

• Day to day management of a team of 18-35 medical collection representatives and 3-4 Supervisors/

Team Leads ensuring each member of the team is successful in meeting performance expectations,

client satisfaction, and goals.

• Ensure that Supervisors. Team Leads. Collectors and consumer's questions and problems are resolved

properly and quickly, maintaining compliance with FDCPA, HIPAA, FCRA. and TCPA.

• Monitor and evaluate Supervisor/Team Lead performance and provide coaching/assistance as needed

or necessary.

• Coach and encourage supervisors/team leads to meet goals, hit metrics, and improve performance.

• Maintain a positive work environment and encourage the same of the collection floor.

• Meet monthly key performance goals for collections, customer satisfaction, and key performance

metrics Including strategically building campaigns to help hit those numbers.

• Strong ability to adapt to a changing environment and adaptability to changing priorities.

• Advertising open positions, recruiting potential staff including working with outside agencies, setting

up and conducting interviews, hiring new team members.
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• Strategically building and monitoring daily phone campaigns to ensure the best possible outcome to

meet clients expectations.

• Review, edit, and prepare all department payroll information and schedules for submissions to Human

Resources.

• Calculate.and distribute monthly commission figures to eligible collections department employees and
Human Resources, to be submitted with payroll.

Collections Supervisor
Balanced Healthcare Receivables - Nashua, NH

October 2014 to April 2017.

• Day to day management of a team of 8-15 medical collection representatives ensuring each member
of the team is successful in meeting performance expectations, client satisfaction, and goals.

• Ensure that team member's and consumer's questions and problems are resolved properly and quickly,,

maintaining compliance with FDCPA, HIPAA, FCRA, and TCPA.

• Monitor and evaluate collector's performance via live monitoring, call recordings, and side by side

coaching sessions.

• Coach and encourage collectors to meet goals, hit metrics, and improve performance.

• Maintain a positive work environment and encourage the same of the collection floor.

• Meet monthly key performance goals for collections, customer satisfaction, and key performance

metrics including strategically building campaigns to help hit those numbers.

• Strong ability to adapt to a changing environment and adaptability to changing priorities.,

• Advertising open positions, recruiting potential staff including working with outside agencies, setting
up and conducting interviews, hiring new team members.

• Review, edit, and prepare all department payroll information and schedules for submissions to Human

Resources.

I

• Calculate and distribute monthly commission figures to eligible collections department employees and

Human Resources, to be submitted with payroll.

Collections Team Leader

Balanced Healthcare Receivables - Nashua, NH

September 2011 to October 2014

• Day to day management of a team of 8-15 medical collection representatives ensuring each member
of the team is successful in meeting performance expectations and customer satisfaction.

• Ensure that team member's and consumer's questions and problems are resolved properly and quickly,
maintaining compliance with FDCPA, HIPAA, FCRA, and TCPA.
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• Coach and encourage collectors to meet their monthly quota, hit metrics, and improve performance.

• Maintain a positive work environment and encourage the same of the collection floor.

• Strong ability to adapt to a changing environment and adaptability to changing priorities.

• Assisting the manager with advertising open positions, setting up and conducting interviews, giving

input on hiring decisions.

• Assisting the manager with review, edit, and preparation of all collectors payroll information and

schedules for submissions to Human Resources.

Collections Representative
Balanced Healthcare Receivables - Nashua, NH

January 2011 to September 2011

• Compliant communication with responsible parties for unpaid medical bills.

• Accurate documentation of files.

• Negotiating payment of unpaid medical bills.

• Collecting insurance information from consumers on phone calls.

• Contacting attorney's offices regarding unpaid medical bills for resolution.

.• Maintaining compliance with FDCPA. HIPAA, FCRA, & TCPA.

• Meet monthly quota and metrics.

Sterilization Technician

Amherst Pediatric Dental - Amherst, NH

March 2011 to May 2011

Full service pediatric dental office.

• Sterilize all dental tools prior to use.

• Clean and sterilize work stations prior to patients being seen.

• Wipe down and organize waiting room.

• Maintain compliance with HIPAA

• Perform tests on sterilization machines to ensure proper sterilization took place.

• Superior customer service.

• Excellent communication and presentation skills.

Licensed Nursing Assistant
Crestwood Care & Rehab - Milford, NH

September 2004 to December 2010

Skilled nursing facility serving both long term and short term care and rehabilitation services.

• Care for geriatric patients and some other age groups including but not limited to activities of daily

living, restorative programs, assisting with meals, and any tasks given by charge nurse.

• Accurately document patient data each shift in compliance with HIPAA regulations and guidelines.

• Complete computer in-services in compliance with state and company requirements.

• Train new nursing assistants as needed.

Driver/Office Attendant

LA. Limousine Service • Wilton, NH

June 2004 to October 2010
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Private limousine chauffeur service.

• Transport customers safely from pickup location to final destination.

• Answer telephone, schedule reservations, data entry, greet walk-in customers.

• Provide outstanding customer service.

Server/Cocktail Server/Office Assistant

Elisha's Restaurant - Milford, NH

December 2000 to August 2010

Full service family owned restaurant and bar.

• Set up and break down kitchen at the beginning and end of shift.

• Provide outstanding customer service to patrons, serving food and beverage.

• Answer phone, take orders, input orders into computer.

• Bookkeeping functions including some bank transactions, weekly payroll, filing, and data entry.

Education '

Certificate Program in Nursing Assistant
LNA Health Careers - Merrimack, NH

July 2004 to August 2004

Skills

• Regulatory Compliance

• PCI

• Microsoft Office (8 years)

• Cerner {2 years)

• Leadership (8 years)

• Account Management (8 years)

• Customer Service (10+ years)

• Hiring (6 years)

• Management (6 years)

• Negotiation (8 years)

• Office Management (7 years)

• Quality Control (5 years)

• Risk Management (2 years)

• Team Building (7 years)

• Windows (8 years)

• PowerPoint

• Typing

• Microsoft Excel (6 years) . j ^
• Data Analysis

• Data Entry

• MS Office
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• Receptionist

• Peachtree Accounting {2 years)

• Word

• Outlook

• Payroll

• Administrative Assistant

• Clerical (1 year)

• Medical Collection

• Compliance Management

• Customer Relationship Management

• Employee Evaluation

• HIPAA

• Quality Assurance

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's license

Additional Information

Customer service

Diligent, superior customer service, telephone, office, problem solving, offering insightful and creative

ideas.

Management

Proven ability to lead others in high-demand situations through demonstrated leadership. Extensive

experience in evaluating performance, team work, and processes. Experience managing with a

genuine desire to achieve, excel and evolve, while building trust and respect from the team.

Communication

Excellent verbal and written communication skills, with the ability to generate positive conversations

by building trust and adding value to every relationship.

Leadership

Experience in one on one as well as group settings facilitating and managing individual and group

interactions, offering coaching and guidance from both a leadership perspective as well as learning

and development perspective.
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Jessica A Capuano

Education:

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor (NH): LCMHC issued 3/17/2006. No. 621

M.A. Mental Health Counseling, Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH: Class of 2003

BA Psychology, Rivier College, Nashua: Class of 1999

Work Experience:

February 2015- present- Technical Assistant Team Lead, Beacon Health Options, Manchester NH.

Responsible for the oversight and implementation of the NH Medicaid clinical/ value based payment business

model. Oversight of the 10 NH Community Mental Health Center's value based payment contract compliance.

Oversight of CMHC member's coordination of care. Oversight of CMHC's quality performance metrics as it
pertains to Hedis measures. Implementation of quality improvement plans. Provide clinical supervision to 3
Technical Assistant Clinicians. Duties to work collaboratlvely with CM and utilization review team to efficient

communication regarding member needs and planning.

October 2014-February 2015- Technical Assistant, Beacon Health Options, Manchester NH.
/

Responsible for Utilization Management for Well Sense (Medicaid) members. Duties to provide care management

and utilization review to Well Sense members served by community mental health centers in NH. Direct technical

assistance, consulting and training facilitation for local CMHC's on a range of issues relating to behavioral health.

Management of client/state contracts including contract compliance. Monitoring of CMHC BH HeM regulation
compliance. •

March 2005-Sept 2014 - Emergency Services Clinician, Manchester Mental Health Center. Manchester. NH.

Responsible to perform emergent psychiatric evaluations in office, at 2 local

Emergency rooms and local police departments. Includes appropriate placements at psychiatric units, managed care

authorizations, and referral to mental health agencies. Also responsible to perform brief outpatient therapy to a

caseload of 40-60 clients.

October 2004-March 2005- Clinical Coordinator. Psychiatric Evaluation Program- Elliot

Hospital/Manchester Counseling Services, Manchester, NH

Responsible for the management of the Psychiatric Evaluation Program at Elliot Hospital. Includes the supervision

of mental health clinicians to ensure quality services rendered to consumers in the emergency room at Elliot

Hospital. Part- time outpatient psychotherapy at Manchester Counseling Services to a variety of consumers.

July 2004-Octobcr 2004- Mental Health Counselor, Psychiatric Evaluation Program Elliot Hospital/Manchester

Counseling Services, Manchester, NH
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Responsible to perform mental health crisis evaluations within the Elliot Hospital Emergency Department. Includes

appropriate placements at psychiatric units, managed care authorizations and referral to a variety of mental health

services. Part time outpatient psychotherapy at Manchester Counseling services to a variety of consumers.

Sept 2003- July 2004 - Emergency Services Clinician, Manchester Mental Health Center. Manchester. NH

Responsible to perform mental health crisis evaluations, treatment and disposition at 2 local Emergency rooms and

police departments. Brief outpatient therapy to a caseload of 40-60 clients.

August 2002-September 2003- Residential Supervisor, Manchester Mental Health Center. Manchester. NH

Responsible to provide leadership and supervision that facilitates the daily operations of Social/Rehabilitative

facilities, in order to assure an appropriate quality of life for those residents occupying agency sponsored housing.

March 1999-August 2002- Residential Specialist, Manchester Mental Health Center, Manchester, NH

Working as a support counselor for those that suffer chronic mental illniess. Duties include treatment plan
implementation, ADL and basic living skills support. Utilization of crisis intervention as needed. -

Related Experience:
/

James Foster and Associates, Internship. Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH

Completed a 700 hour internship, which included experience in individual psychotherapy for a variety of

populations, including court mandated cases; served as co-facilitator for a 44 week domestic violence group

program.

Manchester Mental Health^s Gemini Program, Notre Dame College Practicum, Manchester NH

Assisted in the therapeutic support of adults dually diagnosed. Attended AA meetings with residents on a weekly

basis.

April 2007- DBT (Dialectical Behavioral Therapy) Training- 32 hours- Specialized behavioral treatment specific

to Borderline Personality Do

2013-2014- Clinical Supervisor- Supervised a license eligible employee weekly. Goals to include preparation for

examination, coaching, awareness of ethical code, and therapy principles/practice.
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DONNA B. LENNON, MA

EDUCATION; M.A. Counseling & Psychotherapy, Rivler University, 1984.
B.S. Behavioral Sciences, cumlaude, Hawthorne College,1982.

EMPLOYMENT: Donna Lennon Counseling Services, LLC
Concord and Bedford, New Hampshire
Feb 1992 - July 2010 and March 2017 to present
Director of Group practice - Outpatient Services

Psychotherapy and consulting practice for Mental Health &
Substance Use Disorders. Provide comprehensive evaluations for
EAP's, schools and legal system. Required extensive collaboration
with 8 colleagues, MCO's, employers, healthcare providers and
insurers.

I

Easter Seals Farnum Center - August 2015 - August 2017
Clinical Director -Inpatient and Outpatient Services
As member of Sr. Leadership Team, responsible for management
of daily clinical operations including clinical supervision of inpatient
and outpatient staff. Manage lOP, Continuing Care and therapy
groups, execute treatment strategies, facilitate weekly Clinical
supervision group. Provide clinical direction for Program
Coordinators on detox, residential and outpatient units. Hire, train
and develop staff in accordance with best practices.

Gosnold on Cape Cod - Falmouth, MA - July 2010 - July 2015
Program Clinical DIriector '
Leadership of daily operations of clinical & case management staff,
resolve challenges, develop process and performance improvement
strategies,( review clinical documentation, hire, train & supervise
clinical staff conduct performance appraisals, monitor budget with
CFO, ensuring compliance with NAADAC, NBCC, HIPAA & The Joint
Commission standards, ethics and best practices for 50 bed detox.,

■ Write clinical programs for patients while providing extensive
collaboration with Nursing, Admissions, Utilization Review and other
Clinical Program staff at various Gosnold work sites (inpatient rehab
and outpatient).

Resource Management Consultants - Salem, NH Jul '90-Jut '91
BAP services and account management to client business & '
industry, hospital & educational systems employees and their
families. Delivered supervisory training to management staff,
assessment and referral, develop Lunch n'Learn sessions for staff.
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Bedford Counseling Associates - Bedford, NH 2/90-9/91
Developed, marketed and delivered training programs for local
community regarding addiction, family recovery, intervention &
treatment. Provided outpatient therapy for individuals, families &
groups affected by trauma & addiction. i

Manchester High School West - Manchester, NH 8/87 -10/89
Implemented the first formal Student Assistance Program for a
student body and faculty of 1850. Established and facilitated
comprehensive support groups, program budget, developed and
chaired SAP Advisory Board and niarketed program to ensure
viability and expansion of program via Mayor and Aldermanic
Committee to ALL High School AND Junior High Schools in the
city of Manchester. Initiated state-wide NH-SAP Providers Group,
trained "Core Team" of faculty, delivered parent education program
re: addiction and recovery. Developed all brochures & marketing
materials for program. ***NOMINATED*** for US Dept of Ed's
"Drug Free Schools & Communities Program Award for top ten
programs in the U.S.

COMPCARE/Lake Shore Hospital - Manchester, NH 12/85-5/87
Clinical Leader of Multi-disciplinary Tx Team. Facilitated delivery of
quality treatment services for patients and families, supervised Tx
Team, provided substance use & mental health evaluations.
Developed community education programs for families affected,by
addiction and trauma.

Digital Equipment Corporation - Nashua, NH & Concord, MA
March 1878 - December 1985

HR Department Personnel Services Administrator and promoted to
Personnel Specialist with Corporate HR, EE Benefits
Administration, Organizational Development and EE Relations.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
National Association of Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors
NH Mental Health Counselors Association

Former staff member of NH Teen, Institute
Former: Manchester Aldermanic Committee on Substance Abuse

LICENSING:

Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor-NH

Master Licensed Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselor-NH
Certified Advanced Alcohol & Drug Abuse Couns-MA - CADCII

PROFESSIONAL

REFERENCES: Will be furnished upon request.
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Gabrielle Sullivan

ANTICIPATED MASTERS OF SOCIAL WORK CANIDATE j MAY 2022 | BOSTON UNIVERSITY

BACHELORS OF SCIENCE \ AUGUST 2018 | FITCHBURG STATE UNIVERSITY

Experience

RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION SPECIALIST I | RIVERBEND | SEPTEMBER 2020 -CURRENT

• Residential specialist for a group home with 18 adults with severe and persistent mental illness. Support residents with activities of

daily living (ADLs), such as cleaning and cooking, and engagement in the community. Provide medication support through
administration and education. Expectations include functional support, medication administration and monitoring, and 1:1 check ins
with residents. Daily documentation for patient's progress required before completion of shift

MASTERS OF SOCIAL WORK INTERN | RISE ABOVE ) SEPTEMBER 2020-CURRENT

• Work collaboratively with OCF social workers and foster parents in the process of screening applicants and determine if eligibility
criteria has been met Provide excellent customer service through email and phone when connecting with foster families and social
workers. Weekly communication with executive director to coordinate obtaining and distributing requested resources, Provide
support for older youth and youth aging out of the foster care system in order to connect them with needed resources.

DIRECT CARE COUNSELOR | HAMPSTEAD HOSPITAL | OCTOBER 2019-FEB 2020

• Provides support for children, adolescents, and adults with mental illness, developmental disabilities, and substance use disorder in an

inpatient setting. Per diem position requires work on all three units in the hospital, with varied expectations for each population served
and flexibility with the needs of different populations. 1:1 support, supervision of patients, and group facilitating on a number of
resiliency building activities for clientele. Daily documentation for patient's progress required before completion of shift.

CASE MANAGER) GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH| AUGUST 2018 SEPTEMBER 2020

■ Direct support, education, and outreach to a caseload of adults aged 18-65 diagnosed with severe and persistent mental illness.
Specialty training and experience with transitional-aged youth (16-25) with their first episode of schizophrenia with an integrated
focus on family and providing case management and support to families. Responsibilities include: crisis Intervention, functional
support, family support, medication support, case management, treatment plan creation, and daily progress note documentation.
Caseload ranges from 25-30. interactions with other departments and community organizations on a weekly basis in order to ensure
continuity of care. Daily use of electronic medical records for documentation.

- RESIDENT ASSISTANT AND TUTOR | FITCHBURG STATE UNIVERSITY | OCTOBER 2015 - MAY 2018

• RA: Supervise and advised students in a freshmen dorm, an upperclassmen dorm, and an apartment style housing, Required to work
with a team of Residential staff, as well as in collaboration with campus resources such as campus police and counseling services.

• Tutor: Guide and assists students on understanding course material and where to find the information on their own. Focuses on study
skills and enhancing communication skills with professors and other resources. Tutoring psychology, criminal justice, sociology, and
human services courses.

CAMP COUNSELOR/KEY HOLDER | FUN IN THE SUN - MANCHESTER PARKS AND REC | JULY 2015 - AUGUST 2017

• Supervised children at a day camp during the summer run by the City of Manchester.

VOULUNTEER | MANCHESTER HIGH SCHOOL WEST | OCTOBER 2013 - MAY 2016

• Assisted special needs teacher with students, both teaching and working one-one-one in math. Science, English, and life skills. Position

started while in high school, and continued throughout college breaks until 2016.
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Certifications

• Enhanced Illness Management and Recovery (E-IMR)

- Adult and Pediatric First Aid/CPR/AED (Get 2019-Oct 2021)

• Mental Health First Aid (lune 2019-)une 2022)

• Certified Peer Tutor (Sept 2017-current)

Page 2
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GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Cynthia Whitaker,
PsyD

President and CEO $160,500 0.00% $0.00

Donna Lennon Vice President of Clinical

Operations

$115,000 0.00% $0.00

Marilou Patalinjug
Tyner, MD

Chief Medical Officer $270,000 0.00% $0.00

Bettejean Neyeux,
CMA

Chief Financial Officer $120,000 0.00% $0.00

Maureen Ryan Director, Quality &
Compliance

$98,621 0.00% $0.00

■ Ellen Constant Director of Human

Resources

$93,370 0.00% $0.00

Chris Purington Director of Deyelopment &
Community Relations

$85,000 0.00% $0.00

Patrick Ulmen Chief Information Officer $54,735 0.00% $0.00
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Community Council of Nashua, NH DBA/
GREATER NASHUA MENTAL HEALTH

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Donna Lennon VP of Clinical Operations $115,000 0% , 0

Jessica Gagnon Director of Acute Care

Services $76,272

10% $7627

Various Acute Care Therapist $50,000 avg Up to 100%
of an PTE

$50,000

Gabby Sullivan Rapid Response CM $17.90/liour 100% $37,232

Jayma Brissett Administrative Support $19.85/hour 20% $8258
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Lori A. ShiMottte

Coromlssloon'

laija S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603>27t-9544 I-8O0-8S2-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: l-SOO-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 24, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4;45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, and 2020-10, Governor Sununu
authorized the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
into Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $1,731,950
for crisis intervention services, mental and substance use disorder treatment, and other related
recovery supports for youth and adults who are under or uninsured and are impacted by COVID-
19, and healthcare professionals with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years,
effective June 23, 2020, through August 19, 2021.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Community Partners of
Strafford County Foundation

177278 Dover, Region 9 $173,195

Northern Human Services 177222 Conway, Region 1 $173,195

West Central Behavioral

Health Foundation
177654 Lebanon, Region 2 $173,195

Lakes Region Mental Health
Center, Inc.

154480 Laconia; Region 3 $173,195

Riverbend Community Mental
Healthj Inc.

177192 Concord, Region 4 $173,195

Monadnock Family Services 177510 Keene, Region 5 $173,195

The Community Council of
Nashua, N.H.

154112 Nashua, Region 6 $173,195

The Mental Health Center of
Greater Manchester, Inc.

177184 Manchester, Region 7 $173,195

Seacoast Mental Health

Center, Inc.
174089 Portsmouth, Region 8 $173,195

Center for Life Management 174116 Derry, Region 10 $173,195

Total: $1,731,950



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1059DC7A-19EF-4763-A91A-1A5168F9CBF9

His Excellency, Govembr Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-095-092-922010-19090000 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES-DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
HUMAN SERVICES-DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH-BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES-SAMHSA GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $108,247

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $1,298,962

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $324,741

Total $1,731,950

EXPLANATION

These items are Sole Source because the Department, In the interest of the public's
health and safety, determined that the State's community mental health centers are best
positioned to effectively provide crisis intervention services, mental health and substance use
disorder treatment, and other related recovery supports for youth and adults who are under or
uninsured and are impacted by COVID-19. and healthcare professionals. The Bureau of Mental
Health Services contracts for services through the community mental health centers that are
designated by the Bureau to serve the towns and cities within a designated geographic region as
outlined In NH RSA 135-C and State regulation NH He-M403.

Due to both COVID-19 and the State of Emergency, people with serious mental Illness,
youth with serious emotional disturbance and new or early serious mental illness, general citizens,
and healthcare professionals are expected to develop new behavioral health problems or
exacerbations of such problems, Including increases In depression, anxiety, trauma, and grief.
The Contractors will provide services to these Individuals who are under or uninsured from June
23,2020, to August 19, 2021.

The Contractors will increase the capacity of the New Hampshire community mental health
system to respond to people with behavioral health crises who are impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic using evidence-based practices. New and existing staff will receive training on COVID-
19-related treatment adaptations. Including safety and telemedicine; guideline-based crisis
Intervention; trauma-informed care; and the use of American Society of Addiction Medicine criteria
for Substance Use Disorder services. The Contractors will refer, individuals |n need of longer-term
services to other evidence-based practices.

The Department will monitor contracted services by:
• Actively and regularly collaborating with the Contractors to enhance contract

management, Improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes.

•  Requiring the Contractors to collect key data and metrics that include client-level
demographic, performance and service data.

•  Requiring implementation progress reports relative to staffing and training requirements.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

•  Reviewing quarterly reports to determine if the grant is progressing within the timeline
provided in the New Hampshire Rapid Response Grant project narrative.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1.2 of the
attached contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties, and appropriate State approval.

Areas served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.665 FAIN #H79FG000210

Respectfully submitted

Ifi
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mistion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achietx health and independence.
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FORM NII31B&K F-XT (vmlOfl

SuthJeci:_RA|)iKl Response (SS-2020-DBH-O7-RAPrD-06)

Notice: This ̂greetnrat Ofid ell of its BTtachmmtx AoQ become ptablic Mpoc aiAKnisouo to QovemOr tnd
Exeootivt Council Cbroppeovaf. An/inConnslioo Oist isprivuic.oonQdential or propctetoiyiinuat
be cicsjl/ ideniiGed w die ofiency and ecrced to io writing pko to tigmlng the oonirscL

AGREBM£Kr

Tbe St&le of New Hampshire mi tbe Cootrector bareby muiunUy agree os fol lows:

GSNERAl' PROVISIONS

1.

l.t SlateA^eyName

b^ew Hampehire Depaflmsu of HeoMi and Hucnafi Services

i .2 State Agency Adiirets

129 Ftcasmt Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

t.% Contractor Name

The Cornmunity Council of Nashua, K-H.

1.4 Contractor Aiklrcsj

100 W. Pearl Sl

KasS3ua,NH 03060

Contractor t%one
' Number

(603)&89-6147

1.6 Aocouni Kumber

05-095-092'922010-

19090000-102-500731

1.7 Complfllioe Date

Augud 19.2031

1,6 Frkt Ucnitotico

S173,193

Cootracting Officer Or State A^cy

Nubsn D. White, Direetcr

1,10 Stole Agency TelcpbooeNuoiber

(603)271-9631

i,l3 Name and Ttilc of CctntrectorSisnlcvy
WhtfrJcjer,

dhief- of S^vt^es
1.14 Naroe and Th!« cf State Agency Sigtatoty

10Pi<yaP~1^/3«n. /k<M(h
T. i 5 Approval X.H. Dqwrtmeirt of AAnjaisttution, IHvi»ion of Personnel ap/^abh)

Uy. Director. On:

L16 ApjMovDl by the Attorney OcucraJ (Form. SubOAftce and Exccittkm^ (i/applicable)

C/zt£lL/UtUL. 06/16/20
1.17 Approval b/ihcGovcmur end Executive Council (Ifapi^Kc^t)

OdkC Iittti number G4C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
CoTiftnictor Tnitinb ̂

T)ate
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t SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. Tli£ State of New
acting througti dw agency identified in block 1.1

CStattTX engages oonmctor idntifiod m Uock U
("ContractoO to perfbrm, end the Cootracuir shall pcrfhrm, (be
work or nJe of goods, or both, Ideotjfied aad more partkoterly
denribed b the ana^ed EXNTBTT 6 whld) is tnoorponted
hcrdn b>' refer ence CStrvice^.

3. EFTOC^VEDATE«X^MPLr^ON OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provbJon of this Agreement (o (be
COD tray, God to tbe appro^tl of d>e Oovtrocr and
Exooutive Couacil ofthe State of New Hampshire, if c^Ecable,
' this Agreement, end nil cbligations of(bepaws hereun^, fihall
become effective cm ifac dote the Oovczdgt and Exceuthe
Cooncil approve this Agroanaii as tndicated in block 1.17,
unless cosuchBiqrov&lb required, invdudicasedie Agreemeat
shall cffectiYe od the dote die Agreement is agned by
tbe Stotc Agency as showD in block 1.13 C'BE^ve Datc^).

If (be Coatzactor cammences the Services prior to the
Effective Dam, an Services pcrfonncd by the CoDtzactor prior to
tbe Effective Date shall be pcrlbnced u tbe sole risk of die
Cootraetor, and tn the event dM this Agreameatdo^ not become
ofTocifve, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
includlog vdihout Umltadon, any obligation to pay the
Cootmotcir for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Cootraotor cmia complete all Services by tbe Compledcn Date
ipecified in block t.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATOKK OF AGREEMENT.

Notwldtstaading any provlflon of this Agreement to the
contrary, ail obligadoos of the State bereuoder, boluding,
without IhtltaUon, the oontinuanoe of payments bereuoder, are
contingent upon the avallablliiy and oomifiued appropriation of
funds affectd by ony-stste or .foderal legUltttlvt or executive
ectiOD that rcduocs, clinunates or otfaerw^se modifies the
appropziatioD or a\'&itahilj^ of fondii^ (br this Agreement and

Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT D. in whole or in
port ta no event dtall the State be liaUc for any pa)TDCots
bcreondcr in excess ofBuchavBiloblc appropriated foo^. tnlhc
event of a rcdsctioii or tcnmnatko of opfvopiiated fundSk the
State shall have tbe right to withhold payment until such Atods
beccnne mvil^e, if ever, and ahali have tbe ri^t to reduce or

the Services under this Agreemmt immediately upoc
giving the Cootractor notioe of auch reduction or termiootioQ.
Tbe State shall not be required to transia fu^ fimn any otba
account or sonroe to tbe Account identified in Uock 1.6 in (be

event fimds in that Accouivt are reduced or mtavailaUcs.

$. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LtMUATTON/

PAYMENT.

5. I Tbo contract price, method ofpayment, and tmns ofpayment
ate identified and more particularly describod in EXHIBIT C
which is incorpoiatDd hercan by refiroioe.
5.2 The payment by the Sate of the contract price shall be the
only and tbe complete Fcimburscmcnt to the Caatractor for all
fgjy-fWM of whamvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in tbe
perfbrmaocc hereof, and shall be tbe only and die complete

oompcnsadoo to tbe Ccoilractat for (be Scrvicca. The State b^«i1
have no liability to the Contractor odwr thnn tho oontract price.
5.3 The Smte reserves the ri^i to affect from any amounia
otherwise pa^nhle to the Contractor under this AgrecrocDt dmse
liquidated ajpounts rcqutrod or patnittcd by N.H. RSA 60:7
dirou^ RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrooneat to the
cootrary, and notwilbrtanding unexpected drcumstsnces; In no
event shall the local of all payments authorixed, or aoually made
beremuler, exceed the PriM Undtatloo tet forth In Uock 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REOIILATKINS/ iX}UAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTDMTV.

6.1 fat ooanectioD wUh tbe pcrfbnnacce of the Services, the
Coatraclor ahalt comply w^ dl applicable statutes, taws,
reguiotraDS, end orders of federal, state, county or fnimidjBil
authorities which inxposc any ̂ igatKn or duty upon the
(ToQtractor, including but not limited to, dvil rights a^ equal
cmploymcni oppartunhy laws. In addhian, if this Agrccmem b
Amdcd in any part by cooojea of the Uaiied Statct^ the Contractor
ahali comply with all federal cxccutivo ordars, niies^ regulutioos
and statutes, and wih any nilea, regnJaifoeii and guidclioes as the
State or the Uqhod States issue to Impictnent these rcgulafiona
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable mtellcctual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agraemens, (he Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or ap^icants for employnMut
because ofrace, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handieap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and wiU take affirmative acdoo to
prc!\<cot such dlscrimlnfl'tion.
6.3. Tbe (^tractor agrees to permit (he State or Uolted Stafos
acoeastoanyofthoContraotor's books, records and accounts for

tbe purpose of asoertuining oomplJflfioe with ell rules^ reguLstioas
end orders, end the covenonts. terms and coadlficos of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractarihall at its own expense provide all pcrscnncl
necessary to pcribim the Services. The Ccintroctar wuntnts thai
all personnel engaged in tbe Servloes shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be property licensed and
oCfacrwisc Biahcrizcd to do so under oil applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized tn writing, during tbe tcnn of
(bis Agreement, and for a pcrkxi of six (6) cnoalbs after the
CompletiQa Date m block 1.7, the Contractor diaU not bbe, end
shali not permit any sifooantmctnr or other person, firm or
oorporation with whom h is cn^ged in a combined effort to
perform the Scrviecs to hue, any pcrsoo vfoo is a State cmplo>^
or officaal, who is malaially in^tslvcd in the procurcmmt,
administratioo or performance of this Agyccmait This
provision shall scrvive termiDatiaD ofthis Agreement
7 J The Conlracting Officer specified in Week 1.9, or his or her
successor, .thall be the Sate^srcprcscotative. In tbccveotofBiiy
diqxue concerning the intcrprctatioa of this Agrccmeot, tbo
Contracting Officer's decision **11 be find for (he State.

Page 2 of4
C^ntrhctorluiiiab (MP

Date
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8. EVENT or OaPAOLT/WJMEDrcS.
8.1 Any one or toore of the ib(k>w)o$ sets or oouisiocts of the

tractor ibsli consthule tn event of defluilt hereunder Caveat
ofDefinlf^:
8.1.1 &ilurt to pedbnn the Services satls&ctorfly or on
schcdok;
8.1.2 fiiilwe to submit oiiy re|)ort required bcromder; cul/ur
8.13 fhihirc to pcrforiD any other covarent, teno or condition of
thb AgcomiiL
83 Upoo the occuErowe of any E^xnt of De&ult, the State moy
talre any coc, or morc» or aU, of the fiaHownis actions:
83.1 give the Coamctor a twIttcD notice 6pccafymgfl>eB%*a]t of
DdbuJt and requiring k to be remedied uitbin, b the absence of
■ greater or lesser sped fteation of time, thirty (30) da>v from the
date ofthe ootioe; e^ifihoBveatafDeftultiinoi timdy cured,
lermbate tills Agreement, cflecdve two days aOer gmag the
Cootrector ooboo of tcrminarioo;
8.2.2 gi\t (be Contractor a written notice; spcdiybg the Event of
Deibult CE»d ruspeoding aD payments to be made uodsr thb
Agreemcot and ordering thai the portion of the contract price
vdiijcb would otbowise accrue to the Cootraeeor during the
period fiom (be dsie of sucb tiotiicc until such time as (he State
determizLcs thot the Cootraotcr has cured the Event of Defhuh
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.33 (he Contractor a written notice tpedfybg (he E^ent of
Dcihdt and set o(ff against eny Other obligations the State may
owe to the Ccntrector any donn^es the Stale sutlers by rcoson of
any Event ofDefilult: on^or
8.2.4 ̂ ve the CoDtnctor o written notice specafying (heE>ent of
Dc&vlt, treat the Agreement os brcsrcl^, , tenn^te be
AgrocmcDt snd pursue any of its remedies ot law or b ̂ulty, or
both.

8.3. No flLllure by the State to enforce any provisions hereofafter
any Event of Deboh shall bo deemed a waiver of its rights with
regsrd to thai Event of Dcbuh, or any subsequent Evcat of
Ddfkult. No express biture to enforce any E\eat ofDc&ult shall
be deemed a wtivcr oftbe right of the State to cnforoc cacb end
oil of the provisions hereof upon eny further or other Event of
Ddhult on the port of the Cosuractar.

S.TEBAflNATTON.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, (be Stam may, at hs soSe
diacfctkn, tcrtnloate Agrnement for any reason, in whole or
m pert, by thirty (30) da>s written notice to tbc Coctraotor that
die State (a exerdslng Its option to tcrtobato the Agreemem
9.2 b the evtot of an eariy termbation of this Agreement for
any reason other (ban (be completion of (he Services, the
Coiitmcior shall, at the Staters dlicretioc, ddhtr to the
CoDtracting Officer, not bier (ban fifteoi (13) days aOer the dote
of tcnnbflticn, a report (^erminaikm Report^) describing b
dcteil an Services performed, and the contract prioe eerttedl to
and mctu<£ng (he <^tc of tcrminatiacL The fbrm. subbed matter^
coDtcnrt, and number of copies of (be Tcrmiiudoa Report shall
be ktentica) to those of any Fiool Report described io the attached

B. b ndcfitioG, ot the Stste's diKrelion, the CcnbMtor
shall, whhb 15 days of notLoc (d"eaily termination, develop and

PBg^3

submit to (be State a tTBDsitkn Plan for acr\ioes undo- the

Agrccracni

10. DATA/ACCHSSrtX)NFroHKnAUTV/
FR£SERVATrON.
lO.l Asusedbthis Agreement, the word'*date"iha£laieso all
informstioa and thin^ developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or dovdopod by reason o^ this
Agreement, bcludbg, but not limjted to^ all studies, leporis,
Illicit, formultio, survey maps, charts, souod reoordings, vidieo
recordings, plctoriti reproductions, drawings, enalyses, grcpblc
ir^trcacatabaQB, computer progmnxs computer pnntouta, notes,
locters, nuanomnda, papers, and doouments, oil whether
finished or unfimshcd.

] 0.2 All data and any property which baa been reocrved from
tfao State or purchased with ftinds povidcd for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be die property of the State, and
nhnti be rctunwd to the State upcn decosnd or upon tcnnbotioD
of this Agrceaneol for any reason.
10.3 Cfonfidoinaliiy of data gbaii be governed by NJl RSA
diBptcr 91-A or other existing law. Diackcure ofdata requires
prior written appro^'al of tho State.

n.OONTRACTOR'SRElATIONTO THE STATE. In (he

performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is b fiU respects
an Indqxndent contractor, and Is neither en ageait nor an
employee of ibe State. Neither tho Cocitractor nor any of Its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have cortiiority to
bind the State or recclvo any benofics, worfccrs* oooipcnBiticn or
other cmcduinents provided by the State to lu eotployees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELiX3AT10N/SUBCOKrRACT&
12.1 The ContiiKtor iholl oot osaign, or otherwise truns&r eny
interest in tills Agreement wKboot the prior written notice, wtkh
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assagnmau, and a written coosoit of the Stetc. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Cbangc of Cootrol shall constitute
ftsaigniDcnL "Change of ControT* meias (s) merger,
eoosolidatioo, or a transacdan or series of rdntcd tnmsactioas In
which a third party, to^tbcr with its affiliates, becomes tbc
direct or indlroct owner of fifty percent (50H) or more of the
votiog shores or similar equity interests, or combioed voting
power ofthe Cfontractof. or (b) ti>c sole of aU or Stfostantially all
of the assets of the Cootractor.
12.2 None of the Scoviccs shall be subcootmcted by the
Contractor without prior ̂ Ettcn notice and cGDScnt of the State.
Tbc Stafo Is entitled to cc^ies of oil subcootracts end nsagnrocnt
^grccmcntB and shaU not be boond any pruvisiazis ooatabcd
in a aubobntrect or an assignment agrcaoait m which it is not a
party.

13.INDHMNTTTCATI0N. Unless otherwise exempted by law,

the Ccntraetor shall iodcnmify and bold harmless itat State, its
officcis and omployece, t^om and agafnat any and all clBimB,
lUbilities end oceis for any persona) Ii\|ury or property damagesi,
potent or copyright bftbgiBment, or other claims aasc^ a^gsiaat
(be State, its officer* or ernployees, which arise out of (or wWcfa
nay be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omlstioo of the

of4
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Cootmctw, or wtwntrwww, wcluclmg but «n Imiicd to the
Qcslisttteo, roclelcss or intaitionft) conduct "Hie State ihall not
bo litMe fbr my costs {ucorrod by Ibe Ccottactot arising under
this p«ni$rvpb 1 ̂  NotvHtiimidkis the (bregf^ng. nothing heftin
contalxtcd s^U be deemed to oocistUcte ft waiver ofthe sovereign
onmunity ofthe State, which immunicy b berdby reser^'od to the
Stntc. This oovcDsnt b paragraph 13 shall (be
tennioatioa of tfaia Agrooncot.

14. ENSURANCB.

14.1 Tbc Cantractor shall, at its-&ote expcagCf obtom and
ooolinuously mablain b force, and gHall require any
nibcontnaor or assignee to obtab and rmptfRin b rcirce> (bo
fbllowlAg jonmnccc
14.1.1 commcrdal'general UahillTy Insurance agaha aO dainrts
of bodily ii\lury, death or property damaga, in emounis of not
leaa (ban $1,000,000 per ocBUfTcsoo and $2,000,000 eesrcgBic
or excess; asid
14.1.2 special cause ofloss comagc fbrm covering all propoty
lubjed to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not leas than
€0% of the whole roplaoemeeit valno of tbo property.

U^Thapcdicies de^bed b subparagraph 14.1 herein d^lbs
on polky fbrttu end eodorscracnts appro^ fbc use in (bo State
of New Hfimptblrc by (be NJ-L D^rtmeiU of InsuraiKO, and
issued biy bsurers liecQsed b (ho State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting (Xilicar
identified in block li^, or his or her ssccessor. a ccTtificatc(a) of
insQiaocc fbr bD bsatance ropmrd tmda (his Agrccnsat.
Cantractor sVd also fimnsh to (be Ccctmctbg Officer Identified
b block 1.9, or bis or ber successor, ocrti1icate(s) of insarBiioc
for all rcoewBl(B) ofinsurance required unda (his Agreemenl no
l&tff rtiiin ten (10) days prior to the expiration (hte of each
bsonoKe pdicy. The catific&tc(s) of insunmce and any
renewals thereof Khali be attached and are iocofpotated bcrcb by
rcftrcnoc.

15. W'ORKERS'COMPENSATIONl
IS.l By signbg this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants (hat &c Contnctor is b com^dtfloce widt or exempt
fiesn, the requiranaiQ ofMH. RSA chiptec 2S1-A fFKorirrs'
Caov?eAnifbn *]).
152. To the extent the Oontractor is sohjoct to the reqaircmeats
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contraotor ghall mointab, cod
require any suboootractor or asagoec to secure and maintain,
payntest of Worfters' Compensation m connection with
BCtivitiea which (he person proposes to tsidertike pursuant to this
Agreement THeConcracaorthaUfbrnlshtheCootTactiflgOfiiccr
identified In blockl .9, Or his Of her lucceMor, proofof Wortterj"
Compeosstioa m (he mmiDcr described b N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any appticftble reoewa](s) (hereof, which shftU be
attached md are bcorporstcd hcreb by reforeacB. The State
shall not be respooslMe for payment of any Workers'
Cooqieiisafioa prcmhnns ar for any other claim or beciefit (br
Cocmietor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contneter,
which Rtbo under applicable State- of New Hsmpshire
Workers' Compensation laws in cooneetion wUh tho
performtnoe of (^ Services under thia AgreemeoL

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to (he otbo party
aball be deemed to ha\e bees duly detivcrcd or grvm at the tfrrn;
of mailing by certified maJl, postage prepaid, m a Unhod States
Poet Offioe addressed to tho parties al (he addresses gtvcc fai
blodks 12 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amcndedt waived
or disctiBrgcd on)y by en brtrumoit in wrltbg algDcd by the
ptulpcs bcrcto and cm^ after approval of tmcadment,
waiver ce discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no su^ approval b required
under (bo circumstxncca pursuant to State bw, rule or policy.

CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Ibis A^ectneni shsU
bo governed, btcrpreted and ctKistnied b accordaocc with tbo
laws of the Stale ̂  New Hampshire, and ia bbding iqxx] and
mures to dw benefit of the parties and dieir respective successors
andaasigoa. The wording used b dus Agreement is the wording
chosen by (fac parties to express their mtcual xntcnt, and no rule
ofccQstroctbn kHbII be applied agamat or m &WV ofany patty.
Any aetiom arlabg out of ihia Agreement shall be farou^t a^
onlntained m New Hampsbhe Superior Court which shall ba^'c
OXchMive jurisdiction thereof

19. (X)NFUCTING TERMS, to (be event of a conflid

bctwocn the terms of tbia P-37 fiotm (as coodtfied b EXHIBIT
A) and'or uttnehments and emendmeoi (hereoC the teens of (he
FO? (as modified m EXKlBtT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. Tbc parties hereto do not btend to
benefit ooy third parties and this Agrecanoit aboil not be
coDstrued to coofcr any such bccefiu

21. HEADINGS. The headings througboul (be Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, end the words ocotoincd (bcreb
^(kII b 00 way be bdd to expiain, modify, anqdtfy or aid b the
ininprctaikp, coostruccLao or mwmmg of the provitioas of this
A^ecmcnt

12. SFECtAJL PROVISIONS. AdditioaftI <x utodi^
previsions set forth b the attacfaed EXHlBrT A ore moorparotcd
herein by refcrcocev

23. SEVERABIUTY. Intbecvcntanyafthepro^'isionBofthis
Agrccmmt arc held by a court of oaaq)etcot Jurisdictioo to be
cceunoy to any stale or fedsal law, the remalnbg provisions of
this Agreement will remalo in ftill (brae and dfbeL

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This AgrectlwoLvdildb may be
executed b a number of counierpkrti, eacb of which sfaoU be
deemed ua crigtofti, coustHutes (be endre asreement chd
underscsnding between (ho panJes, and supersedos all prior
agreements and undostondtogi with respect to (ho subject meiter
heroot

Page 4 of 4
ContrfidOT Inhbto

Date mi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

DCHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Date/Completion of Services, Is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemervt to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor Issued under the Executive Order
2020-04, as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, and 2020-
09 of the State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and ail obligations of
the parlies hereunder, shall become effective upon Governor's approval.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/CompletJon of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) years addHlonal
yearts) from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery
of ser^ces, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval ̂
the Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the vwirlc to be performed
and how cotrectlve action shall be managed rf the subc^tractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall ..manage the
subcontractor's perfoimanoe on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all sut>contractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performanoe.

8S-20204)BH<r7-aAPtO^ A-Rvifsloni loSUndBfd Oorrtract Pw^TalonB Ccntracbw
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide the services in this Agreement to address the
crisis intervention and peer support needs for under-Insured or uninsured
indrviduats who Include:

1.1.1. ChBdren, youth, and young adults with serious emotional disturbance
(SED);

1.1.2. Adults with severe mental Illness (SMI), severe and persistent mental
illness (SPMI)* and/or substance use disorder (SLID): and

1.1.3. Other tndJvlduals who are In need of behavioral health supports,
including health care personnel.

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement. under-Insured or uninsured Individuals
Include:

1.2.1. Indrviduals who are not covered by public or oommerdal health
Insurance programs;

1.2.2, fndvviduali&whQ, ifcovered by a oommercial health insurance plan,
are not sufficientty covered under their ptan to Include services that
are authorized under this Agreement require co-payments or
deductiblee.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement all references to days sha II mea n calendar
days.

1.4. The Contractor shall enhance its crisis service system and expand Its existing
capacity to provide crisis intervention services by hiring, training ̂ and deploying
staff in Comnujriity Mental Health Region Six (6). .

1.5. The Contractor shall provide services In this Agreement during the COViD-19
pandemic in accordance with:

1.5.1. Applicable federal and state law, including administrative ndes and
regulations;

1.5.2. The terms and conditions of the New Hampshire Rapid Response to
Behavioral Health Needs During COVID-19 grant as identified in
Exhibrt C Payment Terms, Section 1; and

1.5.3. The New Hampshire Rapid Response to Behavioral Health Needs
during COVID-19 grant otaiactrves and timelines as follows:

1.5.3.1. Hire additional staff as described in Section 2, Staffing.

1.5.3.2. Train additional staff as described in Subsection 2,2.
I

S&-202aoeH<)7-RAPI l>06 ConCfcctor lnitl«]&

The Community Cound) of Nashua, N.R Paoel of d ^ Date
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New Hampshire Depajtment of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

1.5.3.3. Deploy (he trained staff to provide the Crisis Services
described In this Agreernent as described in Subsection 1.6.

1.6. The Department expects that the Individuals served under this Agreement will
fall into spedfic allocattcns that will be used for outreach purposes:

1.6.1. Approximately 70% wil) have: SUD, with or without co-occuning SMI,
SPMI or SED, or SMI. SPMI, or SED;

1.6.2. Approximately 10% will be healthcare personnel with mental disorders
less severe than SMI requiring mental health care; and

1.6.3. Approxtrnately 20% wQI have a mental health disorder less severe
than SML

1.7. The Contractor shaJI provide optional access to these services through
teleheaith, consistent vnth guidance provided by the Department, or as
authorized under other Federal and ^ate regulations implemented due to
COVID-19.

1.6. The Contractor shall lake all reasonable steps to have additional staff in place
to expand crtsis services to the individuals under this Agreement no later than
August 20,2020.

1.9. The Contractor shall conduct assessments and provide crisis interventions
under this Agreement based on the 10 core values Identified in Uie SAMHSA-
published gulddlnes, "Core Elements In Responding to Mental Health Crises.'

1.10. The Contractor shall evaluate and treat Indlviduats during crisis Interventions
to enable a comprehensive understanding of the situation and help Individuals
served gain a sense of control over their situatfon.

1.11. The Contractor shall provide crisis services and interventions by:

1.11.1. Providir^ timely access to services and supports in the least restrictive
manner, including but not Rmited to providing peer support by
engaging and helping indrviduals manage their crises; assessments;
and Interventions to help Individuals cope with and navigate the crtsis;

1.11.2. Developing crisis plans and emergency interventions for each
individual served that are strengths-based and consider the whole
context of an indfviduars plan of services;

1.11.3. Referring indivlduats to longer-term services, including but not limited
to specified evidenoe-based practices where appRcabte and
appropriate;

1.11.4. Identifying recurring crises and adjusting assessment and Intervention
strategies as needed to meet the needs of the individual, indudrng
taking additional measures to reduce the liketihood of future crises;

88-202CM38H074tAPI006 Contractor Inffiate

IDe Commutiny Coundl of Nashua, KH Page 2 of 9 Dtfo
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

1.11.5. Providing crisis Intervention servioes that adhere to the six (6) key
prtrK:ipies of trauma-informed care, including: safety; trustworthiness
and transparency; peer support collaboration and mutuality;
empowerment voice and choice; and attention to cultural, historical
and gender Issues.

1.12. The Contractor shall assess and link adults v/ho are not already In behavioral
health treatment to needed services for SML/SPMI and other behavioral health
conditions . Including but not limited to:

1.12.1. Assertive communHy treatment;

1.12.2. Supported employment;

1.12.3. Illness management and recovery;

1.12.4. Therapeutic behavioral services;

1.12.5. Family support; and

1.12S. Medication management.

1.13. The Contractor shall assess and link youth who are not already in behavioral
health treatment to needed longer term services for SED, indudirig but not
limited to:

1,13.1. Modular Approach to Therapy for Children {MATCH};

1.13.2; Trauma-focused cognitive behavioral therapy; and

1.13.3. Supported employment for individuals for whom It Is developmentally
appropriate.

1.14. The Contractor shall assess arKJ link youth and adults wtio are not already in
behavioral health treatment to a comprehensive array of needed SUD
treatment servioes, inducting but not limited to:

1.14.1. Evatuatlons;

1.14.2. Withctrawal management;

1.14.3. Outpatient oourvsetlng;

1.14.4. R^dential services; and

1.14.5. Recovery supports.

1.15. The Contractor shall use strategies to address SUD that may Include but are
not limited to:

1.15.1. Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT);

1.15.2. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT);

1.15.3. Motivational Enhancement Therapy (MET);

1.16.4. Seeking Safety;

S&-2020^B^M37-RAFIDOe Contrsdor Inhjals,

The Communlry Council d Naflhua, N.M. Page 3 ofe Dste
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New Hampehfre Department of Heattti artd Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

1.15.5. The Seven Challenges; and

1.15.6. Brief strategic family therapy.

1.16. The Contractor shall utilize American Society of Addiction Medtdne criteria to
identify the appropriate initial level of care for the individual and assist the
individual with accessing care, Including but not lirrvted to:

1.16.1. Identifying providers;

1.16.2. Assisting the individual whh contacting providers and completing an
initial screening for treatment services; and

1.16.3. Assisting the individual with meeting admission requirements,
Including linWrtg them with ftnandal resources.

1.17. For iridrviduals who are already in care, reconnecting the individual to their
existing care providef(6) In addition to linking them to other approprtate
community and social support services as needed.

1.18. The Contractor shall provide crisis Intervention services to children, youth and
young adults with SED in a manner that aligns with NH RSA135-F. System of
Care for Children's Mental Health.

1.19. In Community Mental Health Region Six (6), the Contractor, in collaboration
with the Department, shall;

1.19.1. Ensure health care providers are informed of the availabilrty of New
Hampshire Rapid Response services: and

1.19.2. Conduct messaging and marlceting to health care providers about the
Contractor's capadty to provide these services to health care
personnel experiendng a behavioral health crisis and how to access
care,

120. The Contractor shall ensure that its own staff are aware of New Hampshire
Rapid Response resources to support them during a behavioral heaKh crisis.

2. Staffing

2.1. The Contractor shall colfaborate Vktih the Department on the development and
provision of training for the Contractor's staff specific to the New Hampshire
Rapid Response no later than June 30, 2020.

22. The Contractor shall ensure that Contractor staff receive training on:

2.2.1. New Hampshire Rapid Response goats and objectives;

2.2.2. COVLD-IOweJated treatnnent adaptations, including safety and
telemedicine;

2.2.3. Guideline-based crisis intervention;

SS-2020^BH07-RAPII>06 Coniraclor Inttlalft
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New Hampshtre Departmerrt of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

2.2.4. Trauma-Informed care that is tailored to an indhndUal's age. gender,
racse, and other individual characteristics; and

2.2.5. Use of American Sodety of Addiction Medicine critetia for SUD
services.

2.3. The Contractor shad provide the staffing to conduct the services under this
Agreement as follows:

2.3.1. Clinical Project Director (0.1 PTE) to oversee New Hampshire Rapid
Response implementation and ^evaJitalk)n in concert with the
Department's State Project Director,

2.3.2. Crisis Team Clinician (1.0 PTE) to provide trauma-informed crisis and
emergertcy assessment and treatment to indrviduals served, and
facQitate Intervfews related to hie Government Performance and

Results and Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA).

2.3.2.1. Crisis Team CHnldans must be a master's level cflnidah with
at least two (2) years related experience and must be
supervised by the Contractor's Clinical Service Director.

2.3. J. Crisis Team Peer (1.0 PTE) to provide peer support, crisis planning
and project assessments for the New Hampshire Rapid Respond In
addition to facilitating GPRA-relaled Intervi^s.
2:3.3.1. Crisis Team Peer must l>e trained to provide these services

and must have lived experience.

2.3.3.2. Crisis Team Peer must be supervised by the Contractor's
Cnnical Service Director.

2.3.4. Administrative Support Person (0.2 PTE) to provide admirristrative
support for New Hampshire Rapid Response evaluation actMties.

2.3.4.1. Admlnislrative Support Person must have a bachelor's
degree in a related field or an equivalent combination of
education and experience.

2.3.5 If the Contractor is faced with a reduction in the alrfiity to deliver said
services, the Contractor shall provide written notioe to the Department
wtthin thirty (30) calendar days of the Board approved decision.

2.3.5.1 The Contractor shall consult and collaborate with the
Department prior to any anticipated reduction in its at^ilty to
provide services under this Agreement or elimination of
services In order to reach a mutually agreeable solution as to
the most effective way to provide the services under this
Agreement.

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPICM» Cantractor Iniilale,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT B

2.3.6 The Contractor shall not redirect funds aDocated in the budget for the
New Hampshire Rapid Response services provided under, (his
Agreement

3. Performance Measures and Data Reporting

3.1. The Contractor agrees to participate in periodic New' Hampshire Rapid
Response monttoring meetings and teleoonferences. based on scheduled
dates and times mutually agreeable to the Contractor, other New Hampshire
Rapid Response Contractors, and the Department

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department witti progress reports regarding
the implementation of staffing and training requirements under this Agreement,
In the format and frequency determined hy the Department .

3.3. The Contractor shafl support the J^partment's effort to compty with the GPRA
as H pertains to services provided to the IndMduals spedfi^ in the Extiitit B,
Scope of Work of this Agreement

3.4. The Contractor shall collect GPRA data through interviews with Indviduals
served under this Agreement, who agree to complete the QPRA Interview
process upon admission, at the six-month mark of receiving services and upon
discharge from crisis and emergency services.

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide a $20 gift card, per Interview, to
indtviduals who agree to participate in the GPRA data collection
Interview process, subject to the Departments provision of gift cards
to the Contractor for this express purpose.

3.4.1.1 The Contractor shall collaborate wtth the Department on '
the replenishment of gift card Inveritorles as needed,
subject to the Departments statewide supply. In no
instance shafl the Contractor be liable for or required to
provide a gift card to the Indlvkfuaf once Its supply of
Department-provided gift cards has been exhausted.

3.5. The Contract shaP input GPRA data coltected from IndMduats using the
SAMH^ GPRA data collection tool, via assessments klehtiPed in 3.4 or with
the use of separate GPRA data collection.

3.6.^ The Contractor shall enter GPRA information obtained from each individual Into
the SAMHSA Performance Accountability and Reporting System (SPARS)
within the time period specified by SAMHSA.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall work with the Departments designated New
Hampshire Rapid Response evaluation team to ensure high-qualtty
data collection.

3.7. The Contractor may utilize funding in this Agreement designated for data

S3-2Q20T)fiH07-RAPID-06 Ccntrsctor InitraJs
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infrastructure projects, teclinotogica) activities, and equipment, as allowable
under the SAMHSA approved New Harnpshtre Rapid Response grant's terms
and conditions. The Contractor shall obtain the Departments prior approval
for such projects or acthnties.

4. Exhibits incarporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of IndivkluaDy WentifiaWe Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under toe Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibh I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties,

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this ̂ reernent in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. I mpacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees toat. to toe extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an Inpact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Cutturally and Linguistically Appropriate Seniices (CLAS)

5.2,1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limiled English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningfbt access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits aito Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resutfrng from the performance of the
services of toe-Contract shaEI Include the following statennent, The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract Mtito the State of New Harripshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided by toe United States Department
of Health and Human Services.'

SS-21>200BH-074tAPII>C6 Contractof

ThoComnwrrtyCoundloTMiahuO. N.H. Pag07ore Data



DocuSign Envelope ID; 1059DC7A-19EF-4763-A91A-1A5168F9CBF9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Rapid Response

EXHIBIT 8

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distrlbirtlon
or use.

5.3.3. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department

5.4. Operation of Fadlrties; Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. in the operation of any factlities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shaD be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit^ and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local tire protection agency, and shall be In
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1, Books, records, docurnents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses Incurred by the
Contractor In the performance of this Agreement, and all Income
received or coHected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting
procedures ami practices, which sufticientiy and properly reflect an
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
DepartmenL and to Include, without limatation, aQ ledgers, books,
records, and original evidenoe of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories,
valuations of In-kind contfibotlons, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department

6.2. During the term of this Agreennent and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and

SS-202(>OBHO7-RAP)[W)6 Corrtroctor Jieisis
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reoords maintained pursuant to ttva Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the Oepartmenrs payment of the
price limitatton hereunder, the Agreenrtent and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obtigations as, by the terms of the Agreement ere to
be perform^ after the end of the term of this Agreement and/or survive the
termination of the Agreement) shall termlrvate, provided however that If. upon
review of the Rnal Expenditure Report, the Department shall disatlow anyi
expenses dalmed by the Contractor as costs hereunder. the Department shaD
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

SS-2020-DeH-07-RAPI[>06 Contraotor Inlttsla
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Payment Tenrts

Thts Agreement Is funded by:

1.1. 100%, Emergency Grants to Address Mental Health and Substance Use
Disorders During COVID-IS, as awarded on April 16, 2020, by the U.S.
Department of Health ar>d Human Services, CFDA 93.665, FAIN #
H79FG000210.

For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Departmertt has identlfted the Contractor as a Subreciplent, In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.2. The Indirect Cost Rate of 10.00% applies In accordance vnth 2 CFR
§200.414,

2.3. The Departmant has klentifed this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.67.

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for authorized expenditures
incurred In the futfUtment of this Agreement, subject to the limitations herein,
and shall be In accordance with the approved line item budget table belovir

BUDGET

Line Item Amount

Amount

Staffma $113,500

Frtnoe and Benefits $ 34.050

Personal Protective Equipment, Supplies. Technolofiy. and Tralnino $ 5.400

Data Collection S 4,500

Indirect Costs on Clinical Sarvloes $15,295^

indirect Costs on Data Coiisction $  450

Total ^ $173,195

3.1. Authorized expenditures for direct services provided under the
Agreement to individuals are subject to the following [inrtitations:

3.1.1. For uninsured individuals, expenditures win be Gmlted to those
Incurred by the Contractor to provide services to the Individuals.

3.1.2. For under-insured Individuals, expenditures will be limited to
those Incurred by the Contractor to provide to Individuals
services that are not a covered service under the individual's
applicable Insurance. For covered services that are sut^ctto a
co-payment or deductible for which the IndividuaJ served

The Commurtty Council of Nashua, N.K
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Indicates they cannot afford to pay, the Contractor is authorized
to waive payment from the Individual and to charge the
corresponding amount as a cost Incurred under this Agreement.

3.1.3. Data collection, including conducting Govennment Pefformance
and Results and Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA) interviews
wHh Individuals served, will not be consklered a direct service

provided to Individuals unless the Contractor chooses to
complete the GPRA interview as part of providing clinical
services to tfte individual, such' as for the assessment process.
In such event, the costs incuned to complete the GPRA
interview will be reimbursable under this Agreement: hut In no
instance shall the Contractor seek or obtain addrttonal

reimbursement from an individual's insurerfor ihe same costs or
service.

4. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which Identifies and
requests rembursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month,
The Contractor shall ensure the Involoe is completed, dated and returned to the
Department In order to Initiate payment

4.1. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked
for wages reported under this contract.

4.1.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that ac3Curately
reflect the work performed.

4.2. The Contractor shall retain documentation to support evidence of actual
expenditures incurred in fulfillment of this Agreement.

5. In Deu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature end
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoioesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Manager
Bureau of Behavioral Health

Department of HeaKh and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subs^uent to approval of the submitted invoice and If
Buffident funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Pro^risions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

TTieCom/nurftyCouxllofNitsbw, N,H. Contract» bafas
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7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days alter the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 17
Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance wfth funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance vtdth the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to tfie contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the ear>nc68 provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
lirrtited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation, between budget line
items, and adfust^ encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget
lines, through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if
needed and justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Comractor Is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
'  If any of the following conditions exist;

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed ftscaJ year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Ml-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations reoeivlng support of S1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual ftnaricial audit.

12.2. IfCondition A exists, the Contractor shall su bmit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CER Part
200. Subpart F of the Uniform Admiinistrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

The Community Coundl of KdShuo.N.K EitftlbRC Cor«ictcr|(«iol».
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12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financia) audH performed by an Independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscaf year.

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an indeperKlent CPA If the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

12.4.1. Whereas the Contractor has extensive and ongoing contractual
agreements with the Department, the Contractor agrees to notify
the Department's designee for the NH Rapid Response Program
If. during the contract period of this Agi^ment:

12.4.1.1. The Contractor undergoes any Federal, State, or
tndependent audit that results in idenlified internal
control deficiencies, corrective action plans, material
weaknesses, or otherwise calls for remedies to

\  resolve financial compliance deficiencies.

12.4.1.2. The Contractor undergoes any Federal, State or
Departmental perfomtance review that results In
deficient^ compliance with contractual or grant
performance requirements, or other\wse calls for
remedies to resolve performance deficiencies.

12.4.1.3. The Contractor agrees to apply the same or similar
remedies, rf materially appltcat^e to thJs Agreement,
upon the Department's request

12.5. In addition to. and rwt In any way In limitation of obligations of the
Contract, It is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liabde for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

ThQCGmmurctyCourciofNB8nua,N.H EiiiUtC Coniradcr tnill8i».
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CERTIFICATtON REQAHDIWQ DRUQ.PWEE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

TTm Vendor identliled in Section 1.3 of tho Oenored Provtstons agrees to comply vdlh the provisions of
SoetioRS 6161-6160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 101^690. T^te V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et aaq.), and further agrees to have the Contractof's representative, es Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute ttw foVowIng Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIViOUALS

US DEPARTIBENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTUENT OF EDUCATtON - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTUENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

TYiis certiRcatiDn is'required by ttw regutBtions implsmenting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workptsoe Act of 1866 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, SubtlQs D; 41 U.S.G. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1969 regulatiofts were emended end published as Part 11 of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691). and require oertificabon by grantees (arxi by cnference, sub^rantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they wiD masntsin a drug-free workplaoe. Section 3017.630(c) of the
reguiabon provides that a grantee (^ by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors) thai la.e State
may elect to make one certification to Ibe Oepartment in each ̂ erai fiscal year In lieu of cailificales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificBllen. The oertificste set out below Is a
materiel representation of tect upon which rellanoe is placed when the agency awards the grant Faiae
c^flcaiton or vtolatton of tho certification shsO be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
tormlnatlon of grants, or govenanent wide suspenston or determent. Contractors using this form should
send itto;

Commissioner

NH Department of Hoetth ar>d Human Servfoes
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 06301-6505

1. Tt>e grantee oertiflee that tl will or wiO continue to provldo a drug-freo woikploco by:
1.1. PubSshing e statement notifying omployoos that tho unlawful tnanufixtuxe. distribution,

cfispenslrtg. possession or use of e controlled substance is prohlbtted In tho grantee's
woikplaco and spocifying the actions that wilt be taken agalrtst emptoyoos for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establlshtng an ongoing drug-froo awareness program to Infomi omployoos about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The granlae's policy of malntairUng a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rohabditalion. and omployoo assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties thai may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations .

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Maktng it a requirement that each employee to t>e engaged in the performance Of the grant be

given 8 copy of the statement required by paregraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the emptoyee In the statement required ̂  paregraph (a) that, as a condaian of

employment under the grerk, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the element; end
1.4.2. Notify the employer in vrriting of his or her oonvvtion for e violation of a cnminal drug

stati^ occurring h the workplece no later then five calender days efier such
convlctlonc

1.6. Notifying the agency in writing, wltiiin ten celender days after reoetwrtg notice under
subipieragraph 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise reoelving actual notice of such convidion.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including posbion tile, to every grent
officer on whose grant actl^ the convicted employee wes workb^, unless the Federal agency

BMMlD-CwtmcsUonrBpxJdlnoOruQFreo V«ndorlnBst»
WcfkplBoo A(
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hea designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identification number^s) of each affected gr^

1.6. Taktngorto of the foQowlng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagrsph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee >^o Is so convlctod
1.6.1. Taking appropriate pertomoi action against such an employee, up to and Including

termlrution, consistent with the roduiremonts of the RohabBitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6^. Requiring such empbyeo lo partlc^ate satisfactorliy In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabttttfion program approved for such purposes by e Federal, Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other approprialo agency;

1.7. Maklrtg a good faith effort to continue to mainftaln a drug-free workpiaoe through
Imptemernation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3.1.4,1.5, aiKt'1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the sltefs) for the perfonnance of work done in
oormoction with the spedDc grant

Place of Parformanca (etra^ address, city, county, stale, Tip code) (Esl each location)

Check O rf there are workplaces ot\ file that are rwt tdenUfled here.

Cov<\v<\o wcKj CouroX ̂
Vendor Namo:'^3<iAf

Dote «imo:6.pl4,«^. C
Ttile:

BdinH D - Ceriinestlon regarding Dag Free
WorkptBce Ragiaemerti
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CERT1RCATI0N I^GARDrNG UIBBYING

The Vendor idenliried In Section 1.3 of (he Goneref Provisions agrees to cornply wBh the provisions cf
Soctbn 319 of Pubdc Lafw 101-121, Government wfde Gutdanoe for t4ew Restdctfons on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to havo tho Contractor's ropresontatlvo. as rdonlifted in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provlsiofts execute the foOowlng Certification;

US DGPARTMCm OF HEALTH AHD HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDLiCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (irKficate applloabte program coverod):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Femilies under Tide IV«A
^hOd Sup^ Enforcement Program under Title fV-D
*Sodal Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Me^caid Program under Title XIX
^Community Services Block Giant under Tltlo VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant uirder Tltlo IV

The underlined certifies, to the best of his or her knovdadge and belief, (hat

1. No Federal appropriated furrds ftava been paid or ̂  be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person tir Influertdng or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Caress, an officar or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress ki
connection vulth tho awarding of any Federal contract, oontlnuatlon, renewal, amendment, or
modineatlon of any Fodoral contra^ grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sudgranteo or sub'OontractoO.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will t>e paid to any person for
infhienclr>g or attempting to Influence en officer or employee cf any agency, e Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ̂  e Member of Congress in conneclion this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperalwe agreement (end by specie merdion sul^srentee or sub*
oontractor), the undersigned shafl complete end siivnit Stenderd Form ILL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in eccordarx^ with its instructions, attached and iderrtified as Stanctard Exhflalt E*L)

3. The undersigned shaO require that (he language of this certification be Inckided h the award
document for sub*awards at all tiers (hctuding subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, end cooperative agreements} and (hat aO sub-rodplonls shall oortify and discbso ocoordlnQly.

This certfficatlon is a mstertal representation of fact upon which robanco was pisood whcr) thb transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certiflcodort b a prerequisite for making or entertng into thb
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Tile 31, U,S. Code. Any person who falls to fte the req^jli^
certification shad be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 510,000 end not more (hen $100,000 for

14.
Vendor Name:^&€iA- rwXTV>

TOLO

Da khSme7c?WKvfh^ L.
Tltkii

Exhibit E - CollAcstkin Roganllng Lobbying VenOv IrfSial
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CER-nnCATIOM REQARDIMQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENStON

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provlsaons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Exocutlvo OfOoo of tho President. Execi/tNe Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Pert 76 regerdinp Debennenl.
Susponsion. end Other Rosponsibitity Matters, and further e0raee to have the Contmctor^
representattve, as iderrtlfied In Sectiofis 1.11 end 1.12 of the Genersl Provisions execute ttie foliating
Certi6catiort

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERnnCATlON

1. Ey aigrung and submating this proposal (contract), the prospective primary pardctpant la providing the
oertrfication set out below.

Z The InabCty of a person to provide (he certiflcstton required below will not necessarily result in denial
of pertlcipatton In this covered transsctior\. If necessary, the prospective paxlictpent shaO submit an
ex^anatfon of why It cannot provido tho cortificatbn. Tho oertlBcation or explanation wlQ be
considered in connection with the NH Departmerd of Health and Human Sorvfcos' (OHHS)
detemdnatlon whether to enter Into this tmnsaction. However, failure of (he prospective primary
participant to furnish a certlflootion or on axpbmailon shall dcsqualify such persorv from parficlpetion in
this transaction.

3. The oertlTtcation In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which rellanca was placed
when DHHS determlnod to enter Into this transaction. If It is latar datdoninad that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendisfed an arronaous cartSicatlon. In addrtion to other remetfies
available to tho Federal G^mment, OHHS may tarmlnata this transaction for causa or default

4. The prospeothie primary partldpant shan provfda immediate written notica to the OHHS agertcy to
whom this proposal (contrect) Is eubmSted If at any time tha prospective primary partlctpent teams
that Its cdfllficalion was erroneous when submQted or has Income OToneous by reason of changed
clrcumstanoes.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' 'ineOglble,' 'tower tier covered
trensacb'on,' 'partictoant,' "person,' 'primary covered tmnsaction,' "prlrtdpH* 'proposal,' and
'voluntarlty exctoded,' as used to this clause, have the meanings set out In the Deflnltlorts and
Coverage sections of the rules implemanting Exocutlva Order 12649:46 CFR Part 78. See the
attached definltione.

6. Tha proepective primary peitKlpant agrees by sutmrtttog this proposal (contract) that, shouid tho
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, It shell rtot krtowingly enter toto any tower tier covered
transsKtion mth a person who is debarred, suspended, declared toeflglbla, or voluntarily excluded
from pertictoation to this covered tiansaction, unless authorised by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that ft wilt Inctudo the
clause trfled 'Certitication Regsnting Debarment. Suspen^ori, (riellglbllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS, without modMcatlon, In all tower tier covorad
transactions and in eSl soCdtallons for tower tier covered transacttons.

6. A participant In a covered trenssotton may rely upon a oortlflcation of o prospective particlpent In a
tower tier covered transactton that ft is not dobarrod, suspended, Ineligible, or invoduntartly excluded
from tha covered Iransactton, unless It Knows (hat tho cortinc&tton Is errocMous. A parllc^nt may
decide tha method and frequency by which It detormtoes the eligibility of Its prtocip^s. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, chock the Nonprocuremenl List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be oortstrued to require eatabjahment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certlftoation required by (hts clause. The knowledge and

0(MMt F - CcrUncsUon Reganfirg DebAmtait, StApenslan Vcnito SilUxb
AnSOChefRftjpomlWliyMattsn A Z _
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brformalion of a participant is not raquirad to exca^ that Is normefly possessed by a pmde^it
person in the ordinefy course of business dealings'.

1 a Except for transactions auttwrized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant fn a
covered transaction knowwigly enters Into a bwar tier covered transaction \^h a person who b
suspended, debarred, tnertglble, or votuntorOy excluded itom participation In this tromactfon, In
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal govemnwnt, DHHS may terminate thb transaction
for cause Of dcfsulL

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The pcospectlve primary partkfpant certlflos lo the best of its knourfedge and belief, that it and Its

prfnctpals:
11.1. are nof presently deberrodl suspertded, proposed for debarment,'decl3red ineligtbde, or

voluntaflty exduded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
1 ̂J2. hsvo not wtthtn a throo^yoar period prooodfog this proposal (contract) been convfctad of or had

a civti judgment rendered against them for oommission of fr^ or a criminal offense in
connection wfth obtafoing, attempting to obtain, or perfonning a public (Fedefal, $tat)e orlocaD
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal of State entilnist
statutes or oomrmasion of snfoezzlemant, thafo forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receMng stolen property;

11.3. are not pressnhy inrficted for othsrvfise oriminally or cb€ly charged by a governments) entity
(Federal, State or locsd) witi commission of any of the offenses enumerated si paragraph {0(b)
of this c^'rficstion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this eppiicatjon/propoeal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) termlnsded for cause or defoult.

12. Where the proepective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, euch prospective parddpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (oontrdct), the prospective lower tier pmticipanl, as

defined In 46 CFR Part 76, cortiflos to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and Its princtpaJs:
13.1. are rwt presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from partlcfpatlon In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospcctlvo lower Dor partlcip^ Is unable to oortrfy to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective bwer tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that ct will
Include this clause entitled *Cort^catfQri Regarding Debarmanl, Suspension, Ineltglbility. end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Coverod TransecDons.* without modification in all lower tier covered
transections and (n all solicllatloos for lower tier covered transadlone.

Vendor Name:

Cr>v\wN.-.>AT'^ CootncA ts^V\

_

Tide: CUioef Of SsxVkOi-S
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And Other RcsponsblEty htoUeis
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CERTIFICATtOW OF COftTPUAWCE WITH REQUrREMEffTS reRTAINIWQ TO

FED6RAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OP f ATTH-BASEP ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Ventfor Mentlfled In Section 1.3 of the General Provfaions egrees by atgnslure of the Corrtractor't
ropreeentatlve as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12of IheOenemI P^alons, to execute the fottowtng
oerttflcation:

Vendor wQI comply, and vrfll require any Bubgrantees or subcontredora to comply, with any appJIcable
federal nondi&criminslion requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U-S-C. Section 376dd) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the deiivefy of services or benefrts, on the basis of rece, color, religion, national origin, and sex The Act
requires certain recl|denls to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the JuvenSo Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
roforence. the civli rights obfigalions of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are proh&lted from diecrimlnatino, eflher in employment practices or In the dofivery of senricee or
benefits, on the basis of race, ootor, religaon, national orlgtn, end sex The Act includes Equal
Employmant Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the dvU Rights Act c( 19S4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibitB recants of federal OnaTOlal
Dsslstanoe from dbcrimlnating on the basis of race, color, or rt^nal origin In any program or ccMy);
- the RehabiCtallon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which pnohibBs reclpcerrts of Federal financial
assistance firom discriminating on the basis of disabllBy, in regard to empfoyment ervl the delwry of
servloes or benefits, In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Dtscbllllles Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131.34}, which prahB}|l8
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons wBh disatnllties In employment, State and local
government services, public accomrnodatfons, oommerdai faci&ties. and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1663,1&85-88). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted cducalion programs;

■ the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 61064)7), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial a^tanoe. tt does not include
employment dtscrim'ination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Ajstise Relations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt 42
(U.S. Oepasiment of Juetlce Regulations - Nondlscrlmirkation; Equal Employmont Opportunity; Poliaes
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizatens); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundomentad princlplos and policy-making
critaria for partnerships faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

« 28 C.F.R. pi 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatmonl for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whlsti^lower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authortzation
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. 1.112-239, enacted January 2.2013) tho Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Empto^e WMstleblower Protootions, which protects employees againsf
reprisal for certain whistle btowing octivltios In connection wBh federal grants end oontrscU.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which rehence ie placed when the
agency awards the grant. False oertincation or violation of the certificalion ehall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide euepension or
debarmerrl

EtfTbSO
VenSof Intob _

C«tXnSen crocnctanit «(n râ inriBfa pcMntii b FMm NsftftKfViiuMrv e9>B TrMyrMt «i Ptf ffvteiri
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admlni&lrBtKo agency makes a findino of
discriminatton after a due process hearing on the grounds of race. coSor, religion, national origin, or s^
against a re^lent of funds, the recipient wQI forward a copy of the fmding to the Office for CmI Rights, to
the appTicable controcdno agency or division wtlMn the Oepktmeni of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlractor's
representativo as idontSied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fenowfng
certification:

1. Sy signing end submlUing this proposal (oontrad) the Vendor agrees to comply whh the provtsions
Irtdicatdd above.

ConmrrvoTi'
Vendor Name:

me

Tiue: CWvi^OF-Sefoicje.^

ExniDdQ

697^4

itM. toTin*

Vendor UVilelt
0««taaun «C«ipl««*«rDra«em«Mi r*«i«mai*lsn.Cqtil TPutrantd MlkSsMd OroailzaiDrM
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CERTIFICATtOW REGARDINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 1(^^27, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also loiown aa the Pro-Chj)dren Actof 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not bo permitted h any portion of any indoor facility owned or teased or
contract^ for by an entity and used mut^y or n^larty for ti>e provision of heafth, day care, education,
or Cbrsry services to children under the age of 16, if the aervices ere funded by Federal programs either
drectty or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
bw dMs not apply to chddren's seMces provid^ tn prfvaSs residences, facilities furtdod soteiy by
Medicare or McdtcaU funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Failure
to comply whh the provlstons of the law may resuX In the imposition of a cM monetary penalty of up to
$1000 por day andter the imposOion of an edmlnistrBlive oompGanoe order on tho res^nslbie entfty.

Tho Vendor klentited In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signalura of the Contractor's
represoniatfve as Idontffied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fotlorring
oertlOcatton:

1. By signing and eufarrdtting this contract, tho Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all appticaWe provisions of Public Law 193-227. Part C. known as the Pro^lldren Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: Gvitodcr

Dal^ / /ffdme:C*4r*
Title; rju L»

Ejffte K - CdHAceCon Repsfdng Vandor MQafa
EiWiittn/nerSBJ Tobaoco dniClXe
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AHD ACCOUNTABiLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wfth the Health Insurance Portability and Aocourvtabtlity Act. Public Law 104-191 end
with tha Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually klamiflable Healtn Information. AS
CFR Parts 160 end 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor toat
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shaD mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human SeMoes.

(1) Deftnlttoira.

a. "Breach" ehaD have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal RegulatioRs.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160,103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulatloris.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desronated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
ln45CFR Section 164,601.

e. "Data Aaoreoation" shall have the same meaning as tha term "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section164.501.

f. 'Henfth Cere QperHtlohs' shall have the same meaning as tho term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Infomnation Technology for Eoonomic and Clinical Health
Act, TldaXliJ, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of
2009. ,

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Prrvacy and Security of Individually Idenllfiiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

L  "Indhrfduar shall have the same meaning as the term "Indtvtduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shaD Include a person who qualifies as a persona) representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

"PttvQcv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information art 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services. '

k. "Protected Health Information" shaO have the same meaning as the term "protected heaHh
Informatioo' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Sr20l4 EjrtiMi Contraeter irtOaU,
Moahh ireurBnoe PonaWUy Act
Buifiiecs Auodote AgnwrnsiTt /* /)
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I  ̂Reouired bv LaW shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee. ^

n. 'Securrtv Rule' shall mean the Security Starxtards for the Protection of Bectfonic Protected
Health Information at 45 Of R Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. Unsecured Protected Health Information" nreans protected heaJth Information that Is not
secured by a technology starxtard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endors^ by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the Amerlcarr National Starxfards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shaQ have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HJTEOI

Act.

(2) Business Assoclato Uso and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (Pl^t) except as reasonably rtecessary to provide the seryices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further. Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in arry manner that would constitute a violation of the (^Ivacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or dtsdose PHI;
L  For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. belov/; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. 0)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disdosod only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
dlsdosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosuro is reasonably necessary to
provide services urxler Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI In response to e
request for disclosure on the t>8sls that It Is required by law, without first noting
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to ol^ect to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity obje^ to such disclosure, the Business ^

S»»14 E^nnXtl Cortractolrtflaitt
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI lintd Covered Entity has exhausted aO
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity ncdfles the Biisinese Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by addiljonal restrictiona over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Pnvacy and Securfty Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such addltiorud restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such ackfitlonai restrictions and shall abide by any eddttlonai security safeguards.

(}) OblloattonB and Actlvltto of Business Asaocwte.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entit/s Prrvacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have en Impact on the
protected health Infcrmalion of the Covered Entity. ,

b. The Business Associate shall immediatety perform a risk assessment when K becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
Orruted to;

o The nature and extent of the protected heaBh Information invofved, including the
types of iderrtifm end the likelihood of re-jdentificatiofi;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made:

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired' or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Buslrtess Associate shell complete the rtsk assessment wKhin 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in vmting to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, end
Breach Notification Rule.

/

d. Business Associate shall make available aQ of its internal poficies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behatf of Covered Entity to the Secretafy for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Securfty Rule.

o. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI urrier the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrlcUons and oondtUons on (he use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shaft be considered a direct third party benefk;iaiy of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business assodatos, who wtll be receiving PHI ^

W014 E)tf)lbni Cortradfirrrffiau^^^:^
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pursuarrt ts this Agreement, wfit^ rights of enforcement ar>d indemnification from such
business associates wtio shall be governed t>y standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
corrtract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use artd disclosure of
protected health informaSon.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a vurttten request ftpm Covered Errtity.
Business Associate shall malca avaliabia during nonmat business hours at Its offtces all
records, books, agreements, poQcies and procedures rerafing to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compfiance vrith the tenns of the Agreement

Q. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Buuness Associate shaD provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Cove^ Entity, or as dir^^tod by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CPR Section 154.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amsndment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Coverad Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuffiQ its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526,

L  Business Assodate shall docun>ent such disdosures of PHI and Information retatsd to
such disclosures as wrould be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an eccounting of disclosures of PHI in acc^anoe with 45 CFR Action
164.528.

j. Within ten <10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity euch IrtiFormation es Covered Entity may require to futfiii Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI tn accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendrhent of. or eccounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall wHhiri two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HiPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to die inifividual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wrthin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assodate shall return or destroy, as spedfied by Covered Entity^ all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate tn connection with the
Agreement, and Shan not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to tn
the Agreement Business Assodate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return crdestructlonlnfeaslWe. for eolong as Business l

an014 ■ EiJtbai CcotrBCtortnttlaa
HfiBtth rmmfea Portattiity Ad . /
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Associate malntaJrts such PHI. If Covered Entity. In Its sote dlscretioo. requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shaQ certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObRqatlons oCCovorod Entity

a. Covered Endty shaD rectify Business Associate of any changes or ilmitalior^&) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals In acoordaiKe with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or di^losure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptfy notify Business Associate of arty changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
dtedosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.606 or 45 CFR Section 164.608.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in acoordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect &js1n6ss Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause -

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-67) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately termtrtate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's Imowledge of a breach t>y Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement sat forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreenrtent or provtcte an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach vdlhln a timeframe specified by Covered Errtity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Deftnttlons and Reouiatorv Referenoes. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A refenance in the Agreement, es amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Prtvacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no owr>er8hip rights
with respect to the PHI provufed by or created on behatf of Covered Entity.

d. InterpfBtation. The parties agree that any smblgufty In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, ^

30014 Eiwai Contffldof InHlab
Kotfih iraurenee PortafiiUb Act / ,
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e. SflOTrxntltorL If any term or contfHion of this Exhibit I or the appScatfton thereof to any
pereonfe) or drcumstarce It held Invalid, such Inyatldity shall not affoct other terms or
ooTKfitlont^vhich can t>o,gtveh effect wfthout the Invalid lorm or condition; to this end the
terma end oondlUons of ihia Exhlt>it I are declared eeverabte.

f. fiurvhraL Provtsiona in this Exhibit I regarding the use and cflsclosure of PHI. return or
destnicdon of PHI, exterraiona of tho proteotferrs of the Asreement in eeeUon (3> I. the
dofofise and ndomnification provisions of section (3) o and Perograph 13 of the
standard torms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this ExhDsSl

OepfiTtment of Health and Human Services

estate Name of the Contractor DBA^§ES^cr»iiiJrv^We^yw
iTh

firod Ropresentatlvo Signature of AulKor&ed R^res'

0 LIx)
Name of Authorized RemSiontaOv^ Narafe of Authorized Representative

PUpf oGSe.-fiJCcg^
of Authorized Reoresentadve Tide of Authdrlzed RepresentativeTitle of Authorized Representadv© presentative

□ate Data

V20M eiMMi
Heiltn liuurwtt P«il9SQty Act
ecttk>et» AtsoeSsttAfiTMnaeni
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CERTIFtCATiOW REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNIMWQ ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACTffFATAiCOWPUAMC^
1

Thd Fedaraj Fundtno Aocountubgityand TrensparencyAct (FFATA) requbea prlmo Gwardoesof indfvtdud'
Federai grantd equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data reletsd to executhre compensation and aseodated ftrat-dor sub-grofYta of $26»000 or more. If the
In&ial award Is below $25,000 baA subsequent grant nwdlflcailorks result In a total anvard equal to or over
$25,000, the awerd Is subject to the FFATA reporting roqutretnents, as of the date of the award.
In acoordanca with 2 CFR Pert 170 (ReporOng Subaward and Exooutfvo Compensation Informabon). the
Department of Health and Human Scrvloos (DKHS) must report the fodlowbtg irrfonmation for any
subaward or oontrect sward sut>}oot to tho FFATA repordng requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Fun^g apency
4. NAtC$ code for contracts/CFDA program mjmber for grants
5. PrugrBm source
6. Award title descripdveofthe purpose ofthe funding action
7. Loca&on of the er^
6. PfindpAe place of performance
9. Unique identffiercfthe entity (DUNS#)
10 Total compensation end names of the top live oxoouthros If:

10.1. More than 60% of ennual gross revenues ere firom the Federal govemmof>t and those
revenues are greater then $2SM artnuoDy Br>d

10.2. Compensation Informabon Is net already evaQatto through reporting to (ho SEC.

Prime grant reqpients must submll FFATA required data by tho ond of the month, plus 30 days, tn which
the award or award amendment ts made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prowdonsof
The Fedeiai Funding AccountabQIty and Transparency Act. Public 109-262 and Pubdc Law 110-25^
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportir^ Sutaward and Executive Compensation Information), arxl further agrees
to have the Contractor's reprosontatlve^ as identiTied in Sections l.l 1 and 1.12 of the General Pnovtsions
oxoouto tho foUowlng Certificatioin;
The betow named Conlraotor agrees to provide needed Information as oudlnod above to the NH
Department of Heallh and Human Servloes and to comply wSh aO appficalble provisions of the Federal
Financial AccountBbiiay end Transparency Act

Contractor Name;

itA * f
SOoto

Date' ' .^Mame;oj it*_ l

*1 &M3ftJ-CwtlflcationRogannnothoFMoft)Fiin^O Contnctor NSfh
Acoount^Uty And Tisnkpftwicy Ad (FFATA) Complsnoo

ou<»*(aiiort3 I. Page l er2 Osis '2M&
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^  FORMA
s

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisione, I certify that the raaponees to (he
below Itsted questione are (ate and accurate.

1. The DUNS rwrnber for your entity iK

Z tn your business or orgsntzctlon's preceding oompleted fiscal year, ̂  your txisiness or orgafitzstlon
receive (1) 80 percent orn>ore of your annual gross revenue In U.S. fo^ral contractSt subooAtracts,
bans» grants, sub-grants, and^orcoopcrstivo agrooments; and (2) $2&«OOO.OOC crnwre annual
gross revenues from U.S. federaJ contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrents^ and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

tf the answer to 02 above Is NO. stop here

if the answer to 02 atMva is YES, ptease answer the following;

3. Does the publtc have access to inforrnation about the conxpensatton of tha axecuthres in your
business or organizstlon through periodic reports filed urxlar eection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C j8m(e], 7do<d)) or section 6104 of the intema) R^nue Code of
19867

NO YES

tf the answer to #3 ebove ia YES, stop here

- tf the afkswer to #3 above is NO, please answer (he following;

4. The rtames and compensation of the fNe most highly compensated officers in you; business or
organization are as foOows;

Namo;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amounit:.

Amount

Amount.

Amount.

Amount

OlVDMtSn 10713

ExNM J - CwUncsUon RegarSnQ D>» FeOsra) Funding Contrsdor Inliue
Aooountattty And 'nwnpsrtncy Ad (FFAT^ CompiWica
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DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described mean&ig in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorteed access, or any similar term referring to
sftuetions v/here persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personaiiy identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section

'  164.402 of Trtle 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incldenf shall have the same meantr^ "Computer Security
Incldenf In sectton two (2) of NtST Publication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, national Institute of Standards end Technoilogy, U.S. Oepartmertt
of Commerce.

3. "Confldenttal Information' or "Confidential Data' means all oonfldenital Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, ftnancial, pubtic
assistance benefits and persona] Information Inctuding without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identlflabie Information.

Confidential Infonnation also includes any and ail tnformatioo owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services {DHHS) or accessed tn the course of performing contrected
services - of which coDectlon. disclosure, protection, and disposltidn is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information Indudss, but Is rK>t limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tex Information (FTl), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card IrKluslry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity {e.g., contractor, contractor'e employee,
business assoolale, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that recetves
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted dfcsmptlon or denial of servloe. the unauthorized use of
a system for the processtng or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or softv^ charactedstics without the owner's Knowledge, Instruction, or
consent incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsroutlng of phyeica) or electronic

V5. Lest up4vt9lO/OSV1B ContrDdorheiBb
OHHS ItVvmsUon
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mali, at! of \^lch may have the poitential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destructlor).

7. "Open VWreless Network" meare any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (deslgrted, tested, and
approved, by mear>8 of the State, to transmit) will t>e considered an open
network and not adequately secure lor the transmission of unencrypted Pi. PFl.
PHI or conftdentlal DHHS data.

8. Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can he used Id distinguish
or trace an Incfividuars identity, such as their name, social security numher, personal
infoimalion as defined in New Hampshire RSA Wometric records, etc.,
alorte, or when combined with other personal or identifying mformation which is linked
or Bnkablo to a spectiic indMdual, such as date and ̂ ace of bbth, mother'a maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Prhracy of IndMduaDy Identifiable Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 artd 164. promutgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or 'PHr) has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIFAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Pectronlc
ProlBctGd Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to urtauthorized indtviduald and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential tnformatiorv.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit ConfldefTtial Infomiation

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHJ In any manner that would constitute a viotation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. L&ti update IGVOBnS CiMMX Contrvctsrln^B
OHHS hrorvngBon
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request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
But)poer«, etc., without first rxotrfytng DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or ob^ to the ̂ sdosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by addrtional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of euch addttlonai
resthctlons and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or dedvalNe there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of tWs Contract

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obt^ned under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that ere not indicated In this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of InspecUng to confirm compilanoe with the terms of this
Contract

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, if End User ts transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
appticadon'e encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the tnterneL

2. Computer Disks and Pott3l>ie Storege Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of trartsm^lng DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Conftdenfial Data if
email is encrypted end being sent to and being received by emaD addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is emptoying the Web to transmit ConfldenUai
Data,' the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. .SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

j

6. Grour^d Mai) Service. End User may only transmit Conndential Data via ceiVfied ground
nrkall v^thln the continentaJ U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops arto PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
ConfidentiaJ Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

a Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

VS L83tupAtol0r09'iS EiTilbHK CorO»ctorlrttlat»
DUMS InfflmiftBdft
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wireless networic End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) v^n
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is empioying remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private rketwork (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile dev!c6(6) or laptop from vMch information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also Known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing ah SFTP to transmit Confiderrtjal Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
tnformatioa SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hOiJr auto^eletlon cydo (l.e. Conftdentlal Data will be deJeted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devioes. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wtreless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disdosue of Informatioa

UK RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTCFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract After such time, the Contractor wiil have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by (aw or permitted
under Ihls Contract. To this end, the parties must

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data ootlected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shaQ also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cfoud service or ctoud storage capabilities, and includes badcup
data end Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ertsure proper securtty rnonLtoring capabilities are In
place to detect pctenilal securtty events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for comractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide securtty awareness artd education for its End
Users tn support of protectir>g Department oonfldentiallnforTnatton.

4. The Comractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Diata
in a secure location and vdentiried In section rv. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all appQcable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and securtty. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operatlrrg systems, the latest antl-vlral, antl-
hacker, anti-epam, anthspyware, end anti-malware utilities. The environment, es a

vs. U»l updlto m/OVlS E^bAK Contrsctcr
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusiqn-detectien and frrewaD protection,

6. The Contractor agrees to arkd ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer tn the detection of any security vutneratitllty of the hosting
Infrastructure.

8. Disposlto

1. If the Contractor vnll maintain any Confidential Irrformailon on its systems <or Its
sut>contr3ctor systems), the Contractor win maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ortgoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media oontaining Stats of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable vta a secure w^pe program
In Bccordar>ce with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion ar>d media
sanitization, or otfterwlse phy^lly destroytng the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Sp^al Publication 800-68, Rev 1, OuUeBnes
for Media SanlUzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of dte data destruction, and vdD provide written certification to the Department
upon request The written certification will ir>clude all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and valldatsd. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements wilt be iolntty
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the temtination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to corrtpletely destroy all electronic Confidentjal Data
by means of data erasure, also krwwn as secure data wipfrig.

rV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURrTY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

V The Contractor will maintain proper securt^ controls to protect Department
oonfidentlal information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will rrialntain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Infonnatlon lifecyde, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage arid secure destiuotlon) reganlless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vaLtttittdftttionons &h£eK Cocmctortni&is
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3. TYw Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepartmerrt confldentKai ̂ formation
Where appllcebte.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential securtty events that can impact State of NH systems end/or
Departrr^t confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5l The Contractor wID provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In suppcn of protecting Department confidenttall information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monltortr^g complcance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for ttie Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor wiD work with the Department to sign and comply with all appBcabte
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization pollclss
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining end matntalning access to erry Department systemfe). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractore prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.1CK3, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for malntalnEng compliance with the
agreemenL -

9. The Contractor will worfc with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department ar>d
Contractor to monitor for any charvges In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that ntay
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. Ibe survey wllJ be completed
annually, or an altemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between (he Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor wfit not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New HampshEre
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in the event of any security breech Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take rrkeasures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shaD recover from the Contractor all costs of response end recovery from

V5.LBStUpO>ta lOOBne EjMA K ContnctcrbitSals
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the breach, tncluding but not limited to: credit monitorfng services, mailing costs and
costs assoctated wfth website and telephons call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply aO appllcabto statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and socurfty of Confldenttal Information. ar>d must tn aJ) other respecte
maintain the pdvacy and security of PI and PHI at a leveJ and scope that Is not less
than the ievel and scope of requirements applloabie to federal agervcles. biduding,
but r»ot Brrvted to. provisions of the Piivdcy Act of 1974 (5 U.8.C. § 852a). OHHS
Privacy Act Regulaltons (45 C.F.R. §Sb). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually ident^able health
information and as appticabie under State taw.

13. Contractor agrees to establish end maintain appropriate admlnlstraUve, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data ar>d to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stats of New Hampshire. Department of Information Techrwiogy.
Refer to Vender Resources/Procurement at https://wwv/.nh.gov/doltfverKtoT/lndex.htm
for the Department of informabon Technology policies, guidelines, standards, end
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. ContTBctor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification end incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stato's Prlvecy Offioer aixl the
State's Security Offloer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information Iveach, computer
eecurtty Incident, or suspected breach which aftocts or indirdes any State of New
Hampshire systams that connect to the Stats of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractof must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorteed End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identrfted In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that aQ End Users:

a comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
Implemented to protect Conflderrtlal Inforrrtation that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadverierti dteciosura.

b. safeguard (his tnfonnation at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devfcesAnedia containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d' send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by emafl addresses of persorts authorized to
receive such Information.

V5. LasttipdSt»1<roa'ie ExttlbRK C«nt»dorlnlUsl>
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e. limit disclosure of (he Conndential Information to the extent permitted by taw.

f. Conridentia) Infomiatiofi received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in en area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as .wed as non-duty hours (e.g., door Cocks, card keys,
biometric Identlftere, etc.).

9. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, tnciuding any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted ̂  all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be rnalntdlrved, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstanoes Involved.

L  undarstarKl that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the slta directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight af>d compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compBanoe with this
Contract, including the pnvacy end security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations uniB such tlrne the ConfldentlaJ Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this ContracL

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Offtoer and Security Offloer of any
Security Incidents end Breaches ImmedlateJy. at the emaD addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Irtcidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addidon to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obllgalions and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

Z Determine If personally Identifiable Information Is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or oonhrmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify arvd convene a core response group to determine the rfsk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5.1 tit tipdtio 10/D0/10 K Controctor NtJsb
DHHS lnr<rnMl)on

8«^ty Roqulrcmonts
Pe&vSoTS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5, Determtne whether Breach notificalion is required, and. rf so. Identify approprtate
Greach noURcatlon methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
opt'ons, and bear costs assoctated with the Breach noUoe as well as any mitlgBtion
measures.

Incidents end/or Breaches that impBcdta PI must t>e addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A DHHS Privacy Officer

DHHSPrivacyOftioer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officen

OH HS lnformationSecurityOff1ce@dhh8.nh.gov

V8.L6H(S)dttt«1tV0fl/18 Cih'taK Contrsctorbi^jBls
OHKS ifltormtfcn

Socurfty Raqulramems
P^Bot9 OstP
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State of New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services 

Amendment #1 

This Amendment to the Rapid Response contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, 
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and The Mental Health Center of 
Greater Manchester, Inc. ("the Contractor"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor on June 23, 2020 and 
presented to the Executive Council on July 15, 2020 (Informational Item T), the Contractor agreed to 
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration 
of certain sums specified; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Section 1, Revisions 
to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement 
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Counci l; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and 
modify the payment terms to support continued delivery of these services; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: 

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: 

May 31, 2022. 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: 

$454,235. 

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, by modifying the introductory paragraph and 
replacing the budget table in its entirety, to read as follows with no changes to Subsection 3.1 
through Paragraph 3.1.3: 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for authorized expenses incurred in the 
fulfillment of Exhibit B, Scope of Services in accordance with the approved budget tables 
below: 

Oriqinal BudQet 

Line Item Amount 
Staffinq $11 3,500 
Frinqe Benefits $34,050 

Personal Protective Equipment, Suoolies, TechnoloQy and TraininQ $5,400 
Data Collection $4,500 

Indirect Costs on Clinical Services $15,295 

Indirect Costs on Data Collection $450 
Total $173,195 

OocuSigncd by: 

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-07-A01 The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

A-S-1 .0 Page 1 of 4 
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Supplemental Budaet 

Line Item Amount 

Staffing $185,265 

Fringe Benefits $55,579 

Personal Protective Equipment, Su□□lies, Technoloav and Training $7,990 

Data Collection $6,658 

Indirect Costs on Clinical Services $24,883 

Indirect Costs on Data Collection $665 

Total $281,040 

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, to read: 

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form provided by the Department by the fifteenth 
(15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for 
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The Contractor shall: 

4.1 Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate 
payment. 

4.2 Ensure timesheets and/or time cards support the hours employees worked and charged 
under this contract pursuant to 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)(1 ). 

4.3. Provide supporting documentation of allowable costs that may include, but is not limited 
to, time sheets and/or time cards, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of 
expenditures, as applicable. 

4.4. Ensure amounts in specified line items of the Original Budget are invoiced and exhausted 
prior to invoicing for expenses identified in the corresponding line items in the 
Supplemental Budget. 

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-07-A01 The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 4 

~ Contractor Initials (}J~ 
8/30/2021 

Date ___ _ 
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect. 
Th is Amendment shall be retroactively effective to August 19, 2021 , subject to Governor and Executive 
Council approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, 

State of New Hampshire 

8/30/2021 

Date 

Department of Health and Human Services 

r:;ig;:by: 
L ED9005804C63442 .. 

Name:KatJa Fox 
Title: Di rector 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

8/30/2021 G11:cd;fu, 
Date -N-"a=m=~...,c~'!"W,.,.r',.=-F,,,..~""5~"""4~"'"E=R-, a~e_r ________ _ 

Title: President/CEO 

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-07-A01 The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 4 
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and 
execution. 

8/31/2021 

Date 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

1/0 ocuSigncd by: 

L~ .. 
Name: atne rrne P1 nos 

Title: Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _______ (date of meeting) 

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Date Name: 
Title: 

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-07-A01 The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of rhe State of New Hampshire. do hereby ccr11fy that THE MENTAL HEALTH 

CENTER OP GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in 

New Hampshire on October 17, 1960. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have 

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 63323 

Cert i ficarc Number : 0005351206 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 

I hereto sci my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 

this 15th day of April A.O. 2021.-

William M . Gardner 

Secretary of State 
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

I, Kevin Sheppard , hereby certify that: 
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC, cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 
{Corporat,on/LLC Name) 

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and 
held on May 25 , 2021 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting 

(Date) 

VOTED: That W illiam Rider, President and Chief Operating Officer 
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) 

is duly authorized on behalf of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester to enter into contracts or 
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to 
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revfsions. or 
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. 

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the 
date of the contracUcontract amendment to which this certificate 1s attached. This authority remains valid for 
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of 
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the 
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any 
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of Ne pshfre, 
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. 

evin Shepp 
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Rev. 03/24/20 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MM/00/YYYY) 

~ 08/30/2021 

~ 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the p olicy(ies) must h ave A DDITIONA L INSURED provision s or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject t o the te rms and co nditions of the polic y, certain polic ies m ay requ ire an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer r ights t o the certificate holder in lieu o f su ch en dorsement(s ). 

PRODUCER CONTACT Teri Davis NAME: 
CGI Insurance, Inc. ;i(')2NJ

0 
Extl· {866) 841-4600 Ir:,~ Nol (866) 574-2443 

5 Dartmouth Drive E-MAIL TDavis@CGIBusinesslnsurance.com ADDRESS: 

INSURER($) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 
Auburn NH 03032 INSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance 

INSURED INSURER B: Philadelphia Indemnity 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. INSURER C: A.I.M. Mutual 

401 Cypress Street INSURER D: 

INSURER E: 
Manchester NH 03103-3628 INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 21-22 Master w/WC RE REVISION NUMBER · 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 

LIMITS LTR INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/00/YYYYl (MM/DDIYYYY) 

2$ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 

D CLAIMS-MADE [81 OCCUR 
,_,,---,n.,,,._, ... 1v,u ... ,,1c:.u 

s 100,000 PREMISES (Ea occurrence) -2$ Professional Liability $2M Agg MED EXP (Any one person) s 5,000 

A PHPK2251310 04/01/2021 - 04/01/2022 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000 

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000 

1:8] POLICY □ FJt8r □ LDC PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG s 3,000,000 

OTHER: Sexual/Physical Abuse or s 1,000,000 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 00MBINE0-6INGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000 (Ea accident) -2$ ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s -
B OWNED SCHEDULED PHPK2251305 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s - AUTOS ONLY AUTOS 

2$ HIRED 2$ NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident) 

Hired/borrowed s 1,000,000 

2$ UMBRELLA LIAB 
~ OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s 10,000,000 

B EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE PHUB8760532 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 AGGREGATE s 10,000,000 

OED I X I RETENTION s 10,000 s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION X I PER I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER 

Y/N 
500,000 

C 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

□ ECC6004000298-2021 A 09/12/2021 09/12/2022 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE s 500,000 
If yes, describe under 

500,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT s 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 

.. Supplemental Names•• Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc., Manchester Mental Health Realty, Inc., Manchester Mental Health Services, Inc., 
Manchester Mental Health Ventures, Inc. 
This Certificate is issue for insured operations usual to Mental Health Services. 

CERTIFICATE HO LDER CA NCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

State of NH Dept. of Health & Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

129 Pleasant St 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Concord NH 03301 . ~;) ~J 1;J 
I 

© 1988-201 5 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved . 

A CORD 25 (2016/03) The A CORD n ame and logo are regist ered marks of ACORD 
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' 'eff,., The Mental Health Center 
, \ , I of Greater Manchester 

I 

MISSION 

To empower individuals to achieve recovery and promote 
personal and community wellness through an accessible, 
comprehensive, integrated and evidence-based system of 
behavioral health care. 

VISION 

To promote prevention recovery and wellness, and strive to be 
a center of excellence and sought after partner in developing 
and delivering state-of-the-art behavioral health treatment 
integrated within our community. 

GUIDING VALUES AND PRINCIPLES 

We treat everyone with respect, compassion and dignity. 

We offer hope and recovery through individualized, quality 
behavioral health services. 

We provide evidence-based, culturally responsive and consumer, 
family focused care. 

We support skilled staff members who work together and strive for 
excellence. 

We pursue partnerships that promote wellness and create a 
healthy community. 

Revised and Approved by the Board of Directors on September 25, 2018 
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BAKER 
NEWMAN 

NOYES 

Manchester Mental Health 
Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates 

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Supplementary Information 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 
With Indep endent Auditors' Report 

f3c1k(H N(•wrn,m & Noye~, U C 

MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS I NEW HAMPSHIRE 

800.244.7444 I www.bnncpa.com 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 
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BAKER 
NEWMAN 

NOYES 

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC 
MAINE I MASSACHUSETTS I NEW HAMPSHIRE 

800.244-7444 I www.bnncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Manchester Mental Health 
Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements) 
of Manchester Menta l Health Foundation, Inc. and Affi liates (the Organization) , which comprise the 
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 20 19, the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Ma11ageme11t's Responsibility.for the Fi11a11cia/ Stateme11ts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fa ir presentation of these fi nancial s tatements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presenta tion of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors ' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Sta tes of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' j udgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the enti ty's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecti veness of the enti ty's internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluati ng the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Manchester Mental Health 

Foundation, Inc. and Affi liates 

Opinioll 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fa irly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 20 I 9, and the results of its operations, changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Other Matter-Report 011 Supplementary I11formatio11 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such infom1ation is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The supplementary infom1ation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the fi nancial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing s tandards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the infonnation is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Mancheste r, New Hampshire 
November 24, 2020 

2 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Patient accounts rece ivable 
Other accoun ts receivable 
Investments - short-term 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Investments - long-term 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted 

Property and equipment, net of 
accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 

ASSETS 

3 

2020 2019 

$ 9,525,985 $ 6,062,465 
92,786 487,5 18 

2,02 1,607 1,7 14,057 
2,4 16,027 604,902 

250,000 250,000 
557,480 495 780 

14,863,885 9,614,722 

3,880,435 3,826,275 

44 1,595 4 19,492 

14,760,4 1 I 14,349,362 

$33,946,326 $2.E..,209 851 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll , vacation and other accruals 
Deferred revenue 
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Amounts held for patients and other deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Extended illness leave obligation 

Post-retirement benefit obligation 

Long-term debt, less current maturities 
and unamortized debt issuance costs 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

Total net assets 

Total liabili ties and net assets 

See accompanying notes. 

4 

2020 2019 

$ 186,444 $ 377,328 
3,936,289 3,740,354 

574,430 157,46 1 
99,218 

2,169,961 230,290 
22,802 21,280 

6,889,926 4,625,93 1 

484,285 460,541 

70,993 68,672 

9,367, 184 7,071,263 
16,8 12,388 12,226,407 

16,692,343 15,563,952 
44 1 595 4 19,492 

17, 133,938 15,983,444 

$3.3.,246,32.u $2_8_,202,851_ 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. Al~D AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Revenues and other support: 
Program service fees 
Program rental income 
Fees and grants from government agencies 
Interest income 
Other income 

Total revenues and other support 

Operating expenses: 
Program services: 

Children and adolescents 
Elderly 
Emergency services 
Vocational services 
Noneligibles 
Multiservice team 
ACT team 
Crisis unit 
Community residences and support living 
HUD residences 
Housing bridge program 
Other 

Total program services 
Support services: 

Management and general 

Operating property 
Interest expense 

Total operating expenses 

Income (loss) from operations 

Without With 
Donor Donor 

Restriction Restriction 

$25,722,254 $ 
359,744 

6,253,650 
48,164 

7,228,049 
39,611,861 

5,488,616 

2,866,477 
659,686 

1,738,729 
9,843,326 
4,194,118 
5,791,325 
1,534,011 

153,781 
423,615 

1.862.359 
34,556,043 

3,532,923 

574,967 
274,867 

38,938,800 

673,061 

5 

Without With 
Donor Donor 

Total Restriction Restriction Total 

$25,722,254 $22,440,002 $ $22,440,002 
359,744 335,067 335,067 

6,253,650 4,644,491 4,644,491 
48,164 105,293 105,293 

7,228,049 6,732,629 6,732,629 
39,611,861 34,257,482 34,257,482 

5,488,616 4,885,860 4,885,860 
256,616 256,616 

2,866,477 2,444,022 2,444,022 
659,686 555,013 555,013 

1,738,729 1,445,620 1,445,620 
9,843,326 7,879,982 7,879,982 
4,194,118 3,808,348 3,808,348 
5,791,325 5,299,302 5,299,302 
1,534,011 1,486,944 1,486,944 

l 53,781 214,402 214,402 
423,615 

1,862.359 1,908,952 1,908,952 
34,556,043 30,185,061 30,185,061 

3,532,923 3,404,710 3,404,710 

574,967 478,932 478,932 
274,867 256,944 256,944 

38,938,800 34,325,647 34,325,647 

673,061 (68,165) (68,165) 
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Year Ended June 30, 2020 Year Ended June 30, 2019 
Without With Without With 
Donor Donor Donor Donor 

Restriction Restriction Total Restriction Restriction Total 

Income (loss) from operations $ 673,061 $ $ 673,061 $ (68,165) $ $ (68,165) 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses): 
Commercial rental income 401,003 401,003 403,191 403,191 
Rental property expense (298,934) (298,934) (367,083) (367,083) 
Contributions 219,257 4,475 223,732 288,525 6,418 294,943 
Net investment return 142,543 17,628 160,171 207,272 22,404 229,676 
Dues (5,040) (5,040) (4,800) (4,800) 
Donations to charitable organizations (16,500) (16,500) 
Miscellaneous expenses (3,499) (3,499) (2,949) (2,949) 

Nonoperating revenue, net 455,330 22,103 477 433 524,156 12,322 536,478 

Excess of revenues over expenses 1,128,391 22,103 1,150,494 455,991 12,322 468,313 

Reclassification of net assets with donor restrictions (67,481) 67,481 

Increase in net assets 1,128,391 22,103 1, 150,494 388,510 79,803 468,3 13 

Net assets at beginning of year 15,563,952 4 19,492 15,983,444 15,175,442 339,689 15,515,131 

Net assets at end of year $16,692,343 $441,595 $17,133,938 $15,563,952 $412,422 $15,983,444 

See accompanying notes. 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Mental Health 
Total Erner- Voca- Multi 

Total Admin- Center Child/ gency tional Non- Service ACT Crisis 
Agencv istration Programs Adolescents Services Services Eligibles Team Team Unit 

Personnel costs: 
Salary and wages $25,258,684 $ 2,251,696 $22,970,993 $3,827,730 $2,015,786 $366,986 $1,283,087 S 6,662,662 $2,793,674 $3,732,773 
Employee benefits 5,677,303 624,308 5,045, 136 909,639 428,435 I 02,566 191,02! 1,473,889 667,983 764,886 
Payroll taxes I .888,522 157.856 1.727,9 12 283,991 149 448 37 593 96 868 492.747 209,34 1 289.504 

32,824,509 3,033,860 29,744,041 5,021 ,360 2,593,669 507,145 1,570,976 8,629,298 3,670,998 4,787,163 

Professional fees: 
Client evaluation/services 59,976 44,366 15,610 (5,228) 2,518 (SOI) (1,755) 13,969 (924) 10,547 
Audit fees 75,8 16 7,205 68,611 12,170 5,222 1,594 4,631 19,280 9,716 9,869 
Legal fees 63,894 16,030 47,864 6,645 2,826 1,988 2,506 16,975 8,199 5,341 
Other professional fees/consultants 113,098 10,337 63,161 11 ,500 5,953 1,664 4,020 16,101 8,636 7,631 

Staff development and training: 
Journals and publications 17,979 1,521 16,458 1,506 646 197 573 2,917 1,202 1,482 
In-service training 70 70 
Conferences/conventions 86,158 9,711 76,447 10,838 8,672 544 4,182 20,581 6,860 8,173 
Other staff development 160,492 17,927 142,565 5,824 10,958 29,725 2,213 22,625 25,972 33,149 

Occupancy costs: 
Rent 8,800 8,800 
Heating costs 12,510 7,438 
Other utilities 395,088 9,01 8 222,131 24,370 8,726 44,880 17,807 70,450 
Maintenance and repairs 832,760 24,826 503,465 12,398 32,201 22,577 1,915 122,901 47,324 171,656 
Other occupancy costs 243,690 635 63,856 2,024 35 150 994 1,560 401 25,573 

Rent subsidies 332,329 332,329 
Consumable supplies: 

Office 265,787 63,186 202,601 44,300 9,622 6,058 14,506 60,689 18,185 15,247 
Building/household 83,421 2,724 71,334 276 5,474 1,506 105 7,999 3,212 44,708 
Educational/training 541,483 4,023 537,460 26,048 4,474 2,156 8,301 273,374 40, 11 3 128,936 
Food 106,944 226 78,577 436 5 7 25 130 69 72,120 
Medical 98,051 1,472 96,579 2,581 1,093 321 933 18,921 2,779 48,198 
Other consumable supplies 667,568 86,768 580,800 96,932 41,104 13,012 37,319 I 54,790 76,736 86,106 
Depreciation - equipment 205,228 16,107 189,121 34,121 12,1 89 6,882 9,590 46,307 28,626 35,954 
Depreciation - building 495,143 10,298 217,915 5,806 8,52 1 11,278 3,339 62,347 22,792 69,836 
Equipment maintenance 22,372 2,599 19,773 2,683 1,156 596 1,016 5,659 2,746 2,710 
Advertising 83,413 7,733 75,680 10,746 4,568 1,394 5,009 16,922 8,491 9,224 
Printing 38,138 12,068 26,070 4,437 1,257 312 4,048 6,052 1,190 2,773 
Telephone/communication 436,278 30,330 405,948 58,573 29,774 2 1,870 30,368 110,672 50,823 64,376 
Postage and shipping 57,569 28,882 28,687 4,835 2,333 633 1,796 7,641 3,860 4,678 

Transportation: 
Staff 190,781 2,692 187,115 34,289 21,930 8,919 321 28,445 71,639 3,870 
Clients 7,952 7,952 68 16 3,359 

Insurance: 
Malpractice and bonding 78,060 7,293 69,459 12,321 5,287 1,6 13 4,688 19,519 9,838 9,991 
Vehicles 8,167 776 7,391 1,3 11 562 172 499 2,076 1,046 1,063 
Comprehensive property/ liability 127,618 11,248 112,170 18,998 8,152 2,488 7,229 30,098 15,168 15,406 

Membership dues 43,286 3,742 34,504 5,103 2,191 668 1,942 8,086 4,076 4,439 
Interest expense 274,867 8 14 7,710 1,376 590 180 523 2,178 1,098 1,1 15 
Other expenditures 186.978 27.067 149.080 45 783 19.647 ~ 17.440 72496 36,538 37 297 

Total expenditures 39,246,273 3,504,284 34,409,972 5,489,992 2,867,067 659,866 1,739,252 9,845,504 4,195,216 5,792,440 

Administration allocation (3.504.284) 3.504,284 564,357 293.070 68.664 177.717 993 388 433.516 603 959 

Total expenses S39 246.273 $ $37,914.256 $6,..0~~:112 S1.J.filU.11 S 728,,illl SI 916,2-62 SI 0,§JlL822 S4.628 732 $6.396 399 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

Center Amoskeag Foundation 
Com- Suppor- Other 

munity tive Mental Other Housing Operating Rental Admin- Program Admin-
Residence Living Health Non-BBH Bridge Property Property istration Related istration 

Personnel costs: 
Salary and wages $ 304,409 $ 586,79 1 s 46,650 $1,286,583 $ 63,862 s s $ 18,840 s 17,155 s 
Employee benefits 84,641 162,135 9,600 242 ,971 7,370 7,859 
Payroll taxes 23.611 45 377 3.451 91.096 4.885 2 754 

412,661 794,303 59,701 1,620,650 76,117 29,453 17,155 

Professional fees: 
C lient evaluation/services 4 12 (56) (2,976) 
Audit fees 836 2,58 1 303 2,409 
Legal fees 452 1,396 190 1,346 
Other professional fees/consultants 706 2,1 83 1,060 3,707 26,054 13,546 

Staff development and training: 
Journals and publications 103 891 38 6,903 
In-service training 70 
Conferences/conventions 585 809 92 15,111 
Other staff development 5,114 5,442 17 1,526 

Occupancy costs: 
Rent 
Heating costs 7,438 5,072 
Other utilities 49,2 17 467 4,874 1,340 100,957 52,489 10,493 
Maintenance and repairs 171 79,901 1,248 11,173 171,472 89, 151 43,846 
Other occupancy costs 3 12,309 5 20, 149 653 114,722 59,645 4,832 

Rent subsidies 332,329 
Consumable supplies: 

Office 443 3,712 (167) 30,006 
Building/household 407 6,406 85 1,156 9,363 
Educational/training 657 8,429 163 44,809 
Food 6 5, 138 I 640 28,141 
Medical 168 520 61 2 1,004 
Other consumable supplies 6,697 19,308 2,386 43,825 2,585 
Depreciation - cqu ipment 1,969 7, 176 857 5,450 
Depreciation - building 29,490 4,339 167 161,762 84,103 21,065 
Equipment maintenance 179 552 71 2,405 
Advertising 730 2,255 265 16,076 
Printing 69 214 32 5,686 
Telephone/communication 5,870 22,828 824 9,970 
Postage and shipping 332 1,026 121 1,157 275 

Transportation: 
Staff 1,675 2,441 29 12,566 991 974 
Clients 4,503 6 

Insurance: 
Malpractice and bonding 846 2,613 307 2,436 1,308 
Vehicles 90 278 33 261 
Comprehensive property/liability 1,304 4,029 473 3,776 5,049 4,200 

Membership dues 350 1,271 4,306 2,072 5,040 
Interest expense 95 291 34 230 263,302 3,041 
Other expenditures 3.211 9 702 1.134 ( I 04.436) 4.276 7.332 3.499 

Total expenditures 445,733 1,088,664 78,419 1,784,204 423,61 5 838,269 298,934 29,453 156,822 8,539 

Administration allocation 44 002 113 724 8. 147 203.740 

Total program expenses $ 489135 SI 2Q2 388 s 86 566 SI 981,944 s 123 615 s 838.262 s 228 231 s 22 453 $ 156 822 s 8 539 

Sec accompanying notes. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

co SOLi DATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPE SES 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Mental Health 
Total Erner- Voca- Multi 

Total Admin- Center Child/ Elderly gcncy tional Non- Service ACT 
Agency istration Programs Adolescents Services Services Services Eligibles Team Team 

Personnel costs: 
Salary and wages $22,131,547 s 2,199,292 $ I 9,896,260 S3,391,466 s 142,196 SI ,725,550 s 313,528 Sl,076,868 $5,304,872 S2,532,987 
Employee benefits 4,878,479 548,608 4,322,012 842,688 37,992 325,101 84,182 110,585 1,200,122 603,992 
Payroll taxes 1,652,808 154.794 1,495,260 257,831 10 764 127,120 24,055 8 1 746 393,563 187.668 

28,662,834 2,902,694 25,713,532 4,491,985 I 90,952 2,177,771 421,765 1,269,199 6,898,557 3,324,647 

Professional fees: 
Client evaluation/services 237,139 62,773 174,366 (5,292) 612 2,984 34,482 33,556 7,450 
Audit fees 59,765 5,124 48,876 8,656 693 3,715 1,134 3,146 13,172 6,912 
Legal fees 23,135 2,033 20,902 1,631 168 1,356 1,391 579 9,266 4,366 
Other professional fees/consultants 124,195 20,412 64,183 11,109 1,313 5,901 1,608 3,727 14,553 8,400 

Staff development and training: 
Journals and publications 11,694 2,182 9,512 1,385 112 550 168 717 1,944 1,024 
Conferences/conventions 86,368 14,140 72,228 15,273 439 3,395 390 1,313 15,11 1 9,657 
Other staff development 180,379 34,678 145,701 2,621 413 8,793 18,549 1,699 29,857 23,256 

Occupancy costs: 
Rent 9,607 9,607 
Heating costs 13,294 7,932 
Other uti litics 409,302 9,713 227,804 6,536 26,251 9,289 41,237 18,890 
Maintenance and repairs 775,577 15,145 470,913 I 3,391 32,589 19,043 722 91,727 39,790 
Other occupancy costs 220,740 54 38,403 1,995 126 140 

Consumable supplies: 
Office 250,594 52,905 196,414 22,100 1,168 6,558 4,477 I 3,350 43,608 11,662 
Building/household 73,309 2,469 61,863 180 837 5,498 1,206 63 5,556 2,556 
Educational/training 634,425 3,15 I 631,274 23,038 5,906 26,006 2,65 1 5,562 186,945 41,484 
Food 102,540 91 I 74,018 318 2 170 142 7 116 37 
Medical 72,948 ( I 5) 72,963 264 (2) ( 11) (3) (9) 17,173 (20) 
Other consumable supplies 619,879 83,566 536,3 I 3 89,884 7,775 41,645 13,290 35,535 144,8 12 73,978 
Depreciation - equipment 227.056 18,393 208,663 39,014 6,135 10,824 8,227 10,626 45,748 29,600 
Depreciation - building 443,617 8,611 195,875 5,613 6,666 7,650 9,039 3,217 43,916 18,154 
Equipment maintenance 26,205 5,006 21,199 2,849 168 912 506 1,391 6,144 2,291 
Advertising 69,661 8,012 61,599 9,733 913 4,130 1,261 4,453 14,592 7,684 
Printing 34,818 3,150 31,668 5,623 235 2,320 414 4,235 6,818 2,048 
Telephone/communication 38 I ,255 29,242 352,013 51,674 7,790 25,660 16,365 25,956 83,408 42,425 
Postage and shipping 49,408 25,282 24,126 3,784 330 2,374 496 1,369 5,744 3,022 

Transportation: 
Staff 206,686 2,983 203,311 37,771 136 22,048 12,151 498 26,866 76,391 
Clients 6,898 6,898 47 3 42 

Insurance: 
Malpractice and bonding 63,965 5,849 56,808 10,061 806 4,318 1,318 3,656 I 5,309 8,034 
Vehicles I 5,885 1,507 14,378 2,546 213 1,093 334 923 3,867 2,034 
Comprehensive property/ liability 123,987 11,367 I 08,420 19,202 1,491 8,241 2,5 16 6,988 29,254 15,332 

Membership dues 44,628 5,412 34,416 5,146 449 2,209 674 1,862 7,802 4,1 IO 
Interest expense 256,944 
Other expenditures 198.242 21 861 84.088 27.697 969 11.883 3 628 10.351 43.142 23,134 

Total expenditures 34,716,979 3,368,217 29,970,659 4,885,860 256,616 2,444,022 555,013 1,445,620 7,879,982 3,808,348 

Administration a llocation {3 .368.217) 3,368.217 550,681 32.540 283,309 59.754 166,932 879 795 434 087 

Total expenses S34 716 979 $ S33.338.876 S5 436 541 s 289 156 $2 727 331 s 614 767 $ 1 6 12552 $8 759 777 S4 242 435 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

Center Amoskeag Foundation 
Com- Suppor- Other 

Crisis munity tivc Mental Other Operating Rental Admin- Program Admin-
Unit Residence Living Health Non-BBH Pro12erty Pro12ertv istration Related istration 

Personnel costs: 
Salary and wages $3,309,408 s 297,582 $ 583,486 s 49,033 $1,169,284 s $ s 18,840 s 17,155 s 
Employee benefits 643,864 74,230 153,699 10,888 234,669 7,859 
Payroll taxes 253,036 22,812 43,872 3 750 89,043 2 754 

4,206,308 394,624 781,057 63,671 1,492,996 29,453 17,155 

Professional fees: 
C lient evaluation/services 85,329 59 15,186 
Audit fees 7,020 594 1,836 216 1,782 5,765 
Legal fees 1,299 110 340 67 329 113 87 
Other professional fees/consultants 8,054 668 2,127 2,299 4,424 22,4 18 17,182 

Staff development and training: 
Journals and publications 1,300 88 844 32 1,348 
Conferences/conventions 9,091 435 2,793 387 13,944 
Other staff development 29,457 5,106 3,393 23 22,534 

Occupancy costs: 
Rent 
Heating costs 7,932 5,362 
Other utilities 76,339 43,514 497 5,251 91,435 70,08 1 10,269 
Maintenance and repairs 175,929 137 84,875 1,168 11,542 141,964 108,810 38,745 
Other occupancy costs 32,640 5,299 (1,797) I 00,478 77,012 4,793 

Consumable suppl ies: 
Office 20,266 132 2,032 1,885 69,176 1,275 
Building/household 39,189 12 5,600 67 1,099 8,977 
Educational/training 162,077 219 5,410 233 171,743 
Food 67,405 2 5,423 396 27,6 11 
Medical 54,678 (2) (6) (I) 902 
Other consumable supplies 78,318 6,206 19,478 2,257 23,135 
Depreciation - equipment 36,500 3,608 11,893 1,022 5,466 
Depreciation - building 65,409 29,730 6,344 137 122,496 93,889 22,746 
Equipment maintenance 2,139 146 1,626 58 2,969 
Advertising 8,030 660 2,042 240 7,861 28 22 
Printing 4,966 138 425 56 4,390 
Telephone/communication 60,951 7,629 19,664 736 9,755 
Postage and shipping 4,921 260 803 94 929 

Transportation: 
Staff 6,887 1,922 3,234 91 15,316 392 
Clients 2,131 4,675 

Insurance: 
Malpractice and bonding 8,159 690 2,134 251 2,072 1,308 
Vehicles 2,065 175 540 64 524 
Comprehensive property/ liability 15,573 1,318 4,073 479 3,953 4,200 

Membership dues 4,324 353 1,130 4,298 2,059 4,800 
Interest expense 253,414 3,530 
Other expenditures 22,548 1.922 5.876 691 (67.753) 72 844 19.449 

Total expenditures 5,299,302 427,152 1,059,792 87,284 1,821 ,668 732,346 367,083 36,493 217,932 24,249 

Administration allocation 586.940 50 543 129.618 9.467 184 551 

Total program expenses $5 886 242 s 477 695 $1 189 410 s 96 751 $2 QQ6 219 S ---112 ,346 s 367,Q83 $ 36,49:l s 217,932 $ 24,249 

See accompanying notes. 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A8385E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash (used) provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Restricted contributions 
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

Patient accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll , vacation and other accrnals 
Deferred revenue 
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements 
Amounts held for patients and other deposits 
Postretirement benefit obligation 
Extended illness leave 

Net cash (used) provided by operating act ivities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment 
Change in assets whose use is limited or restricted 
Proceeds from sale of investments 
Purchases of investments 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Restricted contributions 
Proceeds from issuance of long-tenn debt 
Payments on long-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Net change in cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year 

Cash, cash equi val en ts and restricted cash at end of year 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Interest paid 

See accompanying notes. 

I I 

2020 2019 

$ 1, 150,494 $ 468,3 13 

700,37 1 670,673 
10,461 10,46 1 
(4,475) (6,418) 

(49,761) (123,950) 

(307,550) (427,944) 
(1 ,8 11 , 125) (1 27,566) 

(6 1,700) (100,706) 
( 190,884) 187,691 
195,935 489,304 
416,969 111 ,302 
(99,218) 99,218 

1,522 2,031 
2,32 1 (2,553) 

23 744 45 376 
(22,896) 1,295,232 

(I , 111,420) (531,943) 
(22,1 03) (79,803) 

1,677,303 1,191 ,284 
(1 ,68 1,702) (1,603, 190) 
( 1,137,922) (1 ,023,652) 

4,475 6,418 
4,390,000 
(I 64,869) (215,438) 

4.229,606 (209,020) 

3,068,788 62,560 

6,549,983 6,487,423 

$ 9,618,771 $ 6,549.983 

$ 128,142 $ 236,122 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. (the Center) is a not-for-profit corporation 
organized under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related 
nonmental health programs. The Center is exempt from income taxes under Section 50J(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. Amoskeag Residences, Inc. (Amoskeag), a not-for-profit corporation fonned 
through the Center, was organized to acquire real property in Manchester, New Hampshire and to operate 
thereon a project group home under a Section 202 direct loan of the National Housing Act. The project 
is regulated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and serves on 
average 12 chronically mentally ill individuals in New Hampshire. Amoskeag received funding under 
Section 8 of the National Housing Act and is subject to a housing assistance payments agreement. 

In July 1990, the Center was reorganized and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc. (the 
Foundation) became the sole corporate member of the Center. The Foundation is a lso a 50 I ( c)(3). T he 
Foundation's purpose is to raise and invest funds for the benefit of the Center. The Foundation has two 
additional affiliates, MMH Realty Corporation (Realty) and Manchester Mental Health Ventures 
Corporation (Ventures), both of which are cun-ently inactive. 

In July 20 17, the Center acquired commercial real estate in Manchester, New Hampshire that it 
previously leased a portion of. As of June 30, 2020, the Center occupies approximately 43,000 square 
feet of the approximately 65,000 square feet in the building (the Center occupied 37,000 square feet as 
of June 30, 20 19). The remaining square footage is leased to unrelated third parties and the entire 
building is managed by an unrelated management company engaged by the Center. 

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements (the financial statements) include the accounts of the Foundation, 
Center and Amoskeag, collectively refen-ed to as the Organization. All inter-company transactions and 
accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use o(Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requi res management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabi lities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual resul ts could differ from those estimates. 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Income Taxes 

The Organization consists of not-for-profit entities as described in Section 50 I (c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 50 l (a) 
of the Code. The Organization believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions taken 
and to be taken, and that its accrnals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on an 
assessment of many factors inc luding experience and interpretations of tax laws applied to the facts of 
each matter. Management evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded the Organization 
has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income, has taken 
no significant uncertai n tax positions that require disclosure in the accompanying financial statements 
and has no material liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

T he Organization considers cash in bank and all other highly liquid investments with an origina l matu1ity 
of three months or less to be cash and cash equiva lents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank 
deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any signi ficant risk on these 
accounts. 

Restricted Cash 

Restricted cash consists of cash received by the Organization for insurance settlement payments, resident 
deposits and replacement reserves as required by HUD. The cash received is recorded as restricted cash 
and a corresponding payable or deposit liability is recorded in the accompanying statements of financial 
position. The Organization maintains its restricted cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may 
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and 
believes it is not exposed to any significant ri sks on these accounts. 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 
No. 20 16- 18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging 
Issues Task Force), cash and restricted cash are presented together in the statement of cash flows . 

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash reported 
with in the statements of financial position at that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in 
the statements of cash flows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 
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2020 20 19 

$9,525,985 
92,786 

$9,6 18,77 1 

$6,062,465 
487,5 18 

$6,512,983 



DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Patient Accounts Receivable 

For patient accounts receivable resulting from revenue recognized prior to July 1, 2019, an allowance 
for doubtful accounts was established to reduce the carrying value of such receivables to their estimated 
net realizable value. Generally, this allowance was estimated based on the aging of accounts receivable, 
historical collection experience and other factors . Under the provisions of FASB ASU No. 2014-09, 
Revenue fro m Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which the Organization adopted effective 
July I, 20 19 using the full retrospective method, when an unconditional right to payment exists, subject 
only to the passage of time, the right is treated as a receivable. Patient accounts receivable for which 
the unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the right to consideration is unconditional 
and only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due. For accounts 
receivable subsequent to the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09 on July 1, 2019, the estimated uncollectible 
amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a direct reduc tion to accounts 
receivable rather than an allowance for doubtful accounts . Implicit price concessions re late primarily to 
amounts due directly from patients. Estimated implicit price concessions are recorded for all uninsured 
accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts. Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal 
and external collection efforts have been performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are 
based upon management's assessment of historical writeoffs and expected net collections, business and 
economic conditions, and other collection indicators. Management relies on the results of detailed 
reviews of historical write-offs and collections as a primary source of information in estimating the 
collectability of its accounts receivable. Management believes its regular updates to the implicit price 
concession amounts provide reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable. 
These routine, regular changes in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations 
of accounts receivable or period-to-period comparisons of operations. 

Other Accounts Receivable 

Other accounts receivable consists of amounts due from various grants and contracts entered into with 
the State of New Hampshire and federal government related to providing mental health services, 
amounts due from third-party managed care organizations and amounts due for services provided to 
other not-for-profit organizations. The amounts due from not-for-profit organizations and state and 
federal grants billed to the respective agencies are expected to be full y collectible. Accordingly, no 
allowance for doubtful amounts has been established. Amounts due from third-party managed care 
organizations represent management's best estimate of variable consideration expected to be received, 
and has been constrained to ensure a significant reversal ofrevenue will not occur. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased or at estimated fair value at date of donation in 
the case of gifts, less accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, equipment and improvements is 
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the assets using the straight line method. Assets deemed to 
have a useful life greater than three years are deemed capital in nature. Estimated useful lives range 
from 3 to 40 years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 I 9 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Debt Issuance Costs 

Costs associated with the issuance of long-term debt are initially capitalized and amortized to interest 
expense over the respective life of the related obligation. The unamortized portion of debt issuance costs 
is presented as a component of long-term debt. 

Vacation Pay and Fringe B ene/its 

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe benefits are 
allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual time spent on the 
programs. 

Program Service Fees 

Prior to the adoption of ASU 2014-09 by the Organization on July 1, 201 9, the Organization recognized 
program service fee revenue as services were rendered and reported revenue at the estimated net 
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered. On the basis of 
historical experience, a portion of the Organization's uninsured patients were unable or unwilling to pay 
for services provided. Thus, the Organization recorded a provision for bad debts related to uninsured 
patients in the period the services were provided. The Organization adopted the new standard effective 
July I , 201 9, using the full retrospective method and updated its accounting policies related to revenues, 
as discussed below. The adoption o f the new standard did not have an impact on the recognition of 
revenues for any periods prior to adoption. 

Program service fee revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These revenues generally 
relate to contracts with patients in which the Organization's performance obligations are to provide 
health care services to patients. Revenues are recorded during the period obl igations to provide health 
care services are satisfied. Perfonnance obligations for services are generally satisfied over a period of 
less than one day. 

The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve a third-party payor (Medicaid, 
Medicare, managed care organizations and commercial insurance companies) and the transaction prices 
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicaid, Medicare, managed care 
organizations and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payors. The payment arrangements 
with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically specify payments at 
amounts less than standard charges. The Organization receives reimbursement from Medicare, 
Medicaid and insurance companies at defined rates for services to clients covered by such third-party 
payor programs. Management continually reviews the revenue recognition process to consider and 
incorporate updates to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms 
resulting from contract renegotiations and renewals. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Settlements with third-party payors are considered variable consideration and are included in the 
detennination of the estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are 
estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the payor 
and the Organization's historical settlement activi ty, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable 
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the 
uncertainty associated the adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adj usted in 
future periods as adjustments become known. 

Rental Income 

Rental income from operating leases leased by third parties is recognized over time on a straight-line 
basis in nonoperating income over the noncancelable term of the related leases. Recognition of rental 
income commences when the tenant takes control of the space. Judgment is required to determine 
when a tenant takes control of the space, and accordingly, when to commence the recognition of rent. 
The Organization's leases generally provide for minimum rent and contain renewal options. 

State and Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures 

T he Center receives a number of grants from, and has entered into various contracts with, the State of 
New Hampshi re and Federal government related to providing mental health services. Revenues and 
expenses under state and federal grant programs are recognized over time as the related expenditure is 
incurred. Grant monies that are advanced to the Organization prior to fiscal year end are recorded as 
deferred revenue until such time funds are expended. 

Other Income 

Other income predominately pertains to the portion of Medicaid capitated payments that exceed the 
standard fee for service reimbursement (based on a Department of Health and Human Services rate 
schedule) that the Center receives. Capitation is a payment methodology under which a provider 
receives a fixed amount per person to provide hea lth care services to a specified population of patients 
during a specified time period. The Center is paid the fixed amount per person regardless of whether that 
person receives services or not. Other components of other income include meaningful use revenues, 
Medicaid directed payments, and other miscellaneous sources of income that are recognized when 
earned or upon receipt if the ultimate payment to be received is not estimable. 

Performance Indicator 

Excess of revenues over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses and nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, 
major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as operating revenue and expenses. 
Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating revenues or expenses, which include 
contributions, rental activities, net investment return, other nonoperating expenses, and contributions 
to chari table organizations. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished), restricted net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions 
and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from restrictions for operations 
(for noncapital-related items) or net assets released from restrictions for property, plant and equipment 
(for capital-related items). Some restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained 
by the Organization in perpetuity. 

Except for contributions related to capital purchases, donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions 
are met within the same year as received are reported as contributions without donor restri ctions in the 
accompanying financial statements . 

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted consist of donor-restricted funds. 

Investments and Investment Income 

Investments, including assets whose use is limited or restricted, are measured at fair value in the 
statements of financial position. Interest income on operating cash is reported within operating revenues. 
Net investment return on investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted (including realized 
and unrealized gains and losses on investments, investment fees and interest and dividends) is reported 
as nonoperating revenues (expenses). The Organization has elected to reflect changes in the fair value 
of investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted, including both increases and decreases in 
value whether realized or unrealized in nonoperating revenues or expenses. 

Investment Return Obiectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies 

The Foundation has board designated and endowment assets. The Foundation has adopted investment 
policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets that attempt to maintain the 
purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long tenn. Accordingly, the investment process 
seeks to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital 
appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. Endowment assets 
are invested in a well -diversified asset mix, which includes equity and debt securities, that is intended to 
result in a consistent inflation-protected rate of return that has sufficient liquidity to make an annual 
distribution of accumulated interest and dividend income to be reinvested or used as needed, while 
growing the funds if possible. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. Investment 
risk is measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocation between asset 
classes and strategies are managed to reduce the exposure of the fund to unacceptable levels of risk. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure 

The Board of Directors of the Foundation determines the method to be used to appropriate endowment 
funds for expenditure. As a guideline, approximately 5% of the total value of the three year quarterly 
average of available funds is intended to be distributed annually. The corresponding calculated spending 
allocations are distributed in an annual installment from the current net total or accumulated net total 
investment returns for individual endowment funds. In establishing this policy, the Board of Directors 
considered the expected long term rate of return on its endowment. No amounts were appropriated for 
expendi ture during the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Retirement Benefits 

The Center maintains a tax-sheltered annuity benefit program, which covers substantially all employees. 
Eligible employees may contribute up to maximum limitations (set annually by the IRS) of their annual 
salary. After one year's employment, the employee's contributions are matched by the Center up to 5% 
of thei r annual salary. The combined amount of employee and employer contributions is subj ect by law 
to yearly maximum amounts. The employer match was $670,556 and $554,303 for the years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 20 19, respectively. 

Extended Illness Leave Plan 

The Center sponsors an unfunded extended illness leave plan for employees. Employees with at least 
IO years of service are eligible to receive a lump sum payout of up to 100% of any accrued unused 
extended illness leave, based upon years of service at retirement. The Center incurred extended illness 
leave expenses totaling $37,999 and $39,744 during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively. The Center expects to make employer contributions totaling $ 14 1,200 for the fisca l year 
ending June 30, 2021. Liabilities recognized are based on a third party actuarial analysis. 

The following table sets forth the change in the Center's extended illness leave plan liabil ity during the 
years ended June 30: 

Statement of financial position liabil ity at beginning of year 
Net actuarial loss arising during the year 
Increase from current year service and interest cost 
Contribution made during the year 

Statement of financial position liability at end of year 

18 

2020 

$ (460,54 1) 
(1,270) 

(48, 172) 
25,698 

$ (181,285) 

2019 

$(415,165) 
(1 8,927) 
(47,474) 
21,025 

$£160,511) 
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Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Postretirement Health Benefit Plan 

The Center sponsors an unfunded defined benefit postretirement plan coveri ng certain of its employees 
( employed prior to January I, 1997). In 2007, al 1 eligible active employees were offered and accepted 
a buyout of the program leaving the plan to provide medical benefits to eligible retired employees. As 
a result, no additional employees will be enrolled in the plan. Only current retirees participate in the 
plan. 

During 1997, the Center amended the plan to freeze monthly premiums at their December 31, 1996 level 
and to no longer provide the postretirement benefit to employees hired after December 31, 1996. The 
Center recognized a net postretirement health benefi t totaling $4,388 and $5,9 15 during the years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 20 I 9, respectively. The Center expects to make employer contributions totaling 
$ 11,300 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 202 1. 

The following table sets forth the change in the Center's postretirement health benefit plan liability, as 
calculated by a third party actuary during the years ended June 30: 

Statement of financial position liability at beginning of year 
Net actuarial loss aris ing during the year 
Increase from current year service and interest cost 
Contributions made during the year 

Statement of financial position liability at end of year 

Malpractice Loss Contingencies 

2020 

$ (68,672) 
(12,907) 

(2,333) 
12,919 

$ (10,223) 

2019 

$ (71 ,225) 
(7,315) 
(2,740) 
12,608 

$ (68,612) 

The Center has an occurrence basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. An occurrence basis 
policy provides specific coverage for claims resulting from incidents that occur during the policy term, 
regardless of when the claims are reported to the insurance carrier. The possibility exists, as a normal 
risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be asserted against 
the Center. In the event a loss contingency should occur, the Center would give it appropriate 
recognition in its financial statements. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summarized on a functiona 1 basis 
in the consolidating statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among 
program services and supporting services benefitted. 
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). 
The ASU supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605 (Revenue Recognition) and 
most industry-specific guidance throughout the Industry Topics of Codification. The core principal of 
ASU 201 4-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Organization adopted the new standard effective 
July I , 2019, using the full retrospective method. The adoption of the new standard did not have an 
impact on the recognition of revenues for any periods prior to adoption. The most significant impact of 
adopting the new standard is the presentation of the statements of activities, where "program service 
fees" is presented net of estimated implicit price concession revenue deductions. The related 
presentation of "allowances for doubtful accounts" has also been eliminated from the consolidated 
statements of financial position as a result of the adoption of the new standard. 

In June 2018, the FASS issued ASU No. 20 18-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance 
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (ASU 2018-08). Due to diversity in practice, ASU 
2018-08 clarifies the definition of an exchange transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether 
contributions are unconditional or conditional. ASU 2018-08 has been applied retrospectively to all 
periods presented and did not have a material impact on the financial statements. 

In January 2016, the FASS issued ASU No. 2016-01 , Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-
10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-0 I). The 
amendments in ASU 2016-0 I address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 is effective for the Organization for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, with early adoption permitted. The Organization adopted ASU No. 20 16-01 during the 
fi scal year ended June 30, 2020 and the adoption had no impact on the financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 20 16-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU 
20 I 6-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the 
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU 
2016-02 is effective for the Organization on July I, 2022. Lessees (for capital and operating leases) 
must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the 
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. The modified 
retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired before the 
earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective transition approach. 
The Organization is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption o f ASU 2016-02 on the 
Organization's financial statements. 
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1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued) 

In September 2020, the FASB Issued ASU No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): 
Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. ASU 2020-
07 enhances the presentation of disclosure requirements for contributed nonfinancial assets. ASU 2020-
07 requires organizations to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the 
statement of activities and disclose the amount of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the 
statement of activities by category that depicts the type of contributed nonfinancial assets, as well as a 
description of any donor-imposed restrictions associated with the contributed nonfinancial assets and the 
valuation techniques used to arrive at a fair value measure at initial recognition. ASU 2020-07 is 
effective for the Organization for transactions in which they serve as the resource recipient beginning 
July 1, 2021, with early adoption permitted. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact of the 
pending adoption of ASU 2020-07 on its financial statements. 

Risks and Uncertainties 

On March 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID- 19) 
a pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak could negatively impact, for some period of time, the overall 
economy as well as certain business segments. Investment markets have experienced increased volatility 
which may negatively affect the carrying value of the Organization's investments. In addition , COVID-
19 could adversely affect the Organi zation's financial condition and results o f operations due to the 
inabi lity to provide in-person services. At the date of these financial s tatements, management is unable 
to quantify the potential effects of this pandemic on future operations. 

The Organization believes the extent of the COVID-19 pandemic's adverse impact on operating results 
and financial condition has been and will continue to be driven by many factors, most of which are 
beyond control and ability to forecast. Such factors include, but are not li mited to, the scope and duration 
of stay-at-home practices and business closures and restrictions, declines in patient volumes for an 
indeterminable length of time, increases in the number of uninsured and underinsured patients as a result 
of higher sustained rates of unemployment, incremental expenses required for supplies and personal 
protective equipment, and changes in professional and general liabi lity exposure. Because of these and 
other uncerta inties, the Organization cannot estimate the length or severity of the impact of the pandemic 
on its operations. Decreases in cash flows and results of operations may have an impact on the inputs 
and assumptions used in significant accounting estimates, includi ng estimated implicit price concessions 
related to uninsured patient accounts, and professional and general liability reserves. 

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, the Organization received $428,45 1 from the $50 billion general 
distribution fund from the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund. These distributions from the Provider 
Relief Fund are not subject to repayment, provided the Organization is able to attest to and comply with 
the terms and conditions of the funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have 
been used for healthcare-related expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-1 9. Such payments are 
accounted for as government grants, and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other 
income once there is reasonable assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the 
funds will be met. Based on an analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the Provider 
Relief Fund and the impact of the pandemic on operating results through June 30, 2020, the Organization 
has recorded the full amount of the Provider Relief Funds received within deferred revenue on the 
accompanying statements of financial posi tion. 
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, the Organization successfully petitioned all three managed 
care organizations to waive the Maintenance of Effort (MOE) provisions in each of the respective 
provider service agreements. The waiver period is effective for the period of July 1, 20 19 through 
June 30, 2020, and is thereafter reinstated. An extension to waive the MOE requirements beyond this 
effective period is also uncertain at this time. 

Reclassifications 

Certain 20 19 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2020 financial statements 
presentation format . 

Subsequent Events 

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine 
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. Management has 
evaluated subsequent events through November 24, 2020 which is the date the financi al statements were 
avai lable to be issued. 

Program Service Fees From Third-Party Pavors 

The Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide payments to the Center at established 
rates. These payments include: 

New Hampshire and Managed Medicaid - The Center is reimbursed for services from the State of 
New Hampshire and Managed Care Organizations for services rendered to Medicaid c lients on the 
basis of fixed fee for service and case rates. 

Approximately 75% and 74% of program service fee revenue is from participation in the state and 
managed care organization sponsored Medicaid programs for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19, 
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicaid programs are complex and subject to 
interpretation and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that recorded estimates could change 
materially in the near term. 

3. Patient Accounts and Other Receivables 

Patient accounts receivable consists of the following at June 30: 

Due from clients 
Managed Medicaid 
Medicaid receivable 
Medicare receivable 
Other insurance 

22 

2020 2019 

$ 409,900 
226,603 
506,570 
184,591 
693,943 

$ 372,523 
293,860 
405,094 

7 1,465 
571,115 

$.2..Q21,607 $1,7 14,057 
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Patient Accounts and Other Receivables (Continued) 

Other accounts receivable consists of the following at June 30: 

State and federal grants receivable 
Amounts due from third-party payors 
Amounts due from other not-for-profit organizations 

2020 

$1,304,37 1 
886,895 
224,761 

$2,1 16,Q27 

2019 

$389,205 

2 15,697 

$6Q1,2Q2 

4. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted 

Investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted are presented in the financial statements at 
market value as follows at June 30: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of deposit 
Fixed income securities 
Common stock and mutual funds 

investments 

Investments, stated at fai r value, are comprised of the following at June 30: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of deposit 
Fixed income securities 
Common stock and mutual funds 

23 

2020 

$ 248,308 
250,000 
597,985 

3,475,737 

$4,572,Q3Q 

2020 

$ 222,938 
250,000 
536,887 

3, 120,610 

$1,13Q,135 

201 9 

$ 58,183 
250,000 
633,230 

3,554,354 

$4,425,161 

2019 

$ 52,434 
250,000 
570,665 

3,203,1 76 

$1,Q16,215 
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued) 

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted 

The composition of assets whose use is limi ted or restricted, stated at fair value, is comprised of the 
following at June 30: 

Donor restricted: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income securities 
Common stock and mutual funds 

2020 20 19 

$ 25,370 
61 ,098 

355,127 

$ 5,749 
62,565 

351,178 

$44 I ,595 $4 I 2,422 

Interest and dividend income, investment fees and net realized and unrealized gains and losses from 
assets whose use is limited and investments included in nonoperating revenues and expenses are 
comprised of the following at June 30: 

2020 20 19 
Interest and dividend income: 

Without donor restrictions $ 117,408 $ 114,5 18 
With donor restrictions 14,5 19 12,378 

Investment fees: 
Without donor restrictions (19,149) (19,105) 
With donor restrictions (2,368) (2,065) 

Net realized gains: 
Without donor restrictions 83,530 26,182 
With donor restrictions 10,330 2,830 

Net unrealized (losses) gains: 
Without donor restric tions (39,246) 85,677 
With donor restrictions (4,853) 9,26 1 

$ 160, 171 $229,616 

Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabil ity (an 
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market partic ipants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, the use of various 
valuation approaches, including market, income and cost approaches, is permitted. 
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5. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are 
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs refl ect market data obtained from sources independent 
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own assumptions about how market 
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and min imize the use 
of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of 
which the fi rst two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure 
fa ir value. 

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation 
methodologies used by the Organization for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis. The three levels of inputs are as follows: 

Level 1 - Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 

Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or 
indirectly; and 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data. 

Assets and liabili ties measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques. The 
three valuation techniques are as follows: 

• Market approach - Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving 
identical or comparable assets or liabilities; 

• Cost approach - Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e., 
replacement cost); and 

• Income approach - Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on 
market expectations (including present value techniques). 

In determining the appropriate levels, the Organization performs a detailed analysis of the assets and 
liabilities. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 or 2019. 

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used: 

Certificate o(Deposit and Fixed Income Securities 

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or 
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency, which are primarily classified 
as Level l within the fair value hierarchy. 
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5. 

MANCHEST ER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

Mutual (unds 

Mutual funds are valued based on the closing net asset value of the fund as reported in the active market 
in which the security is traded, which generally results in classification as Level I within the fair value 
hierarchy. 

Common Stock 

Common stock is valued at the closing price of the fund as reported in the active market in which the 
security is traded, which generally results in classification as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. 

The following table presents by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation investment assets 
at fair value, as of June 30, 2020 and 20 19. As required by professional accounting standards, 
investment assets are classified in their entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is s ignificant 
to the fair value measurement. 

Description 

2020 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of deposit 
Fixed income: 

Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds: 

Bank loans 
Emerging markets bond 
Intermediate/long-term high quality U.S. 
Large cap foreign equity 
Large cap U.S. blend equity 
Large cap U.S. growth equity 
Large cap U.S. value equity 
Sector 
Short-tem1 bond 
Small cap foreign/emerging market equity 
Strategic income 
Tactical 

Level 1 

$ 248,308 
250,000 

597,985 

73,294 
18,149 

237,761 
485,055 

1,136,270 
296,958 
269,324 
376,420 
11 1,087 
153,129 
245, 111 

73 179 

$4,572.030 

26 

Level 2 Level 3 Total 

$ - $ - $ 248,308 
250,000 

597,985 

73,294 
18,149 

237,761 
485,055 

1,136,270 
296,958 
269,324 
376,420 
111 ,087 
153,129 
245, 111 
73 179 

$4,572 030 
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5. 

6. 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLI DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 I 9 

Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total 

201 9 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,183 $ - $ - $ 58,183 
Certificate of deposit 250,000 250,000 
Common stock: 

Large cap value 10,307 10,307 
Fixed income: 

Corporate bonds 633,230 633,230 
Mutual funds: 

Bank loans 123,986 123,986 
Emerging markets bond 70,234 70,234 
Foreign large cap equity 480,4 12 480,4 12 
lntennediate term bond 11 3,025 11 3,025 
Large cap blended equity 1,858,273 1,858,273 
Mortgage backed security 156,593 156,593 
Sector 302,823 302,823 
Short-term bond 66,667 66,667 
Small cap foreign/emerging market equity 168,556 168,556 
Strategic income 132,713 132,7 13 
Tactical 70 765 70 765 

$4,495,767 $-=- $ - $4,495,767 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 

2020 2019 
Operating properties: 

Land $ 1,902,002 $ 1,835, 152 
Buildings and improvements 14,105,361 12,658, 142 
Furniture and equipment 2,795,166 2,490,922 

18,802,529 16,984,216 
Less accumulated depreciation (7,300,447) (6,646,3 11) 

11 ,502,082 10,337,905 

Commercial rental properties: 
Land 249,026 315,876 
Buildings and improvements 3,234,478 3,874,524 

3,483,504 4, 190,400 
Less accumulated depreciation (225, 175) (1 78,943) 

3,258,329 4,011,457 

$14,760,411 $1 4,349,362 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

6. Property and Equipment (Continued) 

7. 

8. 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $700,371 of which $616,268 is reflected in 
operations and $84, I 03 is re flected in nonoperating activi ty related to rental properties. Depreciation 
expense for the year ended June 30, 201 9 was $670,673 of which $576,784 is reflected in operations 
and $93,889 is reflected in nonoperating activity related to rental properties. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue consisted of the following at June 30: 

2020 20 19 

CARES Act Provider Relief Funds $428,45 1 $ 
Cenpatico cap adjustment 80,237 80,237 
Granite State UW BMBF Youth grant 8,67 1 25 ,000 
Miscellaneous deferred revenue 26,863 24,496 
Pearl Manor Seniors Initiative Grant 18,358 27,728 
People With Disabilities First Aid Grant 11 ,850 

$.514,430 $157,461 

Line of Credit 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Center had avai lable a line of credit with a bank providing for 
maximum borrowings of$2,500,000. There were no borrowings outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2019. 
The line is secured by all business assets of the Center and was not utilized as of June 30, 2020. These 
funds are available with interest charged at TD Bank, N.A. base rate (3.25% as of June 30, 2020). The 
line of credit is due on demand and is set to expire on February 28, 2021 . 

9. Long-Term Debt 

On April 20, 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $4,390,000 through the 
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
Act (CARES Act) and administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The PPP 
provides loans to qualifying organizations for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll 
expenses of the quali fying organization. The loan and accrued interest had original terms that were 
forgiva ble after eight weeks as long as the borrower used the loan proceeds for e ligible purposes, 
including payroll, benefi ts, rent, and utilities, and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan 
forgiveness would be reduced if the borrower terminated employees or reduced salaries during the eight­
week period. Certain modifications to PPP loan terms were s igned into law in June 2020 that changed 
the forgiveness, covered period and forgiveness periods. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

9. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan bears interest at I%, with a deferral of payments for the first six 
months. In October 2020, the deferral period was extended to ten months. The loan may be prepaid at 
any time without penalty and has a maturity date in Apri l 2022. The Organization intends to use the 
proceeds for purposes consistent with the PPP. While the Organization currently believes that its use of 
the loan proceeds will meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan, as of the date of issuance of these 
financial statements, there is no assurance that the Organization will not take actions that could cause 
the Organization to be ineligible for forgiveness of the loan, in whole or in part. The Organization has 
accounted for the PPP loan in accordance with FASS ASC Topic 470, Debt. 

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30: 

Bond payable to a bank, due July 2027, with interest only payments 
at 3.06% through February 2026. Fixed principal payments 
commence March 2026. Secured by specific real estate 

Note payable to a bank, due March 2026, monthly principal payments 
of $17,016, plus interest at a 4.4% interest rate per annum. Secured 
by specific real estate 

Note payable to a bank, due July 2020, monthly principal and 
interest payments of $ 1,23 1 at a 3.27% interest rate. Secured 
by specific real estate 

PPP loan 

Less current portion 
Less unamortized debt issuance costs 

2020 

$ 5,760,000 

1,392,708 

68,535 
4,390,000 

11 ,611 ,243 
(2, 169,96 I) 

(74,098) 

$ 9,361,1 84 

2019 

$5,760,000 

1,545,852 

80,260 

7,386,112 
(230,290) 

(84,559) 

$7,01J,2fil 

ln connection with the line of credit, note payable and bond payable agreements, the Center is required 
to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants including, but not limited to, debt service coverage 
and days cash on hand ratios. At June 30, 2020, the Organization was in compliance with these 
restrictive covenants. 

Aggregate principal payments on long-term debt, due within the next five years and thereafter are as 
follows: 

Year ending J une 30: 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 
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$ 2, 169,96 1 
2,657,739 

201,834 
235,866 
214,096 

6,131,747 

$li,611 ,243 
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9. 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Interest expense for the years ending June 30, 2020 and 20 19 was $274,867 and $256,944, respectively. 
In accordance with ASU 2015-03, the amortization of debt issuance costs of $ 10,461 is reflected in 
interest expense at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The remaining balance of $264,406 and $246,483, 
respectively, is interest related to the above debt for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively. 

10. Lease Obligations 

The Center leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases which expire at various dates. 
Aggregate future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or 
more as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

$ 88,623 
54,103 
I4,973 

1,673 
1,255 

$)60.627 

Rent expense incurred by the Center was $ 103,898 and $92,697 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 
20 19, respectively. 

11. Leases in Financial Statements of Lessors 

In July 20 l 7, the Center acquired an office building it previously partially leased located at 2 Wall Street 
in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Center leases the real estate it does not occupy to nonrelated third 
parties. Aggregate future minimum lease payments to be received from tenants under noncancelable 
operating leases with terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 

$ 355,663 
285,2 17 
2 15,792 
2 14,225 
112,185 
59,606 

$ 1,242,688 

Rental revenue related to these noncancelable operating leases was $401 ,003 and $403, 191 for the years 
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOT ES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 20 19 

12. Concentrations of Credit Risk 

The Foundation holds investments with LPL Financial totaling $4,322,030 and $4,245,767 as of June 30, 
2020 and 20 19, respectively. Of this amount $3,822,030 and $3,745,767, respectively, is in excess of 
SIPC coverage of $500,000 and is uninsured at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

The Center grants credit without collateral to its c lients, most who are area residents and are insured 
under thi rd-party payor agreements . The mix of receivables due from clients and third-party payors is 
as follows at June 30: 

Due from clients 
Managed Medicaid 
Medicaid receivable 
Medicare receivable 
Other insurance 

13. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

2020 20 19 

41 % 
12 
15 
8 

24 

44% 
13 
13 
3 

27 

.1QQ% .1QQ% 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30: 

Purpose restriction: 
Educational scholarships and program re lated activities 

Perpetual in nature: 
Investments to be held in perpetuity, the income 

from which is restricted to support educational 
scholarships and program related activities 
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2020 2019 

$209,298 $ 187,195 

232,297 232,297 

$441,595 $419,492 



DocuSign Envelope ID: A83B5E9E-6A60-4621-831 E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

14. Liquidity and Availabilitv 

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position 
date, consist of the following at June 30, 2020: 

Financial assets at year end: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Patient accounts receivable 
Other accounts receivable 
Investments 

Financial assets available to meet general 
expenditures within one year 

$ 9,525,985 
2,021,607 
2,4 16,027 
4 ,130,435 

$18,094,054 

The Foundation receives contributions restricted by donors, and considers contributions restricted for 
programs which are ongoing, major and central to its annual operations to be available to meet cash 
needs for general expenditures. 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 

Elimi-
Center Foundation Amoskeag nations 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,174,33 1 $ 34,587 $ 117,067 $ 200,000 

Restricted cash 4,322 88,464 

Patient accounts receivable 2,021,607 
Other accounts receivable 2,414,4 14 199,900 1,713 (200,000) 

Due from affiliate 161,908 (161,908) 

Investments - short-tenn 250,000 
Prepaid expenses 556,789 69 1 

Total current assets 14,583,371 234,487 207,935 (1 61,908) 

Investments - long-term 3,880,435 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted 441,595 

Property and equipment, net of 
accumulated depreciation 14,609,960 150,451 

Total assets $22, 123,33 1 $1,556,511 $358,386 $ (161,208) 
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Total 

$ 9,525 ,985 
92,786 

2,02 1,607 
2,416,027 

250,000 
557,480 

14,863,885 

3,880,435 

44 1,595 

14,760,4 11 

$33,2~6,326 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Elimi-
Center Foundation Amoskeag nations Total 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 183,858 $ $ 2,586 $ $ 186,444 
Accrued payroll, vacation and other accruals 3,935,578 711 3,936,289 
Deferred revenue 574,430 574,430 
Due to affiliate 128,400 33,508 ( 161,908) 
Current portion of long-tenn debt 2, 155,303 14,658 2,169,961 
Amounts held for patients and other deposits 20,187 2,6 15 22,802 

Total current liabilities 6,869,356 129, 111 53 ,367 (161,908) 6,889,926 

Extended illness leave, long term 484,285 484,285 

Post-retirement benefi t obligation 70,993 70,993 

Long-tenn debt, less current maturities 
and unamortized debt issuance costs 9,313,307 53,877 9,367, 184 

Total liabilities 16,737,94 1 129,111 107,244 (161,908) 16,8 12,388 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 12,455,390 3,985,8 11 25 1,142 16,692,343 
With donor restrictions 44 1,595 441 595 

Total net assets 12,455,390 4,427,406 251,142 17,133,938 

Total liabi lities and net assets $29,193.33 1 $4,556,5 17 $358,386 $ D G l,9Q8) $33,946,326 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Revenues and other support: 
Program service fees 
Program rental income 
Fees and grants from 

government agencies 
Interest income 
Other income 

Total revenues and other support 

Operating expenses: 
Program services: 

Children and adolescents 
Emergency services 
Vocational services 
Noneligibles 
Multiservice team 
ACT team 
Crisis unit 
Community residences 

and support living 
HUD residences 
Housing bridge program 
Other 

Total program services 
Support services: 

Management and general 

Operating property 
Interest expense 

Total operating expenses 

Income from operations 

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Center Foundation Amoskeag 
Without Without With Without 
Donor Donor Donor Donor 

Restriction Restriction Restriction Restriction 

$25,722,254 $ $ $ 
138,572 22 1,172 

6,253,650 
48,164 

7,228,007 42 

39,390,647 22 1,214 

5,488,616 
2,866,477 

659,686 
1,738,729 
9,843,326 
4,194,118 
5,791,325 

1,534,011 
153,781 

423,615 
1,862,359 

34,402,262 153,781 

3,503,470 29,453 

574,967 
27 1,826 3,041 

38,752,525 186,275 

638,122 34,939 
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Total 

$25,722,254 
359,744 

6,253,650 
48,164 

7,228,049 

39,6 11 ,861 

5,488,616 
2,866,477 

659,686 
l ,738,729 
9,843,326 
4,194,118 
5,791,325 

1,534,011 
153,781 
423,615 

1,862,359 
34,556,043 

3,532,923 

574,967 
274,867 

38,938,800 

673,061 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATTNG STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
AND CHANGES TN NET ASSETS (CONTTNUED) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Center Foundation Amoskeag 
Without Without With Without 
Donor Donor Donor Donor 

Restriction Restriction Restriction Restriction 

Income from operations $ 638,122 $ $ $ 34,939 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses): 
Rental income 401 ,003 
Rental property expense (298,934) 
Cm1tributions 2 18,666 591 4,475 
Net investment return 142,543 17,628 

Dues (5,040) 
Miscellaneous expenses (3 ,499) 

Nonoperating revenue, net 320,735 134,595 22, 103 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over expenses 958,857 134,595 22, 103 34,939 

Net transfer (to) from affiliate (200,000) 200,000 

Increase in net assets 758,857 334,595 22, 103 34,939 

Net assets at beginning of year 11 ,696,533 3,651,216 4 19,492 216,203 

Net assets at end of year $l2.,455,32Q $3,285,8 11 $44 1,,525. $_25.J 142. 
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Total 

$ 673,06 1 

40 1,003 
(298,934) 
223,732 
160,17 1 

(5,040) 
(3,499) 

477 433 

1, 150,494 

1, 150,494 

15,983,444 

$J_1_ 1 ll,238 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES, RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES 

Contract year, June 30, 2020 

Analysis of receipts: 
Date of receipt/deposit: 

July 25, 2019 
July 30, 2019 
August 16, 2019 
October I 8, 20 19 
November 15, 20 19 
December 26, 2019 
January 21, 2020 
February 26, 2020 
March 25, 2020 
May 4, 2020 
May 21, 2020 
June 4, 2020 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

BBH 
BBH Revenues 

Receivable Per Audited 
Beginning Financial 

of Year Statements 

$2i2,Q73 $_3_,041,16~ 
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Receipts 
for Year 

$ (2,522,883) 

BBH 
Receivable 

End 
of Year 

$763,254 

Amount 

$ 25 1,1 92 
230 
885 

503,259 
25 1,187 
25 1,187 
252,072 
25 1,187 
265 ,187 
25 1, 187 

1,123 
25 I,187 

$2,522,883 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. Al"\ID AFFILIATES 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Mental Health 
Total Child Multi-

Total Admini- Center and Emergency Vocational Non- Service 

Agency strati on Programs Adolescents Services Services Eligibles Team 

Program service fees: 
Net client fees $ 181 ,631 $ $ 18 1,631 $ 11,792 $ 36,67 1 $ (4,636) $ (35,149) $ (60,284) 

HMO's 1,799,918 1,799,918 422,945 185,587 421 ,226 472,449 

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 2,493,363 2,493,363 389,203 337,243 441 ,019 670,946 

Medicaid 19,226,816 19,226,816 6,571,219 540,874 30 I, 183 258,187 6,600,411 

Medicare 1,186,322 1,186,322 1,273 12,793 91 183,193 868,594 

Other insurance 825,053 825,053 115,280 65,947 19,706 148,414 269,441 

Other program fees 9J5 1 9 151 123 3 411 I 299 1.102 

25,722,254 25,722,254 7,511,835 1,182,526 316,344 1,418,189 8,822,659 

Local and county government: 
Division for Children, youth and famil ies 3,245 3,245 3,245 

Federal funding path 43,731 43,731 43,731 

Rental income 359,744 138,572 
Interest income 48,164 48,164 

BBH: 
Bureau of Behavioral Health 1,649,540 1,649,540 1,353 440,884 

Other 1,345,248 1,345,248 
Other revenues 10.439.935 l 0.439.893 2.008.696 1,159,197 182.867 111 805 2,045.589 

13.889.607 13,668,393 2.013.294 1,643,812 182.867 111 805 2,045.589 

Total program revenues $39,611.861 $ $39,39Q,647 $ 9,525,129 $ 2,826,338 $ 499 211 $ 1 529,994 $10,868,248 
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Center 
Other 

ACT Crisis Community Supportive Mental Other Housing 
Team Unit Residence Living Health Non-BBH Bridge Amoskeag 

Program service fees: 
Net client fees $ 93,052 $ 25,405 $ 26,000 $ 21,000 $ $ 67,780 $ $ 
HMO's 13,293 284,418 
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 37,068 617,884 
Medicaid 2,316,186 1,592,395 557,284 462,903 2,128 24,046 

Medicare 114,186 6,036 156 
Other insurance 92,343 107,995 4,012 1,915 

Other program fees 125 3 052 39 

2,666,253 2,637,185 583,440 487,954 2,128 93,741 

Local and county government: 
Division for Children, youth and families 

Federal funding path 
Rental income 992 132,108 5,472 221 ,172 

Interest income 48,1 64 

BBH: 
Bureau of Behavioral Health 475,000 675,000 57,303 
Other 1,345,248 

Other revenues 1.095,204 1,120,490 43.374 314 687 11 096 1.855.619 491 ,269 42 

1,570.204 3.141,730 43 374 446 795 68 399 1,909,255 491,269 221,214 

Total program revenues $ 4,236,457 $ 5,778,915 $ 626,814 $ 934 749 $ 705?7 $ 2,002,996 $ 491,269 $ 221,2 14 

39 



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8385E9E-6A60-462 1-831 E-A7F865212043 

MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSIT ION 

June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

Elimi-
Center Foundation Amoskeag nations 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,906,396 $ 29,4 18 $126,65 1 $ 

Restricted cash 454,345 33,173 
Patient accounts receivable 1,714,057 
Other accounts receivable 607,38 1 (2,479) 

Due from affiliate 2 10,400 (210,400) 
Investments - short-term 250,000 
Prepaid expenses 495 089 69 1 

Total current assets 9,637,668 29,4 18 158,036 (210,400) 

Investments - long-term 3,826,275 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted 419,492 

Property and equipment, net of 
accumulated depreciation 14,199,392 149,970 

Total 

$ 6,062,465 
487,5 18 

1,7 14,057 
604,902 

250,000 
495,780 

9,614,722 

3,826,275 

419,492 

14,349,362 

Total assets $23,837.060 $_4,275,ill $308,006 $[210,400) $2K2~$_5-l 
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LIAB ILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Eli mi-
Center Foundation Amoskeag nations Total 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 375,033 $ $ 2,295 $ $ 377,328 

Accrued payroll , vacation and other accruals 3,739,644 710 3,740,354 
Deferred revenue 157,461 157,461 

Accrual for estimated third-party 
payor settlements 99,2 18 99,218 

Due to affiliate 203,767 6,633 (210,400) 
Current portion of long-term debt 2 18,525 11,765 230,290 
Amounts held for patients and other deposits 18,665 2,615 21,280 

Total current liabilities 4,608,546 204,477 23,308 (210,400) 4 ,625,931 

Extended illness leave, long term 460,541 460,541 

Post-reti rement benefit obligation 68,672 68,672 

Long-term debt, less current maturities 
and unamortized debt issuance costs 7,002,768 68,495 7,07 1,263 

Total liabil ities 12,140,527 204,477 91,803 (2 10,400) 12,226,407 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 11,696,533 3,651,2 16 2 16,203 15,563,952 

With donor restrictions 419,492 4 19,492 

Total net assets 11 ,696,533 4,070,708 216,203 15,983,444 

Total liabili ties and net assets $23,837,060 $4,275,185 $ 3Jl8.,Qilii $!21_0_,:100) $2.8_.,202,851 

4 1 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATfNG STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Revenues and other support: 
Program service fees 
Program rental income 
Fees and grants from 

government agencies 
Interest income 
Other income 

Total revenues and other support 

Operating expenses: 
Program services: 

Children and adolescents 
Elderly 
Emergency services 
Vocational services 
Noneligibles 
Multiservice team 
ACT team 
Crisis unit 
Community residences 

and support living 
HUD residences 
Other 

Total program services 
Support services: 

Management and general 

Operating property 
Interest expense 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

AND CHANGES fN NET ASSETS 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Center 
Without 
Donor 

Foundation 
Without With 
Donor Donor 

Amoskeag 
Without 
Donor 

Restriction Restriction Restriction Restriction 

$22,440,002 $ $ $ 
13 1,429 203 ,638 

4,644,49 1 
105,293 

6,732,558 7 1 

34,053,773 203,709 

4,885,860 
256,6 16 

2,444,022 
555,01 3 

1,445,620 
7,879,982 
3,808,348 
5,299,302 

1,486,944 
214,402 

1,908,952 
29,970,659 2 14,402 

3,368,217 36,493 

478,932 
253,4 14 3,530 

34,071,222 254,425 

(1 7,449) (50,716) 

42 

Total 

$22,440,002 
335,067 

4,644,491 
l 05,293 

6,732,629 

34,257,482 

4,885,860 
256,6 16 

2,444,022 
555,013 

1,445,620, 
7,879,982 
3,808,348 
5,299,302 

1,486,944 
2 14,402 

1,908,952 
30,185,061 

3,404,710 

478,932 
256,944 

34,325,647 

(68, 165) 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEAL TH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
AN D CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Center 
Without 
Donor 

Foundation 
Without With 
Donor Donor 

Amoskeag 
Without 
Donor 

Restriction Restriction Restriction Restriction Total 

Loss from operations 

Nonoperating revenue ( expenses): 
Rental income 
Rental property expense 
Contributions 
Net investment return 
Dues 
Donations to charitable organizations 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Nonoperating revenue, net 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over expenses 

Net transfer from (to) affiliate 

Reclassification of net assets 
with donor restrictions 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

$ (17,449) $ 

403,191 
(367,083) 
273,353 

309,461 

292,012 

83,907 

15,172 
207,272 

(4,800) 

(2,949) 

214.695 

2 14,695 

(83,907) 

(67,481) 

$ 

6,418 
22,404 

(16,500) 

12,322 

12,322 

67,481 

375,919 63,307 79,803 

11,320.614 3,587,909 339.689 

$1.L,ili 533 $3,651,216 $419,492 

43 

$ (50,7 16) $ (68, 165) 

403,191 
(367,083) 
294,943 
229,676 

(4,800) 
(16,500) 

(2,949) 

536,478 

(50,7 16) 468,3 13 

(50,716) 468,313 

266,919 15,515,13 1 

$216,203 $.Jj.983.444 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES, RECE IPTS AND RECEIVABLES 

Contract year, June 30, 2019 

Analysis of receipts: 
Date of receipt/deposit: 

July 16, 20 18 
July 20, 2018 
September 12, 20 18 
October 30, 20 18 
November 1, 20 18 
November 29, 20 18 
January 24, 2019 
February 8, 2019 
March 4, 2019 
April 8, 2019 
April 19, 2019 
April 22, 2019 
May 28, 20 19 
May 30, 20 19 
June 26, 20 19 

For the Year Ended June 30, 201 9 

BBH 
BBH Revenues 

Receivable Per Audited 
Beginning Financial 

of Year Statements 

$ 162,885 $ 3,Q38,8Ql 

44 

Receipts 
for Year 

$ (2,242,613) 

BBH 
Receivable 

End 
of Year 

$252,Q13 

Amount 

$ 161 ,207 
885 

25 1,187 
278,166 
224,2 10 
25 1,622 

1,770 
516,374 

5,000 
502,374 
139,969 
112,104 

1,839 
251,188 
251,718 

$2,942,613 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Mental Health 
Total Child 

Total Admini- Center and Elderly Emergency Vocational Non-

Agency strati on Programs Adolescents Services Services Services Eligibles 

Program service fees: 
Net cl ient fees $ 371,054 $ $ 371,054 $ 57,629 $ (30,131) $ 74,775 $ 10,467 $ (33,806) 

HMO's 1,537,915 1,537,915 291,142 26,245 281,882 333,349 

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 2,1 11,774 2,111,774 303,611 62,836 344,591 395,569 

Medicaid 16,632,486 16,632,486 5,720,539 311,395 488,409 257,662 285,511 

Medicare 1,190,836 I, 190,836 750 194,785 8,238 1 139,715 

Other insurance 597,002 597,002 94,147 16,599 1 I 9,631 6,023 92,977 

Other program fees (1.065) (1,065) (137) (I .498) (3,716) (1.025) 

22,440,002 22,440,002 6,467,681 580,231 1,313,810 274,153 1,2 12,290 

Local and county government: 
Division for Children, youth and fam ilies 3,540 3,540 3,540 

Federal funding path 40,121 40,121 40,121 

Rental income 335,067 335,067 
Interest income 105,293 105,293 
BBH: 

Bureau of Behavioral Health 3,038,801 3,038,801 2,804 440,882 

Other 1,079,642 1,079,642 
Other revenues 7.2 15,016 46.315 7,168,701 2.056,937 69.266 I. I 00,2 13 177.174 44 618 

11.817.480 46.315 11,771,165 2.063,281 69.266 1.581.216 177 174 44 618 

Total program revenues $34 .25 7.482 $ 46 315 $34,21 1, I Q7 $ 8.53Q.962 $ Q49 427 $ 2.895 Q26 $ 451.327 $ l.256,9Q8 

45 
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Center 
Multi Other 

Service ACT Crisis Community Supportive Mental Other 
Team Team Unit Residence Living Health Non-BBH Amoskeag 

Program service fees: 
Net client fees $ {l 19,964) $ 61,199 $ 245,926 $ 29,012 $ 24,383 $ $ 51,564 $ 
HMO's 298,487 18,683 288,120 7 
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 495,257 56,949 452,948 13 
Medicaid 5,034,904 2,051,593 1,529,058 478,813 441,634 1,451 31,517 
Medicare 756,733 86,908 3,703 2 1 
Other insurance 103,260 72,975 47,897 2,512 40,981 
Other program fees (982) (139) (3,022) (43) 9 497 

6,567,695 2,348,168 2,564,630 507,827 468,486 1,451 133,580 

Local and county government: 
Division for Children, youth and families 

Federal funding path 
Rental income 2,303 123,675 5,451 203,638 
Interest income 105,293 
BBH: 

Bureau of Behavioral Health 1,591,509 940,606 63,000 
Other 1,079,642 

Other revenues 1.489,720 416 861 39393 317,525 1 112 1.455,811 71 

1,489,720 1,59L509 2.439.412 39393 441200 64J 12 1,566,555 203,709 

Total program revenues $ 8,057,415 $ 3,939,677 $ 5,004,042 $ 547,220 $ 909 686 $ 65 563 $ 1,700,135 $ 203,709 

46 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. 

AND 
THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
2020 - 2021 

Kevin Sheppard, Chair, Director, Manchester Public Works 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2016-9/2022 

Elaine Michaud, Vice Chair, Retired Partner, Devine Millimet 
Term 6 months. 5/2021-10/2021 

Brent Kiley, Treasurer, Managing Director, Rise Private Wealth Management 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2017-9/2023 

Lizabeth MacDo nald, Secretary, Princ ipal, W esto n Elementary School 
Term 6 yrs. 4/2016-9/2022 

Allen Aldenberg, Captain, Manchester Police Dept. 
Term 6 yrs. 1/2019-9/2024 

Mark Burns, Senior Sales Executive, Wieczorek Insurance 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2019-9/2025 

Ronald Caron, Attorney, Devine, Millimet Law Firm 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2019-9/2025 

Jeff Eisenberg, President, EVR Advertising 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2018-9/2024 

Desneiges French, Senior Accountant, Wipfli, LLP 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2019-9/2025 

David Harrington, Director of Human Resources, New England College 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2017-9/2023 

Philip Hastings, IT Consultant 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2015-9/2021 

Jaime Hoebeke, Division Head, Manchester Health Dept. 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2015-10/2021 

Christina Mellor, Interior Designer, Lavallee Brensinger Arch itects 
Term 6 yrs. 10/201 5-9/2021 

Michael Reed, President, Stebbins Commercial Properties, LLC 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2019-9/2025 

Deanna Rice, Director of Case Management and Population Health, Catholic Medical Center 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2020-9/2026 

Ron Schneebaum, MD, Dartmouth Hitchcock 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2018-9/2024 

Andrew Seward, Chief Information Security Officer, Solution Health System 
Term 6 yrs. 10/2016-9/2022 

Z:\ADM\Executive Assistant\Board of Directors\Board 2021 
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MANCHESTER MENTAL HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC. 

AND 
THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
2020 - 2021 

Richard Shannon, Deacon, Director of Pastoral Care, Bishop Peterson Residence 
Term 6 yrs. 10/201 6-9/2022 

William Stone, President and CEO, Primary Bank 
Term 6 yrs. 5/2020-9/2026 

Z:\ADM\Executive Assislanl\Board of Directors\Board 2021 
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DESCRIPTION 

PATRICIA CARTY, MS, CCBT 
Executive V ice Pres id ent/C h ie f Ope rat ing Officer 

W orks collaboratively w ith members o f Senior Leaders hip Team and is an active participant in 
planning and development. Attends meetings with the Board of D irectors and contributes to Board 
effort in governing The Center. Ad vises the President/CEO of opportunities and trends within the 
environment that The Center operates, as well as analyzing the strengths and weaknesses o f Center 
programs and personnel. Understands and incorporates The Center's mission, vis ion a nd G uiding 
Values and Princip les in all areas of perfonnance. Pos itively represen ts The Center y to all 
constituent groups; including regulatory agencies, media, general public, staff, consumers and 
fami lies. May be requested to take part in consu ltatio ns, education activ ities, speakers bureau, 
presentations, supervision of employees toward licensure, and will be expected to take part in 
Q uality Improvements activ ities. 

EDUCATlON 

MS 

BA 

Springfield College, Manchester 
Community/Psychology 

University of Vermont 
Psychology 

EXPERIENCE 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 

July 2015 to present 
2000 to July 2015 
1996 - 2000 
1990 - 1996 
1987 - 1990 
1986 - 1987 

Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 
Director of Community Support Services 
Assistant Director of Co mmunity Support Services 
Assistant Coordinator, Restorative Partial Hospital 
Counselor, Restorative Pa1iial Hospital 
Residential Specialist 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, MEMBERSHIPS, LICENSES AND 
CERTIFICATIONS 

1994 

1985 

Manchester, NH 

• Member - Psychophannacology Research Group, Department of Psychiatry, Da,imouth Medical 
School - 2003 to present 

• 1998 Recipient of the Mental Il lness Administrator o f the Year Award by the National Al liance for 
the Mentally Ill 

• 1998 American Psychiatric Association Gold A ward partic ipant winner accepting on behalf of the 
entire DBT treatment program 

• American Mental Health Counselor's Association (#999020788) 
• Certi fi ed Cognitive Behavioral Therapist(# 1242 1) 
• National Association of Cognitive Behavioral Therapists 

Z:IADM\Executive Assistant\Mobile Crisis Services RFP 2020\Resumes\Patricia Carty Resume.docx 
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PUBLICATIONS 

PATRICIA CARTY, MS, CCBT 
Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 

T he Trauma Recovery Group: A Cognitive-Behavioral Program for Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder in 
Persons with Severe Mental Il lness. Community Mental Health Journal, Vol. 43, No. 3, June 
2007. 

Co-authored Chapter 25 for text entit led Improving Mental Health Care: Commitment to Quality. Edi ted by 
Sederer & Dickey, 2001. 

Psychometric Evaluation of Trauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder Assessment in Persons with Severe 
Mental Illness. Psychology Assessment. 2001. Vol. 13, No. 1, 110-11 7. 

HIV Risk Factors Among People with Severe Menta l Illness in Urban and Rura l Areas. Psychiatric Services. 
April 1999. 

T rauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder in Severe Mental lllness. Journal of Consulting and Cl inical 
Psychology. 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10, 1338-1340. 

Integrating Dialectical Behavior Therapy into a Community Mental Health Program. Psychiatric Services. 
October 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10, 1338-1340. 

Z:\ADM\Executive Assistant\Mobile Crisis Services RFP 2020\Resumes\Patric,a Carty Resume.docx 
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Richard Cornell MSW, ACSW, LICSW 
Vice President of Community Relations 

Resume 

WORK EXPERIENCE- Please note that I have worked for the MHCGM since 1973. 

July 2014 to Present-
Vice President of Community Relations for the Mental Health 
Center of Greater Manchester. Responsible for overseeing all Community and 
Development Projects as well as Community Education & Strategic Resources. 

2000 to July 2014-
Director of Bedford Counseling Associates. Responsible for a ll clinical decisions 

made by the staff in our Manchester and Derry office settings. Supervised the 
decisions made by the scheduling department. Monitored the use of funding 
source monies. Worked with other departments to assure open communication 

and that client needs were met (member of CST, Management and Marketing 
Teams). Supervised new staff and students. Maintained a full-time case load. 
Performed community presentations as needed. Resolved any client conflicts in 

the delivery of their services. 

1999 to 2000 -
Coordinator of Bedford Counseling Associates. Full-time therapist. Supervised 
intake coordination and emergency services related to this program. 

1986 to 1999-
Child and Adolescent Therapist. Responsible for community outreach with local 
schools, hospitals and primary care offices. Performed presentations for local 
businesses when needed. 

1980 to 1986-
Child Therapist. Worked with families and community programs. 

1981 to 1984-
Volunteer Coordinator& Vocational Development. Worked with the Director 
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of Community Development to expand a highly successful volunteer 

program for the center. We also worked to create a supportive employment 

program (Options) for the center. During this time additionally carried a full 

clinical caseload. 

1978 to 1980-
Adult Out-Patient Therapist. Caseload was mixed with Emergency 

Services and the Adult Out-Patient Department. 

1976 to 1980- . 
Emergency Services Clinician. Responsibleforcrisisintervenliontraining. Perfonned 
psychiatric assessments. Took on-call duties in office and out in the community. 
Worked with Emergency Room Departments, Police and many community 

agencies. 

1973 to 1975-
Mental Health Worker. Therapist on the night and evening shifts of the center's 
in-patient unit. 

EDUCATION 
1987-
MSW with a concentration in youth and group work. Boston 
University, School of Social Work 
1981-
BS in Human Services, New Hampshire College 

LICENSURE/MEMBERSHIPS 
❖ L/CSW- licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, NH # 457 
❖ ACSW-Academy of Certified Social Workers since 1990 
❖ NASW-National Association Of Social Workers since 1984 

QUALIFICATIONS 
❖ Demonstration of strong leadership 

skills 
❖ Sound background of clinical 

practice 
❖ History of positive supervisory 

skills 
❖ lengthy public speaking 

experience 

(References available upon request) 
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PAUL J. MICHAUD 
MSB, BS 

Seasoned professional with 30 years of financial management, reporting, and leadership 
experience, inclusive of general ledger oversight & reconciliations, month-end close, payroll, 
A/P, A/R, budgeting/ forecasting, variance analysis, product costing, revenue cycle 
management, revenue enhancement, treasury/ cash-flow forecasting, environmental & 
operational analysis, staff supervision, H/R, workers comp. and insurance/ risk administration, 
regulatory and statutory reporting, external audits, strategic planning, policy development, 
grants/ funding management, technology implementation, EMR, compliance, and security. 

Chief Financial Officer 

Controller 

Chief Financial Officer 

LEADERSIP POSITIONS 

The Mental Health Center 
Of Greater Manchester (NH) 

Associated Home Care, Inc. Beverly, MA 

Seacoast VNA, North Hampton, NH 

Manager, Public Accounting Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, CPA 

Director, Budget & Cost / Controller BCBS of Maine, So. Portland, ME 

20 11 to present 

2009 to 2011 

1998 to 2009 

1996 to 1998 

1993 to1996 

Key Accountabilities: Oversight of all accounting, financ ial reporting, transaction processing, budgets / 
forecasts, N R, N P, GIL, payroll, 1/T , product costing, profitability analysis, and vendor contracting. 
Regular collaboration with Senior Management Team, Finance Committees, Board of Directors, external 
auditors, and federal / state regulators. Other responsibil ities include: revenue cycle & cash flow 
management, analysis and resolution of forecast variances, management of bi ll ing, N R and collections, 
banking, investor, lender relationships, new business development, staff recruitment, supervis ion, 
training, benefits/ retirement plans administration , cost accounting, operational analyses, systems 
integration, development and maintenance of accounting and management information systems. Duties 
also include assessing risk exposure & insurance coverage, M & A evaluations and due di ligence, grant 
applications, and preparation of corporate income tax schedules and support ( Forms 990 and 1120) 

Significant Accomplishments - Post-Acute Hea/thcarefacilities: 
Key member of EMR implementation team (billing, N R, Accounting, registration functions) 
Financial oversight during period of I 00% revenue growth 
Financial oversight during period of national Top 500 Agency Status 
Financial oversight during period of 300% reduction in Days in N R 
One-year oversight - due di ligence process - Merger w ith $50 mill ion entity 

Audit / Consulting Manager 
Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, CPA's & Management Consultants 1996 to 1998 
Provided consul tation and advisory services to hospita ls, nursing homes, ALF's, and other healthcare 
facili ties (acute & post-acute) in areas of re imbursement, fi nancial planning and reporting and systems 
evaluations and integration. Coordinated and supervised audit engagements, regulatory report 
preparation, feasibil ity studies, due di ligence, financial forecasts and proj ections, and operational and 
compliance reviews. Assisted clients with regulatory licensing and certifications. 
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Paul J.Michaud 
Pagel 

Budget Director, Finance Division, Budget & Cost Department 
Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME 1993 through 1996 
Directed corporate administrative budgeting and forecasting process for Maine's largest managed care 
organization. Determined, distributed, analyzed, and forecast annual operating expenses in excess of $70 
million. Oversight responsibilities of administrative expense reimbursement for all federal and state 
contracts. Supervised professional and administrative staff. N P. Payroll, G/L, financial & budget 
variance reporting & analysis. Interim appointment as VP of Finance. 

Significant Accomplishme11ts: 
Reorganized corporate budgeting and costing process, converting to electronic format while enhancing 

routine communications with department heads and improving variance reporting .. 
Restructured payroll and NP functions resulting in operational and economic efficiencies. 
Collaborated with senior management in major corporate reorganization to streamline operations and 

reduce administrative costs. Reduced administrative budget in excess of 25%. 
Appointed to corporate job evaluation and compensation committee 

Audit Manager, Medicare Fiscal Intermediary 
Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME 1985 through 1993 

Oversight responsibilities for Medicare cost report audit and reimbursement functions for hospital 
complexes, home health care agencies, skilled nursing facilities, and other healthcare providers. 
Interpreted and applied federal program laws, regulations and cost reporting instructions. Interacted with 
provider officers and externa l consultants, CPA's and federal program officials. Staff supervision. 

Accomplishments: 
Planned, organized and implemented New England Regional Home Health Agency audit department in 

1986, inclusive of development of audit programs and polic ies, fraud and abuse de tection programs, 
staff recruitment and tra ining, and all related administrative and management functions. 

Administered annual audit and provider service functions resulting in HCFA recognition of Blue Cross & 
Blue Shield of Maine as one of the leading and most cost efficient audit intermediaries in the entire 
country based upon federal perfonnance and quali ty standards. ( 1989 through 1995) 

Staff Auditor - Public Accounting 
Planned and conducted audit exami nations and prepared financial statements and tax returns for clients 
within the retail, financi al services, healthcare and manufacturing industries. 

Arthur Young & Company, Portland, Maine 1982 through 1983 

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Husson College, Bangor, Maine 

Masters of Science in Business Administration (MSB -Accounting Concentration) 1990 
Husson College, Bangor, Maine 

Bachelor of Science in Accounting (BSA) 1980 

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES 
Microsoft Office Products - Excel, Word, Powerpoint, database management tools 
Various accounting & patient billing programs ( Quantum, myAvatar, QuickBooks, MAS 90, MISYS, HAS, 

CERNER) 
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Master of Arts, Mental Health Counseling, May 2017 
Rivier University, Nashua, NH GPA: 4.0 

Bianca M. Ciuffredo 

EDUCATION 

Course Highlights: Advanced Perspectives on Cultural Diversity, Counseling Theory, Techniques of Counseling, Addictive Behaviors, 
Advanced Group Counseling, Advanced Psychology of Human Development, Fundamentals of Research, Positive Psychology 
Bachelor of Arts, Cum Laude, Psychology, May 2012 
Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH 
Honors: Featured in Rivier Today Magazine (Fall, 2015 ed.), Recipient of the Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester President's Circle 
Award, Member of Psi Chi (National Honor Society in Psychology), Member of Pi Gamma Mu Honor Society in Social Sciences, Recipient of 
the Judy Meelia Award for Community Service, Recipient of the Saint Anselm College Senior Scholar-Athlete of the Year Award, Recipient of 
the New Hampshire IDeA Network of Biomedical Research Excellence (NH-INBRE) Grant. 
Skills: CPR, First Aid, Crisis Prevention Intervention (CPI), Illness Management and Recovery (IMR), Behavioral Family Therapy (BFT), 
Motivational Interviewing (Ml), Stages of Change, LEAP, Electronic Medical Billing, American Psychological Association (APA) Formatting, 
Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, Excel; Database Research 

EXPERIENCE 

ACT Clinician, Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester (MHCGM), Manchester, NH May 2017- Present 
Assertive Community Treatment, specializing in the treatment of clients with co-occurring disorders. Credentialed through two local emergency 
rooms for emergency evaluation of team clients for continuity of care. Well-versed in crisis intervention, emergency assessment, case 
management, client advocacy, and working as part of a treatment team. Mental Health Counselor License eligible and continuing to receive 
clinical supervision. Passed the NCMHC Exam. 
Intern, Clinical Case Manager, MHCGM, Manchester, NH May 2016-May 2017 
The central component of a final Seminar in Clinical Mental Health Counseling at Rivier University. Entails carrying a caseload of 1 O+ 
individual clients; assessing for needs and linking cl ients to community resources, integrating therapeutic interventions within session, working 
as a member of an interdisciplinary team, completing thorough clinical documentation, and receiving weekly supervision from a licensed 
clinical mental health counselor 
lnSHAPE Health Mentor, MHCGM, Manchester, NH January 2016-May 2016 
Working with clients diagnosed with mental illness to set health and wellness goals, using skills obtained as both a certified personal trainer 
and a mental health worker; integrating knowledge of several populations to develop short and long term goals throughout the recovery 
process; developing partnerships to promote health and wellness within our community and beyond 
Residential Specialist, MHCGM, Manchester, NH January 7 2013-January 2016 and May 2016-April 2017 
Providing support for clients diagnosed with severe and persistent mental il lness (SPMI) in a group home setting; applying Evidence Based 
Practices to monitor and assist with symptoms; supervising activities of daily living; coordinating emergency responses as needed; working as 
a member of an interdisciplinary team; teaching independent living skills; coordinating therapeutic recreation events 
Student, Continuous Treatment Team Pre-Practicum, MHCGM, Manchester, NH May 2013-August 2013 
Observational study with an Assertive Community Support (ACT) team member who works with dually diagnosed clients; obtaining experience 
in the case-management of clients in community mental health setting; a minimum of fifty hours of observation completed 
Research Assistant, Saint Anselm College Psychology Department, Manchester, NH May 2011-August 2012 
Participated in grant-funded research; trained in visual psychophysics, blood drawing procedures, and using the Cholestech LDX system; 
maintained mental fortitude, attention to detail, and frequent contact with academic advisors; completed Senior Research Project though work 
in this lab, which included a detailed, APA style report and multiple presentations 

LEADERSHIP ACTIVITIES 

Group Counselor, SMART goals recovery group, MHCGM, Manchester, NH September 2018- Present 
Co-facilitator of a newly formed group, focusing on setting a SMART goal for the day and utilizing mindfulness. Comprised of clients from 
Community Support Services and co-facilitated by a Peer Mentor. 
Captain, Saint Anselm College Varsity Cross Country Team, Manchester, NH_ August 2008-November 2011 
Trained from 50-65 miles per week for participation in 5K races. Incorporated taking initiative, teamwork, dedication, and hard work with 
maintenance of independent training. As captain (2009-2011 ), lead through example and instruction, organizing out-of-practice activities, 
providing motivation in the off-season, working with other captains and coaches to adapt to new and old team members by appealing to both 
their desire for achievement and their love for the sport 
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Bret Smith 

Professional Summary 
Compassionate and understanding Certified Recovery Support Worker has a solid understanding of 
mental health recovery. Brings a unique perspective to living with abstinence, recovery and a healthy 

rtestyle. Licensed CRSW and Trainer of Trainers . 

• 

• 

Skills 
Wellness coach 
Terrific hta-personal and communication skills 
Excellent listenhg and oral communicatbn skills 
Strong understandirg cteth ics and clientconfidentiality 

Trairhg and education of employees 
Coach. advise, educate ways to abstinence 

Compassionate and empathic regardhg mental health issues and recovery 

Good understanding of self-esteem building 

Work History 

CRSW Lead Peer Specialist, 10/31/2016-PRESENT 

Mobile Crisis Response Team, Mental 1--ealth Center of Greater Manchester 

Responsible for a team of 5 peers and their performance according to standards of 

The State of New Hampshire Lcensirg Board for CRSW's 

Responsble for supervisbn of said peers according to Company Guidelines 

CRSW Recovery Coach, 11'2015 -10/31/2016 
Hope for New Hampshire- Manchester , NH 

Administered empirically supported treatment in recovery coaching for adults with co-occurring 

disorders ina community-based setting. 

Contracted out to Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester to work with their ACT cl ients. 

Works on helping the individuals take steps using the resources that the recovery coaches have 

available to the ind iv duals to work towards stabilty in their lwes and take small steps towards 
becorrrg hdependent in everyday living skills. 

As a Recovery Life Coach helping people reach the goals after getting hep for their substance 

use disorder. 

Responsi IE for training and education of employees at Hope for NH Recovery Center 

Operations Manager, 1990-2000 
Rhodes Furniture-Huntsville, AL 
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• 
• 

• 

• 

Bret Smith 

Established operational objectives and work P3ns and delegated assignments to subordinate 

managers. 

Maraged accourts payable and receivaties, customer accounts; approvals, reconciliation and 

adjustments. Payroll, Human Resources, lnvertoryand Profit and Loss reconciliation. 

Achieved total sales greater than $6 mill ion 

Certifications 
Licensed by the state of New Hampshire as a CRSW 

Trained as a Trainer for peer recovery specialist training March 2016 

Trained as a trainer for CCAR ethical considerations July 2016 #20161307 

Psychopharmacology training NHADACA 

Trained as a trainer for 1\11\MI Connect Suicide Prevention 2016, Level 1 Trainer 

Trained as a Trainer for CCAR Recovery Coach Academy October, 2016 #20161307 

Trained in Crisis Prevertion Intervention December2016 
Member cf NH Disaster Behavioral Health Team December 2016 

Education 
Snead State Junior College -Alabama 
Withdrew 4 credit hours prior to completing AS: Biology, 1982 

KOS D\R Hgh School - Grant, AL 
Member National Honor Society 

Additional Information 

11-20-2015 - 04-20-2016 

Volurteered 900 hours as a Peer Counselor at Hope for New Hampshire 

2015 

Youth Mertor at Sununu Youth Detention Center 

Mentored Youth males at YDC, individuals with history of chik:lhood sexual abuse. 

1980-1982 

Orderly Guntersville Hospital, managed patents on shift and emergency room 
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Taunya L. Jarzyniecki, M.Ed., LCMHC, MLADC 

EMPLOYMENT 

The Mental H ttalth Center <>/Greater Manchester Manchester, NH 
Coordinator. ClioiSd!I Case Mi!nagement Team July 2018 - Present 
Responsible for a segment (l or 2 programs) within the division service. Supervises direct care staff. 
Primary focus on internal programs with the duty to promote intra and inter depanmcntal functioning. 
May be requested to take part in consultations. education activities, speakers bureau, presentations. 
supervision of employees toward licensure, and will be expected to take part in Quality Improvement 
activities 

Mobile Crisis Re§ponse Teall\ December 20 I 6 - Present 
Workjng with a team of professionals - including first responders, healthcare providers, and community­
based agencies - to stabilize a psychiatric crisis situation, stabilize substance abuse crisis, avoid 
hospitalization and/or incarceration. and initiate immediate community-based treatment. This is a fast 
paced, dynamic position that requires flexibility, multi-tasking and strong crisis management skills. The 
position requires a master's degree in human services or related field; minimum of one year in a mental 
health treatment environment; and availability for night, weekend, and non-traditional hours. 

Court Liai£on November 2016 - July 2018 
Provide coordination and case management services to individuals involved in the criminal 
justice system. Provide comprehensive psycho-social evaluations, diagnosis and appropriate 
disposition of client. Coordinated with the courts, attorneys and local jail to engage individuals 
and provide services for those involved in the criminal justice system. Participate in 
consultations, educational activities, presentations and cli.nical supervision ofemployees towards 
licensure 

Child and Adolescent Therapist October 2011 - November 2016 
Provide psychiatric care to chronically and severely mentally ill clients both in the home and in 
the office. Utilized a family based approach to assist parents with skills to manage behaviors. 
Utilize evidence based practices to assist clients in managing symptoms. Participate in 
consultation with schools and other community based services as needed. Provide clinical 
supervision of employees towards licensure. 

Emergency Services Clinician August 2004 - Present 
Provide a multi•source bjopsychosocial crisis assessment on all patients seen in ES offices and at 
the Catholic Medical Center Emergency room; Establish therapeutic relationship with clients in 
crisis; provided short term counseling for clients in crisis; coordinate entry to alternative 1.evels of 
care; assist Center staff with crisis as they arise in their case loads; appropriately document all 
ES contacts; secure placement for clients that require hospital level of care or commitment; 
attend court proceedings for commitments as required. 
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Taunya L. Jarzyniecki, M.Ed., LCMHC 

Fee For Service Clinician at Bedford Counseling Associates November 2007-November 2016 
Conduct pre-operative psychiatric assessments for clients seeking Bariatric surgery. Make 
necessary recommendations for follow-up treatment if needed. Review with clients the risks, 
benefits and possible side effects that can result with Bariatric surgery . . 

Riverside Community Care -Emergency Services Norwood, MA 
Emergency Services Clinician July 2002 -- August 2004 
Provided telephone screening and triage to consumers calling the emergency services hotline; 
provided face to face evaluations ofconsumers in crisis; collaborated with family, providers, and 
insurers during and in support of the evaluations process; located and secured appropriate 
placement or services for emergency services consumers; provided clinical support to staff; 
provided ongoing support and evaluation of CSU consumers; appropriately doeumented all 
encounters using RES protoco.ls. 

Soutlt Bay Me11tal Healtl, Ctwter Brockton, MA 
StaffTherapist/Intem June 2001 - March 2003 
Provided individual, group and family counseling; consulted with collateral agencies as needed; 
initiated, maintained and completed clinical files and records for clients inc.luding initial 
evaluations, treatment plans, session notes and transfer or termination summaries; responded to 
client emergencies as needed; maintained confidentiality in all clinical matters. 

HONORS AND A WARDS 

5/2018 
6'2018 
l?/2018 

Guest speaker on The Ex¢hange Program, NH PUbHc Radio 
MHC-GM's Kendall Snow Community Advocacy Award 
Presenter at the 2018 NH Behavioral Health Summit 

EDUCATION 

University of Massachusetts al Bqston 
College of Education 
Masters of Education in Counseling 

Northeastern University 
College of Criminal Justice 
Bachelor of Science, Cum Laude 

Boston, MA 
June2002 

Boston, MA 
June 1994 

Honors: Alpha Phi Sigma Crimina1 Justice Honor Society, Golden Key National Honor Society, 
National Residence Hall Honorary 
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William T. Rider 

Objective 

Experience 

Education 

Community 
Activity 

To provide effective leadership in community mental healthcare 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 
401 Cypress St Manchester, NH 03103 (603) 668-411 1 

• 3/2015 to Present: President, Chief Executive Officer 

• 3/2000 to 3/2015: Executive VP, Chief Operating Officer 

• 1 /1995 to 2/2000: Director, Community Support Program 

• 7/1987 to 12/1994: Assistant Director Community Support Program 

• 6/1985 to 6/1987: Clinical Case Manager 

Carroll County Mental Health 
25 West Main St. Conway NH 03818 

• 4/78 to 5/85: Cl inical Case Manager 

New Hampshire Hospital 
24 Clinton St 

Concord NH 03301 

• 10/76 to 4/78: Mental Health Counselor 

2001 to 2002 Franklin Pierce College Concord, NH 

• 12 Graduate Credits 

1972 to 1976 Canisius College Buffalo, NY 

• BA Psychology 1976 

Granite Pathways: Vice Chair, Board of Directors 

Postpartum Support International-NH, Founders Board 

NAMI of NH Member since 1985 

• 1992 NAMI Professional of the Year Award 
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THE MENTAL HEAL TH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. 
NAME OF CONTRACT: MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY: 2022 (July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022) 

KEY PERSONNEL 

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

WILLIAM RIDER PRES IDENT / CEO $ 173,592 I00.00% $ 173,592 

PATRICIA CARTY EXECUTIVE VP / COO $117,307 100.00% $ 117,307 

PAUL MICHAUD VP of FINANCE I CFO $ 130,745 100.00% $ 130,745 

RICHARD VP OF COMMUNITY $ 109,912 100.00% $ 109,912 

CORNELL RELATIONS 
TOT AL SALARIES $53 1,556 $531 ,556 
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Name 

Brett Smith 
Taunya Jarzyniecki 

Bianca Ciuffredo 

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER 
NH Rapid Response Grant 

Key Personnel 

Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from 
this Contract this Contract 

(includes 30% 
Fringe Benefi ts) 

Peer Soecialist 45 ,000 100% 58,500 
Coordinator of Emergency 85 ,000 10% 11,050 
Services and Interim Care 
Emergency Services Clinician 60,000 100% 78,000 
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l,orl A. Shlblntttc 
Commissioner 

lutjaS. Fox 
Director 

ST ATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9S44 

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov 

June 24, 2020 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as 
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, and 2020-10, Governor Sununu 
authorized the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to enter 
into Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $1,731,950 
for crisis intervention services, mental and substance use disorder treatment, and other related 
recovery supports for youth and adults who are under or uninsured and are impacted by COVID-
19, and healthcare professionals with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, 
effective June 23, 2020, through August 19, 2021. 100% Federal Funds. 

Vendor Name 
Vendor 

Area Served Contract Amount 
Code 

Community Partners of 177278 Dover, Region 9 $173,195 
Strafford County Foundation 

Northern Human Services 177222 Conway, Region 1 $173,195 

West Central Behavioral 177654 Lebanon, Region 2 $173,195 
Health Foundation 

Lakes Region Mental Health 154480 Laconia, Region 3 $173,195 
Center, Inc. 

Riverbend Community Mental 177192 Concord, Region 4 $173,195 
Health, Inc. 

Monadnock Family Services 177510 Keene, Region 5 $173,195 

The Community Council of 154112 Nashua, Region 6 $173,195 
Nashua, N.H. 

The Mental Health Center of 177184 Manchester, Region 7 $173,195 
Greater Manchester, Inc. 

Seacoast Mental Health 174089 Portsmouth, Region 8 $173,195 
Center, Inc. 

Center for Life Management 174116 Derry, Region 10 $173,195 

Total: $1 ,731,950 
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

Page 2 of 3 

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and 
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued 
appropriation offunds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items 
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, 
if needed and justified. 

05-095-092-922010-19090000 HEAL TH & SOCIAL SERVICES-DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH & 
HUMAN SERVICES-DIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH-BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH 
SERVICES-SAMHSA GRANT 

State Class/ Class Title Job Number Total Amount 
Fiscal Year Account 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $108,247 

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $1,298,962 

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92201909 $324,741 

Total $1,731,950 

EXPLANATION 

These items are Sole Source because the Department, in the interest of the public's 
health and safety, determined that the State's community mental health centers are best 
positioned to effectively provide crisis intervention services, mental health and substance use 
disorder treatment, and other related recovery supports for youth and adults who are under or 
uninsured and are impacted by COVID-19, and healthcare professionals. The Bureau of Mental 
Health Services contracts for services through the community mental health centers that are 
designated by the Bureau to serve the towns and cities within a designated geographic region as 
outlined in NH RSA 135-C and State regulation NH He-M403. 

Due to both COVID-19 and the State of Emergency, people with serious mental illness, 
youth with serious emotional disturbance and new or early serious mental illness, general citizens, 
and healthcare professionals are expected to develop new behavioral health problems or 
exacerbations of such problems, including increases in depression, anxiety, trauma, and grief. 
The Contractors will provide services to these individuals who are under or uninsured from June 
23, 2020, to August 19, 2021. 

The Contractors will increase the capacity of the New Hampshire community mental health 
system to respond to people with behavioral health crises who are impacted by the COVID-19 
pandemic using evidence-based practices. New and existing staff will receive training on COVID-
19-related treatment adaptations, including safety and telemedicine; guideline-based crisis 
intervention; trauma-informed care; and the use of American Society of Addiction Medicine criteria 
for Substance Use Disorder services. The Contractors will refer individuals in need of longer-term 
services to other evidence-based practices. 

The Department will monitor contracted services by: 
• Actively and regularly collaborating with the Contractors to enhance contract 

management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based on 
successful outcomes. 

• Requiring the Contractors to collect key data and metrics that include client-level 
demographic, performance and service data. 

• Requiring implementation progress reports relative to staffing and training requirements. 
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 
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• Reviewing quarterly reports to determine if the grant is progressing within the timeline 
provided in the New Hampshire Rapid Response Grant project narrative. 

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1 .2 of the 
attached contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) 
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement 
of the parties, and appropriate State approval. 

Areas served: Statewide 

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.665 FAIN #H79FG000210 

Resp•a:;~ 

Lt. Shibinette 
Commissioner 

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to j oi,1 communities 011d families 
in providing opportu,iit ies for citize,is to achieve health and independence. 



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019) 

Subject:_Rapid Response (SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-07) 

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnation that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

AGREEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. IDENTIFICATION. 
1.1 State Agency Name 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

1.3 Contractor Name 

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, 
Inc. 

11.2 State Agency Address 

i 129 Pleasant Street I Concord, NH 03301-3857 

1.4 Contractor Address 

40 l Cypress St. 
Manchester, NH 03103 

1.5 Contractor Phone 
Number 

1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 

August 19, 2021 

1.8 Price Limitation 

05-095-092-9220 IO-
(603) 668-4111 l 9090000-102-50073 l 

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 

Nathan D. White, Director 

1.11 Contractor Signature 

vvtt~ Date: tq/sJ:ro~.'O 

By: 

$173,195 

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number 

(603) 271-9631 

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 

Director, On: 

1.16 Approval by the Attorney Genc:ral (Folltl, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) 

By: ~ /J ~4--
On: 

06/17/20 
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive: Council (if applicable) 

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date: 

ro 
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORl\'ffiD. The State of New 
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1 
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the 
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly 
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated 
herein by reference ("Services"), 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and 
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable, 
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall 
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive 
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17, 
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement 
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by 
the State Age11cy as shown in block l. I 3 ("Effective Date"). 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
Effective Date; all Services performed by the Contractor prior to 
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and in the event that tlus Agreement does not become 
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor, 
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the 
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are 
contingent upon the availability and continue<! appropriation of 
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive 
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the 
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and 
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in 
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments 
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the 
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the 
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds 
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or 
te1minate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tem1ination. 
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other 
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the 
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5. I The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment 
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C 
which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Conlrdclor for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall 
have no liability to the Contractor other than the con tract price. 
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those 
liquidated amounts required or pennitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circun1stances, in no 
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made 
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, Jaws, 
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal 
authorities which in1pose any obligation or duty upon the 
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal 
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is 
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor 
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations 
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the 
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations, 
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual 
property laws. 
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not 
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment 
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual 
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to 
prevent such discrimination. 
6.3. TI1e Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States 
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for 
the pw-pose of ascertaining compliance with all mies, regulations 
and orders, and tl1e covenants, terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel 
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor wan-ants that 
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to 
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and 
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws. 
7.2 Un.less otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of 
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the 
Completion Date in block l. 7, the Contractor shall nol hire, and 
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fim1 or 
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to 
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee 
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement, 
administration or performance of this Agreement. This 
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her 
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any 
dispute concerning the interpretation of tlus Agreement, the 
Contracting Officer's decision shalj be final for the State. 
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event 
of Default"): 
8.1. l failw·e to perform the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of 
this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may 
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of 
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of 
a greater or lesser !>'Pecification of time, thirty (30) days from the 
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured, 
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the 
Contractor notice of termination; 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of 
Default and suspending all payments to be made w1der this 
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period from the date of such notice until. such time as the State 
detem1ines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of 
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may 
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of 
any Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of 
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the 
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or 
both. 
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after 
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiv~· of its rights with 
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of 
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall 
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and 
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or otht--r Event of 
Default on the pa1t of the Contractor. 

9. TERMINATION. 
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole 
discretion, tenninate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or 
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that 
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement. 
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for 
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the 
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the 
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date 
of termination, a report ('Tem1ination Report") describing in 
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of tem1ination. The form, subject matter, 
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall 
be identical to those of any Final Report described in tl1e attached 
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor 
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and 

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the 
Agreement. 

10. DAT A/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERVATION. 
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all 
infonnation and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, 
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic 
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes, 
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether 
finished or unfinished. 
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from 
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and 
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination 
of this Agreement for any reason. 
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires 
prior written approval of the State. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO 1IIE STATE. ln the 
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects 
an independent contractor, and is neitl1er an agent nor an 
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or 
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which 
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to 
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes 
of tliis paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute 
assignment. "Change of Control'' means (a) merger, 
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in 
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the 
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the 
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting 
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all 
of the assets of the Contractor. 
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted hy the 
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State. 
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment 
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained 
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a 
party. 

13. I~El\,[NJFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law, 
the Contn1ctor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its 
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, 
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages, 
patent or copyright infiingernent, or other claims asserted against 
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of ( or which 
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the 
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the 
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not 
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under 
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign 
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the 
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURANCE. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any 
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the 
following insurance: 
14. l.l commercial general liability insurance against all claims 
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate 
or excess; and 
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all property 
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 
80% of the whole replacement value of the property. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be 
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State 
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and 
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire. 
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of 
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified 
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance 
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no 
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each 
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any 
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies 
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt 
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers' 
Compensation'). 
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements 
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and 
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, 
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with 
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers' 
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be 
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State 
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers' 
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for 
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contr<1ctor, 
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire 
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the 
performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time 
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States 
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in 
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. 

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived 
or discharged only by an instrumt-'11t in writing signed by the 
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment, 
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of 
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required 
under the circwnstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy. 

18. CHOICE OF LAW A.i''iU FORUM. This Agreement shall 
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and 
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors 
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording 
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule 
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party. 
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and 
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have 
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. 

19. CON.l<'LICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict 
between the terms of th.is P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT 
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the 
P-37 (as modified in E:XlllBIT A) shall control. 

20. TEDRD PARTIES. TI1e parties hereto do not intend to 
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit. 

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are 
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein 
shall i11 no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the 
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

22. SPJi:CIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying 
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this 
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

24. ENTlRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be 
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Rapid Response 

EXHIBIT A 

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions 

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is 
amended as follows: 

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and 
subject to the approval of the Governor issued under the Executive Order 
2020-04, as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, and 2020-
09 of the State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obligations of 
the parties hereunder, shall become effective upon Governor's approval. 

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding 
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: 

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) years additional 
year(s) from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery 
of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of 
the Governor and Executive Council. 

1.3. Paragraph 12, AssignmenVDelegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding 
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: 

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the 
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor 
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written 
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed 
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the 
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective 
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with 
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and ·notify 
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Rapid Response 

EXHIBIT B 

Scope of Services 

1. Statement of work 
1.1. The Contractor shall provide the services in this Agreement to address the 

crisis intervention and peer support needs for under-insured or uninsured 
individuals who include: 

1.1.1. Children, youth, and young adults with serious emotional disturbance 
(SEO); 

1.1.2. Adults with severe mental illness (SMI), severe and persistent mental 
illness (SPMI), and/or substance use disorder (SUD}; and 

1.1.3. Other individuals who are in need of behavioral health supports, 
including health care personnel. 

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, under-insured or uninsured individuals 
include: 

1.2.1. Individuals who are not covered by public or commercial health 
insurance programs; 

1.2.2. Individuals who, if covered by a commercial health insurance plan, 
are not sufficiently covered under their plan to include services that 
are authorized under this Agreement, require co-payments or 
deductibles. 

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days shall mean calendar 
days. 

1.4. The Contractor shall enhance its crisis service system and expand its existing 
capacity to provide crisis intervention services by hiring, training , and deploying 
staff in Community Mental Health Region Seven (7). 

1.5. The Contractor shall provide services in this Agreement during the COVID-19 
pandemic in accordance with: 

1.5.1 . Applicable federal and state law, including administrative rules and 
regulations; 

1.5.2. The terms and conditions of the New Hampshire Rapid Response to 
Behavioral Health Needs During COVID-19 grant as identified in 
Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 1; and 

1.5.3. The New Hampshire Rapid Response to Behavioral Health Needs 
during COVID-19 grant objectives and timelines as follows: 

1.5.3.1. Hire additional staff as described in Section 2, Staffing. 

1.5.3.2. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
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EXHIBIT B 

1.5.3.3. Deploy the trained staff to provide the Crisis Services 
described in this Agreement as described in section 1.8. 

1.6. The Department expects that the individuals served under this Agreement will 
fall into specific allocations that will be used for outreach purposes: 

1.6.1. Approximately 70% will have: SUD, with or without co-occurring SMI, 
SPMI or SEO, or SMI, SPMI, or SEO; 

1.6.2. Approximately 10% will be healthcare personnel with mental disorders 
less severe than SMI requiring mental health care; and 

1.6.3. Approximately 20% will have a mental health disorder less severe 
than SMI. 

1. 7. The Contractor shall provide optional access to these services through 
telehealth, consistent with guidance provided by the Department, or as 
authorized under other Federal and State regulations implemented due to 
COVID-19. 

1.8. The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to have additional staff in place 
to expand crisis services to the individuals under this Agreement no later than 
August 20, 2020. 

1.9. The Contractor shall conduct assessments and provide crisis interventions 
under this Agreement based on the 10 core values identified in the SAMHSA­
published guidelines, "Core Elements in Responding to Mental Health Crises." 

1.10. The Contractor shall evaluate and treat individuals during crisis interventions 
to enable a comprehensive understanding of the situation and help individuals 
served gain a sense of control over their situation. 

1.11 . The Contractor shall provide crisis services and interventions by: 

1.11 . 1. Providing timely access to services and supports in the least restrictive 
manner, including but not limited to providing peer support by 
engaging and helping individuals manage their crises; assessments; 
and interventions to help individuals cope with and navigate the crisis; 

1.11.2. Developing crisis plans and emergency interventions for each 
individual served that are strengths-based and consider the whole 
context of an individual's plan of services; 

1.11.3. Referring individuals to longer-term services, including but not limited 
to specified evidence-based practices where applicable and 
appropriate; 

1.11.4. Identifying recurring crises and adjusting assessment and intervention 
strategies as needed to meet the needs of the individual, including 
taking additional measures to reduce the likelihood of future crises; 
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1.11.5. Providing crisis intervention services that adhere to the six (6) key 
principles of trauma-informed care, including: safety; trustworthiness 
and transparency; peer support; collaboration and mutuality; 
empowerment, voice and choice; and attention to cultural, historical 
and gender issues. 

1.12. The Contractor shall assess and link adults who are not already in behavioral 
health treatment to needed services for SMI/SPMI and other behavioral health 
conditions , including but not limited to: 

1.12.1. Assertive community treatment; 

1.12.2. Supported employment; 

1.12.3. Illness management and recovery; 

1.12.4. Therapeutic behavioral services; 

1.12.5. Family support; and 

1.12.6. Medication management. 

1.13. The Contractor shall assess and link youth who are not already in behavioral 
health treatment to needed longer term services for SED, including but not 
limited to: 

1.13.1. Modular Approach to Therapy for Children (MATCH); 

1.13.2. Trauma-focused cognitive behavioral therapy; and 

1.13.3. Supported employment for individuals for whom it is developmentally 
appropriate. 

1.14. The Contractor shall assess and link youth and adults who are not already in 
behavioral health treatment to a comprehensive array of needed SUD 
treatment services, including but not limited to: 

1.14.1. Evaluations; 

1.14.2. Withdrawal management; 

1.14.3. Outpatient counseling; 

1.14.4. Residential services; and 

1.14.5. Recovery supports. 

1.15. The Contractor shall use strategies to address SUD that may include but are 
not limited to: 

1.15.1 . Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

1.15.2. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT); 

1.15.3. Motivational Enhancement Therapy (MET); 

1.15.4. Seeking Safety; 
SS-2020-DBH-07-RAPI D-07 
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1.15.5. The Seven Challenges; and 

1.15.6. Brief strategic family therapy. 

1.16. The Contractor shall utilize American Society of Addiction Medicine criteria to 
identify the appropriate initial level of care for the individual and assist the 
individual with accessing care, including but not limited to: 

1.16.1. Identifying providers; 

1.16.2. Assisting the individual with contacting providers and completing an 
initial screening for treatment services; and 

1.16.3. Assisting the individual with meeting admission requirements, 
including linking them with financial resources. 

1.17. For individuals who are already in care, reconnecting the individual to their 
existing care provider(s) in addition to linking them to other appropriate 
community and social support services as needed. 

1.18. The Contractor shall provide crisis intervention services to children, youth and 
young adults with SEO in a manner that aligns with NH RSA 135~F, System of 
Care for Children's Mental Health. 

1.19. In Community Mental Health Region Seven (7), the Contractor, in collaboration 
with the Department, shall: 

1.19.1. Ensure health care providers are informed of the availability of New 
Hampshire Rapid Response services; and 

1.19.2. Conduct messaging and marketing to health care providers about the 
Contractor's capacity to provide these services to health care 
personnel experiencing a behavioral health crisis and how to access 
care. 

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure that its own staff are aware of New Hampshire 
Rapid Response resources to support them during a behavioral health crisis. 

2. Staffing 
2.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on the development and 

provision of training for the Contractor's staff specific to the New Hampshire 
Rapid Response no later than June 30, 2020. 

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure that Contractor staff receive training on: 

2.2.1. New Hampshire Rapid Response goals and objectives; 

2.2.2. COVID-19-related treatment adaptations, including safety and 
telemedicine; 

2.2.3. Guideline-based crisis intervention; 
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2.2.4. Trauma-informed care that is tailored to an individual's age, gender, 
race, and other individual characteristics; and 

2.2.5. Use of American Society of Addiction Medicine criteria for SUD 
services. 

2.3. The Contractor shall provide the staffing to conduct the services under this 
Agreement as follows: 

2.3.1. Clinical Project Director (0.1 FTE} to oversee New Hampshire Rapid 
Response implementation and evaluation in concert with the 
Department's State Project Director. 

2.3.2. Crisis Team Clinician (1.0 FTE) to provide trauma-informed crisis and 
emergency assessment and treatment to individuals served, and 
facilitate interviews related to the Government Performance and 
Results and Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA). 

2.3.2.1. Crisis Team Clinicians must be a master's level clinician with 
at least two (2) years related experience and must be 
supervised by the Contractor's Clinical Service Director. 

2.3.3. Crisis Team Peer (1 .0 FTE) to provide peer support, crisis planning 
and project assessments for the New Hampshire Rapid Response in 
addition to facilitating GPRA-related interviews. 

2.3.3.1. Crisis Team Peer must be trained to provide these services 
and must have lived experience. 

2.3.3.2. Crisis Team Peer must be supervised by the Contractor's 
Clinical Service Director. 

2.3.4. Administrative Support Person (0.2 FTE) to provide administrative 
support for New Hampshire Rapid Response evaluation activities. 

2.3.4.1. Administrative Support Person must have a bachelor's 
degree in a related field or an equivalent combination of 
education and experience. 

2.3.5 If the Contractor is faced with a reduction in the ability to deliver said 
services, the Contractor shall provide written notice to the Department 
within thirty (30) calendar days of the Board approved decision. 

2.3.5.1 The Contractor shall consult and collaborate with the 
Department prior to any anticipated reduction in its ability to 
provide services under this Agreement or elimination of 
services in order to reach a mutually agreeable solution as to 
the most effective way to provide the services under this 
Agreement. 
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' 
2.3.6 The Contractor shall not redirect funds allocated in the budget for the 

New Hampshire Rapid Response services provided under this 
Agreement 

3. Performance Measures and Data Reporting 
3.1. The C~ntractor agrees to participate in periodic New Hampshire Rapid 

Response monitoring meetings and teleconferences, based on scheduled 
dates and times mutually agreeable to the Contractor, other New Hampshire 
Rapid Response Contractors, and the Department. 

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with progress reports regarding 
the implementation of staffing and training requirements under this Agreement, 
in the format and frequency determined by the Department. 

3.3. The Contractor shall support the Department's effort to comply with the GPRA 
as it pertains to services provided to the individuals specified in the Exhibit B, 
Scope of Work of this Agreement. 

3.4. The Contractor shall collect GPRA data through interviews with individuals 
served under this Agreement, who agree to complete the GPRA interview 
process upon admission, at the six-month mark of receiving services and upon 
discharge from crisis and emergency services. 

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide a $20 gift card, per interview, to 
individuals who agree to participate in the GPRA data collection 
interview process, subject to the Department's provision of gift cards 
to the Contractor for this express purpose. 

3.4.1.1 The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on 
the replenishment of gift card inventories as needed, 
subject to the Department's statewide supply. In no 
instance shall the Contractor be liable for or required to 
provide a gift card to the individual once its supply of 
Department-provided gift cards has been exhausted. 

3.5. The Contract shall input GPRA data collected from individuals using the 
SAMHSA GPRA data collection tool, via assessments identified in 3.4 or with 
the use of separate GPRA data collection. 

3.6. The Contractor shall enter GPRA information obtained from each individual into 
the SAMHSA Performance Accountability and Reporting System (SPARS) 
within the time period specified by SAMHSA. 

3.7. 
; . 

3.6.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department's designated New 
Hampshire Rapid Response evaluation team to ensure high-quality 
data collection. 

The Contractor may utilize funding in this Agreement designated for data 
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infrastructure projects, technological activities, and equipment, as allowable 
under the SAMHSA approved New Hampshire Rapid Response grant's terms 
and conditions. The Contractor shall obtain the Department's prior approval 
for such projects or activities. 

4. Exhibits incorporated 
4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in 

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information (Privacy Rule} (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in 
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which 
has been executed by the parties. 

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security 
Requirements. 

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

5. Additional Terms 

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes 

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal 
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services 
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities 
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve 
compliance therewith. 

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS} 

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of 
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with 
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure 
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) 
days of the contract effective date. 

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership 

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other 
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the 
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The 
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a 
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and 
Human Services, with funds provided by the United States Department 
of Health and Human Services." 
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5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior 
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution 
or use. 

5.3.3. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the 
contract without prior writtl3n approval from the Department. 

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

5.4.1 . In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor 
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, 
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public 
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty 
upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the 
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license 
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the 
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said 
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the 
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees 
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all 
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the 
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in 
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and 
regulations. 

6. Records 

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to: 

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data 
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the 
Contractor in the performance of this Agreement, and all income 
received or collected by the Contractor. 

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting 
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all 
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the 
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, 
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions 
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, 
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other 
records requested or required by the Department. 

6.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and 
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and 
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records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, 
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the Department's payment of the 
price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations of the parties 
hereunder ( except such obligations as, by the terms of the Agreement are to 
be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement and/or survive the 
termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided however that if, upon 
review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department shall disallow any 
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department shall 
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are 
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 
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Payment Terms 

1. This Agreement is funded by: 

1.1. 100%, Emergency Grants to Address Mental Health and Substance Use 
Disorders During COVID-19, as awarded on April 16, 2020, by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, CFDA 93.665, FAIN # 
H79FG000210. 

2. For the purposes of this Agreement: 

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq. 

2.2. The Indirect Cost Rate of 10.00% applies in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.414. 

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in 
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87. 

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for authorized expenditures 
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the limitations herein, 
and shall be in accordance with the approved line item budget table below: 

BUDGET 
Line Item Amount 

Amount 

Staffina $113,500 

Frinae and Benefits $ 34,050 
Personal Protective Eauioment, Suoolies, Technology, and Trainina $ 5,400 

Data Collection $ 4,500 

Indirect Costs on Clinical Services $15,295 
Indirect Costs on Data Collection $ 450 

Total $173,195 

3.1. Authorized expenditures for direct services provided under the 
Agreement to individuals are subject to the following limitations: 

3.1.1. For. uninsured individuals, expenditures will be limited to those 
incurred by the Contractor to provide services to the individuals. 

3.1.2. For under-insured individuals, expenditures will be limited to 
those incurred by the Contractor to provide to individuals 
services that are not a covered service under the individual's 
applicable insurance. For covered services that are subject to a 
co-payment or deductible for which the individual served 
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indicates they cannot afford to pay, the Contractor is authorized 
to waive payment from the individual and to charge the 
corresponding amount as a cost incurred under this Agreement. 

3.1.3. Data collection, including conducting Government Performance 
and Results and Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA) interviews 
with individuals served, will not be considered a direct service 
provided to individuals unless the Contractor chooses to 
complete the GPRA interview as part of providing clinical 
services to the individual, such as for the assessment process. 
In such event, the costs incurred to complete the GPRA 
interview will be reimbursable under this Agreement but in no 
instance shall the Contractor seek or obtain additional 
reimbursement from an individual's insurer for the same costs or 
service. 

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the 
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and 
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. 
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the 
Department in order to initiate payment. 

4.1. Timesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees worked 
for wages reported under this contract. 

4.1.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(i)( 1) Charges to • Federal awards for 
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately 
reflect the work performed. 

4.2. The Contractor shall retain documentation to support evidence of actual 
expenditures incurred in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and 
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: 

Financial Manager 
Bureau of Behavioral Health 
Department of Health and Human Services 
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building 
Concord, NH 03301 

6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if 
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions 
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement. 

The Mental Health Center 
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7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the 
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 
Completion Date. 

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in 
compliance with funding requirements. 

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in 
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions 
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. 

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that 
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event 
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable 
to the services provided, or if the. said services or products have not been 
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
agreement. 

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes 
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation, between budget line 
items, and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget 
lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both 
parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if 
needed and justified. 

12. Audits 

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department 
if any of the following conditions exist: 

12.1.1 . Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in 
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year. 

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the 
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, 111-b, pertaining to charitable 
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more. 

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required 
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to 
submit an annual financial audit. 

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit 
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the 
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal 
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. 
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EXHIBIT C 

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an 
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. 

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than 
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless 
of the funding source, may be required, ata minimum, to submit annual 
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's 
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk. 

12.4.1 . Whereas the Contractor has extensive and ongoing contractual 
agreements with the Department, the Contractor agrees to notify 
the Department's designee for the NH Rapid Response Program 
if, during the contract period of this Agreement: 

12.4.1.1 . The Contractor undergoes any Federal, State, or 
Independent audit that results in identified internal 
control deficiencies, corrective action plans, material 
weaknesses, or otherwise calls for remedies to 
resolve financial compliance deficiencies. 

12.4.1.2. The Contractor undergoes any Federal, State or 
Departmental performance review that results in 
deficient compliance with contractual or grant 
performance requirements, or otherwise calls for 
remedies to resolve performance deficiencies. 

12.4.1 .3. The Contractor agrees to apply the same or similar 
remedies, if materially applicable to this Agreement, 
upon the Department's request. 

12.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the 
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the 
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions 
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been 
disallowed because of such an exception. 
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of Greater Manchester, Inc. 

SS-2020-DBH-07-RAP ID-07 

Rev. 01/08119 

Exhibit C 

Page 4 of 4 

Contractor Initials* 

Date ~ fr/ d:",) ;i;;> 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit D 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION· CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for 
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

1. 7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs 1.1 , 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5 , and 1.6 . 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location) 

L\O\ C..~pa~ ~~. 
tv\.<l.C\O'\~ , ~ \.% 0 ~ IC~ 

Check a if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D 
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX 
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI 
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 
Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 
this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and 
·voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction. unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the 
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,'' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and .' • ,rl'/ . 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 
for cause or default. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principals: 
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract} been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local} 
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local} with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l}(b} 
of this certification; and 

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local} terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
·13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

Date 
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO 
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND 

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; 

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benefits, in any program or activity; 

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local 
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 
employment discrimination; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex 
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to 
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions 
indicated above. 

Date 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either 
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faci lities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to cor,ply with 
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Definitions. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of T itle 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501 . 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 
CFR Section 164.501(9). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 
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I. "Reguired by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 
his/her designee. 

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 
Institute. 

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

(2) 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 
HITECH 
Act. 

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 
Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 
knowledge of such breach. 

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 
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e. 

(3) 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

3/2014 

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 
remedies. 

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. 

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 
protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 
disclosure was made; 

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 
Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 
Breach Notification Rule. 

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and 
Security Rule. 

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity 
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivin~ PHI 

Exhibit 1 Contractor Initials 
Health Insurance Portability Act 
Business Associate Agreement b\5\ 

Page 3 of 6 Date ~ 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit I 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j. 

k. 

I. 

3/2014 

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 
protected health information. 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.528. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 
Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason , the 
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business \ . t..\ J 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 
use or disclosure of PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 
PHI. 

(5) Termination for Cause 

(6) 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d . 

3/2014 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 
violation to the Secretary. 

Miscellaneous 

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 
amended. 

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

Interpretation . The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule . . l ,-if'I/ 
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or 
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or 
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 
defense and indemnification provisions of sect.on (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Title of Authorized Represe tative 

&:;--~ ~c;)Q~ 
Date 
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Name of the Contractor 
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0 Signature of Authorized Representative 

Name of Authorized Representative 

~(~\O.W--/ {.,f;O 
Title of Authorized Representative 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over 
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 
1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 
5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 
7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 
revenues are greater than $25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 
the award or award amendment is made. 
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions 
execute the following Certification: 
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 

CU/OHHS/11 0713 

Contractor Name: Tht MoM-a-\ µ,ta.\~ C..tl\W o ~ 
Grr~ ~o,I\CA\t~.\<r 

N~me N,J,p~~ 
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FORM A 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 
below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 0 7;, Cf 18'° ~0 
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 

receive ( 1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 
cooper:,.tlve agreements? 

_1L__No ___ YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986? 

____ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 
organization are as follows: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

CUIDHHS/110713 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 

Amount: 
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OHHS Information Security Requirements 

A. Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 
Information, " Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 
of Commerce. 

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information 
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 
Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial 
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN), 
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User'' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested. and 
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pl , PFI, 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pl"} means information which can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc., 
alone. or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPM by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103. 

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a vio lation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DAT A 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 
data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 
persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. 

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 
transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION ANO DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 
evaluated by th_e State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 
of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infonnation. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects 
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, 
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl, or 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential lnfonnation received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPM, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The- Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 
Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F .R. §§ 431 .300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONT ACT 

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DH HS PrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Officer: 

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 
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